UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
Form 10-K
(Mark O} -
® ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023

or
o N REPORT PL TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1834
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-36228

Navient Corporat:on

[Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Charter]

46-40.
—rsmd%%'ﬁm of (LR.S. E%

Incorparation or Organization) Identification No.)
13865 Sunrise Valley Drive, Herndon, Virginia 20171 (703) 810-3000
(Address of Principal Executive (Telephone Number)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act

Tradi
Title of ngh class §!|nl|balill m; ﬁ m on ru_t% W
slock, par v:
wmmml‘)mmmnsm: The NASDAC Global Select Market
Prefemed Stock Purchase Rights The NASDAG Global Select Markst

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Acl.  Yes &
Ne O

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to Sle reponts pursuant to Section 13 of 15(d) of the Act.  Yes O No &
Indicate by check lkw'wﬂ-«hmmwaﬂ (t)h“ﬂdlﬁmwﬂlohwwm13u'ﬁd?u!ﬂwsm
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shoner period thal the registrant was requared io
mpm).ath}mmnsumloanhﬁungwumm:mm:mm 'l'mE Ne O

Indicate Iryuheclcmum\munm File required o be submitted
pursuant o Rule 405 of Regulation S- f;szsuosarnucnwm duﬁngiummuag lzmmtummmarwmlhu
thix registrant was required to submil such es). Yes B Ne O

Indicate by check mark whathar the regi is & large ﬂl«sﬂ [ filer, & Meramaﬂa(
reporting company, or an growth See the of large ' filer,” filer,” “smatier
reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in Rule 120-2 of the Exchanga Act. {Chedwns}

E Large filer O Filer My filer [ Smaller reporting company L] Emerging growth company

If aan emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has slected nol 10 use the exiended transition period lor
:mmmmmwrmﬂnmlulmmmmwwmmn lﬂa}dﬂmﬁmﬁ

mhwmwmkwhwmmugqumanﬂnaw of the
effactivenass of its intermal control over mmmmawmﬂhsmmmmnsusc T262(b)) by
mrequmwu:anﬂmmnprmmorsmmmmem B

W securities are registorad pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act, indicate by check mark whether the financial stalements of the
registrant included in the filing reflect the comection of an efror to previously issued financial statements. O

|nﬁuwwmmmmmanrdm comections are restatements that required o recovery analysis of incentiv
sed compensation received by any of the registrant's executive officers during the relevant recovery muunl to §240 100
1!5] =]

Indicale by check mark whelher the registrant is a shell company (as defived in Rule 125-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes O No &
The aggregate market value of comman stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of June 30, 2023 was $1.7 billion (based on
closing sale price of $18.58 per share as reported for the NASDAQ Global Select Market)
As of January 31, 2024, there were 112,749,884 shares of common slock oulstanding,

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the proxy statement (the "2024 Proxy Statement”) relating to the Registrant's 2024 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to
be filed no kater than 120 days after the and of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Repont on Form 10-K, ane incorporated by
relerence inte Part 11 of this Annual Repon on Form 10-K.

Audilor Firm 1D; 185 Auditer Name: KPMG LLP Auditor Location: MeLean, VA




NAVI=NT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Organization of Our Form 10-K
Tna otﬂur and pmnmhun of content in our Annual Report an Form 10-K (Form 10-K) differs from the traditional
and E: C ission (SEC) Form 10-K formal. Our format is designed to improve readability and to
baller present how we organize and manage our business. See Appendix B, "Form 10-K Cross-Reference Index.” for
55-ref index to the i SEC Form 10-K format.

Page
Number

Forward-Looking and Cautionary St 3
Use of Non-GAAP Financial 4
Business ... 5
Omm and Fundamormls of Our Business_.. 5
How We Organize Our Busi T
Human Capital., 9

M s Di ion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation: "
Selected Historical Financial Information and Ratios., 1

The Year in Review ...........ccoomemiisnmrmsisinnens 12
R,asulll of Operat 13

gment Results 16
Financial Condition 23
Liquidity and Capital Ry 29
Critical Accounting Policies and 32
Non-GAAP Financial M 37

Risk MBNageMeNL..............cc.ooocciveeecssisssssisssssiis 46
Supervision and Regulation .......... 49
Legal Proceeding 51
Risk Factors 52
Cy L — 66
] i and Qi Di ‘about Market Risk 68
P, " 73
Markel for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity 7
Other Inf 75
Controls and Proced 76
Directors, Executive Oﬂiwrs and C G v
Executive C: 77
Security Ownership of Certain ial Owners and Manag it and Related Stockholder Matters..... 77
Certain Relationships and Related T i and Director Independence ............. 7
Principal Accountant Fees and Servi 77
Exhibits and Financlal Statement Schedules ............. ;g
Financial Stalements ..., F-1
Appendix A - Descriplion of Federal Famuly Education Loan Program A
Appendix B — Form 10-K Cross-R B-1
Glossary G-1




FORWARD-LOOKING AND CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K ins “fi d-looking” and other inft ion that is based on management’s current
oxpeclahms as of the dale of this mpm Statements that are not historical facts, including stalements about our
befiefs, op of that assume or are dependanl upon future events, are forward-

{oolung statements and often oonta-n words such as "expect,” "anticipate,” "intend,” "plan.” "believe,” "seek,” "see,”
“will,” "would,” “may,” “could,” “should,” “goals,” or “target.” Such statements are based on management's
expeclations as of the dale of this filing and involve many risks and uncerlainties thal could cause our actual resulls
to differ materially from those expressed or implied in our forward-looking statements. Such risks and uncertainties
are discussed more fully under the section titled “Risk Factors” and include, but are not limited to the following:

+ general i M including the p tial impact of inflation and interest rales on Navient and its
«clients and cust and on the il niness of third parties;

* increased defaults on education loans held by us;

* unanticipated repayment trends on loans i i or ing from new
interpretations of current laws, rules or lations or fulure laws ive orders or other policy initiatives
that operate lo ge of require fidation, abolish existing or create additional income-based

pay or debt forg F or ish other policies and programs or extansions of
iously announced deadl which may i the prepayment rates on education loans and

mﬂemmpama«lofmems in our securitization trusts;
+ & reduction in our credit ratings;
» changes to applicable laws, rules, regulations and government policies and expanded regulatory and

‘governmental oversight:

« changes in the general lmenwt rate envi including the availability of any relevant money-market
index rate or the rel P the relevant y-market index rate and the rale at which our assels
are priced;

& the interest rate characteristics of our assets do not always match those of our funding arrangements:
« adverse markel conditions or an inability to effectively manage our liquidity risk or access liquidity could
negatively impact us;

‘the cost and availability of funding in the capital markets;

our ability to eam Floor Income and our abllity to enter into hedges relative to that Floor Income are
dependent on the future interest rate environment and therefore is variable;

our use of derivalives exposes us lo credil and market risk;

our ability to inually and off ! allgn ourmﬂ wﬂh our business opomﬂons‘

a failure or breach of oufoperaung
failure by any third party providing us material services or proﬂuu.s or a breach or \ddnmn of law by one of

these third parties;

« our work with gt clients exp us to addity risks inherent in the government contracting
envmmaﬂl.

. trategic initiatives and ir or divest that we pursue;

+ shareholder aclmsm' and
+ reputaticnal risk and social factors.

Given these risks and . readers are joned not lo place undue reliance on such forward-looking
statements. Readers are urged to carefully review and consider the various disclosures made in this Form 10-K and
in other documents we file from time to time with the SEC that disclose risks and uncertainties that may affect our
business.

The preparation of our i |naru:ial 1 s also i L to make certain estimates and
including esti i about future amls The@e estimales or assumplions may prove

o be incorrect and actual resulis mﬂd differ materially. Al forward-looking statements contained in this report are

qualified by these cautionary statements and are made only as of the date of this report. We do not underiake any

cbligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements except as required by law.

Through Lhndlmussm and annlyals we intend to provide the reader with some narrative context for how our
views oul

lidated financial . additional context within which to assess our operating
results, and w‘orlnamn on the quality and variability of oufnarnlngs. liquidity and cash flows.




AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our website address is navient.com. Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current
Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments 1o reports filed or fumished pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15{(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act), are filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). Copies of these reports, as well as any ameqdmem to these rspom are available free of
charge through our website at navient as s00n as le after they are electronically
filed with, or furnished ln the SEC The SEC maintains a website ihal onnldns reports, proxy and information

and other i garding our lings al hitps:/www.sec.gov.

In addition, copies of our Board idelines, Code of Busi Conduct {which includes the code of
ethics applicable to our Principal Executive Officer, Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer) and
the goveming d‘mlers for each commitiee of our Board of Direclors are available free of charge on our website at
navient. fi as well as in print to any shareholder upon request. We intend to
disclose any ammdmenls o orw'ahna!s from our Code of Business Conduct (to the extent applicable to our Principal
Executive Officer or Principal Financial and Accounting olﬁner) by malmu such information on our website.

Inf ined or d on the going i d by refs into and does not
form a part of this Form 10-K. Further, the Conweny’l rsferancel to Ihe UFth for these websites are intended to be
inactive textual references only.

USE OF NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

We prepare financial slalements and present financial resulls in accordance with GAAP. However, we also evaluate
our business segments and present our financial resulls on a basis that differs from GAAP. We refer to this different
basis of presenlalion as Core Eamings. which is a non-GAAP financial measure. We provide this Core Earnings
basis of presentation on aoonsohdatedhaansandiwaad'l business segment because this is what we review
internally when making g our performance and how we allocate resources. We also
include this information in our presentations with crodil rnhng agencies, lenders and inveslors. Because our Core

basis Is our of profit or loss for our segments, we are required by GAAP to provide
Core Eamings disciosures in the noles o our financial for our segments,

In addition to Core Eamings, we present the following other non-GAAP financial measures: Tangible Equity, Adjusted
antgi:la Equity Ratio, Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization Expense tEBI’!DA} {Ionhe
), and for Loan Losses Excluding E d Future R

Fully Charged-off Loans. Definitions for the non-GAAP ﬂnandal and ions are p belw
excep! that reconciliations of forward-looking non-GAAP fi are not provided the Company
is unable to provide such without ble effort due to the uncertainty and inharent difficulty of

g the and fi i impact of certain iterns, imlm!mg. but not limited to, the impact of any mark-to-
mwkal. unn'unoues resulting from our use of derivative instruments to hedge our economic risks. See
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition nr\d Results of Operations — Non-GAAP Financial
Measures” for a further di ion and a 4 GAAP net income and Core Eamings.




Business
Overview and Fund Is of Our B

Navient (Nasdag: NAVI) provides lechnology-enabled education finance and business processing solutions that
simplify complex programs and help millions of people achieve success. Our customer-focused, data-driven services
defiver exceptional results for clients in education, health care and government. Learn more at navient.com.

With a focus on data-driven insights, service, compliance and innovative support, Navient's business

© NAVIENT

(G

Federal Consumer
Education Loans Lending

@

Business

Processing

+ Federal Education Loans
We own a portfalio of $38 bilkon of federally guaranteed Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP)
Loans. As a servicer on our own portlolio and for third pan]es wa deploy data-driven approaches o suppor the
SUCCRSS. of our customers, Qur flexible and lable infr ges large vol of P
ifying the and i ly improving i

« Consumer Lending
We help students and families succeed through the college journey with innovative planning tools, student loans
and refinancing products. Our $17 billion Private Education Loan portfolio demonstrates high customer success
rates. In 2023, we originated approximately $1 billion of Private Education Loans.

= Business Processing
We our loan ic to provide ing solutions for approximately 500 public
sector and healthcare omamhons and their tens of millions of clients, patients, and constituents, Our suite of
. digital p ing and revenue cycle solutions enables our clients o deliver
better results for the peopde they serve.

L] ior O ional Perf with a Strong Custorner Service and Compliance Commitment

We help our customers — both individuals and instituions — navigate the path 1o financial success through
proactive, data-driven, simplified service and innovative solutions.

N Dn‘!l\rarlng !uparlcn‘ pcrrnrma ncu W‘hclner supporting student loan borrowers in successfully managing their
loans, designi s contact center solutions for public sector agencies, generating
i revnnua 1'01 i and medical sysh or helping a state manage communications or recover
revenue that funds essential services, Navient delivers value for our clients and customers.

We | our service ise, data-driven insights, logy platf , and scale lo
value for ourcllenrs

« Scalable, data-driven sclutions. Annually, we support tens of millions of people in conducting hundreds of
millions of transactions and interactions, Our systems are built for scale and rapid implementation, We harness
the power of data fo build tailored prog with hytics that optimize our clients’ results.

. ifying -] ses. On our clients’ behalf, we help individuals successfully navigate a broad
Our people and platf: simplify plex prog to help and

D af !
constituents ach;us their goals.




*  Improving customer experience and We i make te improve the cuslomer
experience, drawing from a variety of inputs including customer surveys, ane!yshs dcualumt lnqunries and
int data, and Across our
mpmsomnl]ws are trained to provide empathetic, accurate support.

s C i o i We mainlain a rebust, multi-layered li syslam and

thoroughly mdmland and comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws. We follow the industry-leading

“Three Lines Model” compliance framewaork. This framework and other compliance protocols ensure we adhere
1o key industry laws and regulations including bul not limited to: Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act
(FACTA]; Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA); Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (FDCPA); Electronic Funds
Transfer Act (EFTA); Equal Credit Opportunity Act (ECOA), Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLBA). Health Insurance
Portability and Accountabiity Act (HIPAA); IRS Publication 1075; Servicemembers Civil Relief Act (SCRA):
Miltary Lending Act (MLA); Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA); Truth in Lending Act (TILA); Unfair,
Deceptive, or Abusive Acts and Practices (UDAAP); state laws; and state and city licensing.

. ( soclal resp ibility. We are itted to ing to the social and economic wellbeing of our
wmum!es fostering ihe succeu olour customers; st.vppofunu a culture of integrity, iInclusion and equality in

; and Navient has eamed recognition from avsnei\r of
Iea:lng izations for our conti commi 1o fi i y. Our are
ities through company-sponsored volunteering and philanthropic programs.
Namrllrs i foa is hll . We g gies that minimi e enargy use in our office
and i of' " digital Navient prioritizes

the usage of power-saving features to our bu.llldings to reduce energy usage. Energy cﬂ\qur and reducing
carbon dioxide (CO2) and CO2 equivalents are among the many factors considered in our real estate decisions.

Strong F Per g in & Strong Capital Return

OQur 2023 results continue to demonstrate the strength of our business model and our ability to defiver predictable and
rmaringh.l cash flow and eamings in a variety of economic environments.

Our sig i capital which allows for a stmng capital retumn to our investors. Navient
expects to continue to mlum ewess capital to through di and share rep in accordance
with cur capital allocation policy.

By optimizing capital quacy and g capital 1o highly accretive opportunities, including organic growth and

acquisitions, we remain well posllioned to pay dividends and repurchase stock, while maintaining appropriate
leverage thal supports our credit ratings and ensures ongoing access to capital markets.

In December 2021, ourBoalBo!Dhlm PP a shara repurch the purch of up to
§1 billion of the Company's q stock. AL Dy n, 2023 $290 million relnaxﬂed in share
repurchase authorization.

To inform our capital allocation decisions, we use the Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio'" in addition to other metrics.

Our GAAP equity-to-asset ratio was 4.5% and our Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio'"! was 8.2% as of December 31,
2023,

(Dollars and shares in millions) __2023 2022

Shares repurchased 18.0 4

Reduction in shares outsianding 13% 15%

Total repurchases in dollars 5 310 3 400
Dividends paid s 7§ 9

Total Capital Returned $ 388 $ 491

GAAP equity-to-asset ratio 4.5% 4.2%
Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio!" 8.2% 7.7%

' ftem ks & non-GAAP financial Fora iption and iation, see ent's D) jon and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Non-GAAP F e

@ Gapital Retumad is defined as share repurchases and dividends paid.




Recent Business Developments

On January 30, 2024, as a result of an in-depth review of our MNavient d actions to
simplify cur company, reduce our expense base, and enhance our flexibility. The three strategic aclions are:

= Adopt a variable, outsourced servicing model. Navient entered into a binding letter of intent on January 293,
2024 that will transition our student loan servicing lo MOHELA, a leading provider of student loan servicing for
guvenme’ﬂ. and commercial enterprises, This ransaction is intended to create a variable cost structure for the

servicing of our student loan portiolios and provi ive unit ics across a wide range of servicing
volume scenalios MNavient and MOHEU\\MII work toward ensuring a seamless transition in the coming months
and g with unil g of their loans. This transition is expected to include over
800 employees b ing of MOHELA and utilize the same servicing system provider currently used
by Navient.

«  Explore strategic options for the L ing Navient has a process to explore

a range of value-creating oplions for our busmoss processing segment. Through varous subsidiary brands, this
segment provides high-quality business processing services to a variety of government and healthcare clients,
including hospitats, loli-road authorities, slate revenue divisions, and federal agencies. In conjunclion with the
decision lo culsource student loan servicing, axplomg options for the i
the opportunities for shared cost reduction. Navient is working with financial and legal advisors to assist the
Company in exploring strategic options for this segment, which may include a sale of the segment in whole orin
part.

=  Streamline shared services infrastructure and corporate footprint, As we implement the above actions, we
also plan to reshape our shared services funclions and corporate footprint to align with the needs of a mere
focused, flexible and streamlined company.

Implementation of these actions has begun and s expected to be largely complete over the next 18 to 24 months.

How We Organize Our Business.
‘We operate our business in three primary Federal E; ion Loans, C Lending and B
Processing.

NAVI=NT

|
Federal Consumer Business
Education Loans Lending Processing
-~ \ )
+ Federal Family = Privale Education * Government Services
Education Loan Refinance and * Healthcare Services
Program (FFELP) ISchool Loan
Originations
Federally gusranived losns 4
Education Loan
Portfolio

Federal Education Loans Segment

Navnem owns FFELP Loans and pemrme senvicing on this pmfoha We also service FFELP Loans owned by other

ions. Our icing quality, data-d and ion about federal repayment options
translate into positive results for the milions. olborlowers we serve, We generale revenue primarity through net
interest income on our FFELP Loans.

Navient's portfolio of FFELP Loans as of December 31, 2023 was $38 billion. We expect this portfolio to have an
amortization period in excess of 15 years, with a 7-year remaining weighled average life. The segment net interest
margin was 1.12% in 2023. Navient's goal is to support customers 1o successfully pay off their loans while optimizing
the performance of our FFELP Loan portfolio. As a result of the long-term funding strategy used for our FFELP Loan
portfolio and the guarantees provided on these loans, the portlolio g ¥ O i and




earnings and cash flows, As of Donrmcr 31, 2023, approximately 90% of the FFELP Loans haeld by Navient wera
funded to lerm with g-1 debl.

FFELP Loans are insured or by state or not-for-profit ag and are protected by contractual rights to
recovery from the United States pursuani lo guaranty agreements among the Depariment of Education (ED) and
these agencies. These guaranty agreemenis generally cover at least 97% of a FFELP Loan's principal and accrued
interest for loans that default, Legislation enacted in 2010 di i the FFELP program as of July 1, 2010, while
keeping terms and conditions of previous education loans made under the program intact. As a result of the FFELP
program being discontinued, this segment is expected to wind down over time.

Consumer Lending Segment

Navient owns, orig and i and i hool Private Education Loans. "Refinance” Private
Education Loans are loans where a borrower has refinanced their education loans, and In-schoal® Private Education
Loans are loans originally made to borrowers while they are atending school. We generate revenue primarily through
nel interest income on our Private Education Loan portfolio.

Through cur Earnest brand, we help students and tami'es on Ihe Dlannng and paying for college journey, Our digital

tools empower peopla to find and aid offers. We believe our 50 years of experience,
product design, digital marketing slrmoglns and arigination anﬂ servicing platform previde a unique competitive
advantage. We see meaningful growth opporiunities in origh q Private Loans, g g attractive

long-term, risk-adjusted retums,

Through cur Earnest and NaviRefi brands, our refinancing loan products enable college graduates and professionals
1o refinance their student loans at lower interest rates. At December 31, 2023, Navient held $9 billion of Private
Education Refinance Loans, with 2023 originations of $647 million compared to $1.7 bilion in 2022, The decrease in
originations is primarily the resull of borrowers with fixed interes! rate loans having less of an incentive to refinance in
light of the significant increase in inlerest rates that occurred in 2022 and 2023, Our Eamest in-school Private
Education Loan product offers consumer-friendly features to college stud and their cosigr who need addith
funding to pursue higher education. We also offer a parent lcan to help parents, guardians, or sponsors cover the
cost of a child's education. In-school criginations were $324 million in 2023 compared to §322 million in 2022,

w0 w2 202
®  Refinance Loan Originations per Year
= In-School Originations per Year

(Dollars in milllons) 021 2022 2023
Refinance loan ofiginations § 5811 § 1680 5 647 64?
In-school loan originations 5 212 § 322 §
Total loan originations § 6023 § 2002 § 0?1
Navient's total portfoho of Private Ei ion Loans as of D ber 31, 2023 was $17 billion, We expect the portfolic

to have an amortization period in excess of 15 years, with a S-year remaining weighled average life. The segment net
interest margin was 3.04% in 2023, Our goal is o support our customers to successiully pay off their loans, while
ing the of our Privale ion Loan portfolio,




Wa mrol‘ully manage the credit rlsk of our porifolio through rigorous unds iting, ham-quahty icing and risk

and use of and loan ificati As ol D 31, 2023,
apmxmaﬁe@y 70% of the Private Education Loans held by Navient were funded 10 term with non-recourse, long-term
securilization debl

Navient provides busi luti such as ich | contact center services, workflow processing,
and revenue cycle optimization. We | ge the same expertise and intell tools we use lo deliver successhul
results for portfolios we m Our support enables our chients to ensure betler :onshluenl outcomes, meel rapidly
changing needs, improve 1 logy, reduce op 9 manage risk a fimize revenue opportunities.

Our clients include:

* Government: We offer our solulions to federal agencies, stale governmenits, tolling and parking authorities,
and other public seclor clients.

«  Healthcare: Our clients include hospitals, hospital systems, medical centers, large physician groups, other
healthcare providers and public health departments.

In this segment, Navient generated net income of $28 million in 2023, down $12 million from 2022, and EBITDA of
$39 million in 2023, down $14 million from 2022, The decrease in EBITDA'" was a result of a $9 million decrease in

revenue due to the 1 $83 million i from the wind-down of pandemic-related contracts,

which was partially offset by a $74 million (or 30%] increase in revenue from ices for our

clients. We have been able to Qe our p e on p inlo new service areas, and we see

g p ities for our

Other Segment

This segment consists of our corporate liquidity mrﬂollo gains and losses mourm:l on the rauurchase oldeb‘t

unallocated expenses of shared services (which i 9 Y i

expenses.

Human Capital

Employing a talented team is ceniral to Navient's success, and our ive value pr iion for pi ive and

current employees includes a strong lnd poslwa cultural framework, comprehensive benefits and compwn\re
ation, and a Io ity and Tair and equitable trealmenl. We succeed in delivering business

results by altracting, retaining ivating and ping a skilled and energized workforce.

Core Values and Code of Condt Our | work o the fi ial success of our customers by

delivering innovative solutions and insights with compassion and personalized service. Qur employees are guided by
our core values:

+  We strive lo be the best. By ing the right we deliver on our promises lo each
other and those we serve.

= We're sironger together. We d b were i ive and authentic, and we know good ideas can
come from anywhere and anyone,

= We eam the trust of our customers and colleagues, We hold each other accountable and act with integrity.
*  We innovale always and everywhere. We empower each other to think differently, develop ourselves and
grow our Company.

Our Code of Busi Conduct provides clear principles and sets high expectations for all Navient employees,

officers and directors. We regularly refresh and provide annual training on the Code of Business Conduct.

Ci ity Ei Our team also the corr ithes where we live and work. The Navient

Community Fund supports organizations that work to address the root causes that limit financial success.

Nawvient oﬂars maonthly padd time off for ! to for Navient. I i our
Through led eﬂorls. Team Navient gives back to our Io:al communities by

supporting a varnely of local g serving of families each year.

U item s a non-GAAP financial measure. For a ian and D kon and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Non-GAAP melmm




Commuuon. Woﬂnos.s lnd' Bomm‘s. Navient ol’fars mmpnl]lhn equitable pay designed to attract, retain and

highly lifi ap cludes a mix of lixed and variable elements
aligned with the Cmm‘fﬁ !ong-l.erm goals. \M! i i program o administer
which reward mlland for the achi of busis results,
faction, and with reg i
Navient provides a ve and itive benefits Il Io meet the needs of empbym and Ihewr
families, Wepmvld!wr ploy with o assistin their phy
health, such as medical plan choices; a 401(k) savings plan with a match; an ! sm [+l

program; pald time off and holiday schedule; life and disability insurance; parental leave; adoption assistance; tuition
reimbursement. and numerous health support and weliness programs. We also offer a combination of in-office,
hybrid and remote work schedules: to meet the needs of our employees and clients.

Employee Ei and Devol Navient regul ploy and works 1o build a
strong team through career development and succession planning.

ining strong loy gag is a pricrity for Navient, and we routinely condud engagement

surveys via an indep firm ing us to better wd and i yee morale,

satisfaction, and engagement. We :.omptele a rigorous review of results for each hutlmsa unit and division,

use action planning teams to analyze and interpret results, and address areas of opportunity to Improve

engagement and retention.

*  MNavient has been recognized as an APEX award winner by Training magazine — the premier learning
Industry awards pmgrsm rocomlmlnn the most successful leaming and development programs in the world.

‘We offer opp phoy to participate in both internal and external programs to suppert their
growth am:l dmlwmsm
= We dy conduct to assess Navient's bench strength and

teadlnes: no backfill for all Ieadershlp pudhans ln Ihe top three levels at the Company. Development plans
guide team members to prepare for fulure opportunities.

inclusml Diversity and' Eqmly W?lh a commitment to inclusion, diversity and aql.iry Navient maintains a
where d and

d for who they are as i Threugh our inclusi
dvafslhrand ml!ypmvwsm iati Navient er ploy lead and icipate in initiatives such as our
Inclusion, Diversity & Equity Council and inclusion and diversity igns, Our staff-led
Employoe Resource Groups enable lndhdﬂmls to connect based on their i develop lead: i

and p te a culture of incl and cpp ity for all. To atiract a diverse population ufpolcnuak

employoes Nawvient markets open positions through over 100 diversity job boards, extensive natienal, state, and
community-based alliances, and job banks across the country,

Navient is a member of Employers for Pay Equity; has been recognmed by the Human Rrghls Carmalgrl via ils
Corporate Equality Index; s a member of the Veterans Jobs Mission; and has been d as a Milltary Friendly
Employer and Military Friendly Spouse Employer. We are itted to g each of our feels
walcomed, valued, and included, and can bring their whole selves to work so they can contribute in a meaningful
w‘ay We boim that being deliberalely inclusive creates a diverse, highly ongagod workforce that drives positive
We fuel | jon and growth by provid for emp with diverse

pedtm to come together and work toward new solutions o enhanr:e the financial success of our customers,
and we ptg:u‘e compassionale, personalized senvice with a workforce that reflects and understands our diverse
customer base.

Team S.‘zo As of December 31, 2023, we had i y 4,500 employ None of our loy are covered
by bargaining ag




Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in cony 1 with our o i and
refated notes included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. This mscussm and anmam also contains famw-vookm
statements and should be read in conjunction with the disclosures and info ined in “Fi d-Looking

and Cautionary Staternenis™ and "Risk Factors™ in this Form 10-K.

The abjective of this discussion and analysis is to allow investors to view the Company from management's
pmpocﬂm mmm mpmdd‘emamdarwh narrative context for how ourmmagamem mwsour

i dditional context within which fo A5SESS OUr Op g resulls, and i ion on
the quality and variability of our eamings, liquidity and cash flows. The i l.‘lal!o#mvsas i focused on
2023 versus 2022 results. Discussion and analysis of 2022 results compared to 2021 is i fin “Ma s

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2022 as filed with the SEC on February 24, 2023.

Sel Historical F fi and Ratios
Years Ended December 31

n millions, ex share data) 2023 2022 2021
GAAP Basis
Net income 5 228 § 645 § 77
Diluted camings per common share 5 185 § 443 § 418
Waeighted average shares used to compute diluted

eamings per 123 144 172
Relumn on assets -36% BT% BB
Dividends per common share 5 64 % B4 5 B4
Retum on common stockholders' equity 8% 2% 2%
Dividend payout ratio 35% 14% 15%
Average equitylaverage assels 4.43% 3.78% 3.20%
Total assels 5 61375 § TOTS5 § 80,605
Total ] 57628 § BEBBG 5 T6.978
Total Navient Ccrpuaum stockholders’ equity ] 2760 § 2877 § 2,587
Book valua per common share H 2432 § 286 § 16.89
Core Eamings Basis'™
Nel income'™ 5 303 S 458 § 551
Diluted eamings per commen share!”! § 245 § 319§ azn
Weighted omge shares used to compute diluled

samings per 123 144 172
Nalhhcutmu@n Federal Educalion Loans segment 1.42% 1.01% 0%
Met interest mangin, Consumer Lending segment 3.04% 2.81% 2.92%
Retum on assets A% 82% 68%
Education Loan Portfolios
Ending FFELP Loans, net $ 37025 § 43535 § 52,641
Ending Private Education Loans, net 16,902 18.725 20.171
Ending iotal edwcation loans, net 5 54827 § 62250 % 72812

FFELP Loans $§ 411:1 § 49,183 § 56,018

Average Private Education Loans 18,463 20,524 21,225
Avarage iotal education loans $ 59654 § 69,707 § 77,243

m lem is & non-GAAP financial measure. For i description and reconciiation, see “Non.GAAP Financial Measures — Core Earnings.”




The Year in Review

We prepare financial stalements and present financial resulls in accordance with GAAP. However, we also evaluale
our business segments and present financial results on a basis that differs from GAAP. We refer to this different basis
of presentation as Core Eamnings. We provide this Core Eamings basis of presentation on a comoiﬁalad basis md
for each business segment because this is what we review intemally when mahmg
our performance and how we allocate msnurcss We also include this information in our prusemxhnns with credit
rating ies, lenders and i our Core Earnings basis of p ds lo our segr
financial pmsenlaﬂons we arne roquhed by GAAP to provide certain Core Eammgs disclosures i m the noles to our

for our ] See "Non-GAAP Financial Measures — Core Eamings”
for a further ds ion and a iliation baty GAAP net income and Core Eamings.

2023 GAAP net income was $228 million ($1.85 diluted eamings per share), compared with 3645 million ($4.49
diluted eamings per share) in the prior year. See “Resulls of O — GAAP Comparison of 2023 Results with
2022 for a discussion of the primary contributors to the chanqe in GAAP eamings between periods.

2023 Core Eamnings net income was $303 million ($2.45 diluted Core Eamings per share), compared with 3458
million ($3.19 diluled Core Eamings per share) for 2022, See "Seg Results” for a d ion of the primary
contributors fo the change in Core Eamings between periods.

Financial highlights of 2023 include:

Federal Education Loans segment;
. Net income of $319 million.
- Net interest margin of 1.12%.
Consumer Lending segment:
. Net income of $287 million.
. Net interest margin of 3.04%.
«  Originated $871 million of Private Education Loans.

. Revenue of $321 milkon.
. Net income of $28 million and EBITDA(™ of $39 million,
Capital, funding and liquidity:
. GAAP equity-to-asset ratio of 4.5% and adjusted tangible equity ratio’! of 8.2%.

. Repurchased $310 million of common shares, $280 million common share repurchase authority remains
outstanding.

. Paid $78 million in common stock dividends.

- Retired $850 million of unsecured debt, resulting in a pre-tax loss of $8 million.

. Issued $1.0 billion of unsecured debt and $1.2 billion of asset-backed securities.
Operaling Expenses:

. Operating expenses of $720 million, excluding $80 million of i lated

W ltem ks a non-GAAP financial measure. For a description and reconciliation, see “Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”




Results of Operations

GAAP Income Statements

Basic earnings per common share
Diluted sarnings per common share
Dividends per common share

023 vs. 2022 2022 vs. 2021
— b X
3 4T% § 502 W%
174 15 14 1
91 147 S8 _ 1967
1.196 ar 575 a2
P, (. [ .
{258) 23) {211) 16)
44 56 140 230

o535 an. 283 4 - 3 {4

2023 2022
$ 2837 § 1966
1.369 1195
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4419 22
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GAAF Comparison of 2023 Results with 2022

For the year ended December 31, 2023, net income was $228 million, or $1.85 diluted eamings per common share,
compared with net income of $645 million, or $4.49 diluted eamings per commen share, for the year-ago period,

The primary contributors to the change in net income are as follows:

Net interest income decreased by $259 million primarily as a result of a $129 million decrease in mark-to-
markel gains on fair value hedges recorded in interest expense, the paydown of the FFELP and Privale
Educalion Loan portfolios and an increase in interest rales,

Provisions for loan losses increased $44 million from $79 million to $123 million:
o The provision for FFELP Loan losses increased $56 million from $0 to $56 million.

o The asion for Privale Loan losses di d $12 million from $79 million to
$67 million,
The FFELP Loan provision for loan losses of $56 million in the current period was primarily a result of the
continued extension of the portfolio and the in both the exp future defaults and
the ium all to all future defaults.

The Private Education Loan provision for loan losses of $67 million in the current period included $25
miflion in with loan igi $35 million related to intemal policy changes being made to
reflect i related to school on certain

of private loans, $29 mmnon related to changes in the net charge-off rales on defaulted loans, $23 million
in connection with the resolution of certain private legacy loans in bankruptcy and $22 million related to a
general reserve build, memﬂroﬂwtbyase?nﬂlm reduction in connection with the
adoption of a new Update (ﬁSU] No. 2022 02, “Financial
Instruments — Credit Losses: Troubled Debt R and Vintage D ion of
579 milion in the year-ago perod included $34 million in connection with loan onghahms 533 million
related lo changes in the nel charge-off rates on defaulled loans and $12 million related to a general
reserve build.

We adopted ASU No. 2022-02 on January 1, 2023. This new ASU eliminates the troubled debt
restructurings (TDRs) recognition and measurement Prior to this mew guk asit
relates to interest rate concessions granted as part of our Private Loan
a discounted cash flow model was used to calculate the amount of interest forgiven for loans that were in
the program and the present value of that interest rate concession was included as a part of the
allowance for loan less. This new guidance no longer allows the measurement and recognition of this
element of cur allowance for loan less for new modifications that occur subsequent to January 1, 2023,
As of December 31, 2022, the allowance for loan loss included $77 million related to this nleresl rate
ion it of the alk for loan loss. We elected to adopt this amendment using a
prospective transition mathod which has resulted and will continue to result in the $77 milion releasing
between 2023 and 2024 as the borrowers exil their current modification programs. $67 million of the $77
million was released in 2023, and we expect that the remaining $10 million will release in 2024,

Assel y and busi ing revenue d d $15 million primarily as a resull of the
expected $83 mlkon leducllon in lewanue from the wind-down of Business F'ruvessmg pandemic-relatad
contracts, which was partially offset by a $74 million increase in revenue from services for our traditional
Business Processing clients. The remaining $6 million decrease was related to revenue eamed in our
Federal Education Loans segment and was a resull of exiling thal business line in fourth-quarter 2022,

Losses on debl repurchases increased $8 million. We repurchased $850 million of debt at an $8 million
loss in the curent peried. There were no debt repurchases in the year-ago peried. The benefit of these

purch; isa ion of interest exp in the future.
Net gains on derivalive and Mdglng aw\-mas dwessad smo ll||||-kl'l The primary factors affecting the
change were intarest rate fi of based upon many

factors including changes in interest rates and other market factors. As a resull, net gains and losses on
derivative and hedging activities may vary significantly in future periods

i $24 million primanly related to a $73 million contingency loss accrual
{mgulaloMInneu expense) recorded in the second half of 2023 related to recent developments in
mnnemn with Consumct Financial Protection Bureau (CFPB) matters. The remaining 549 million
d was primarily a result of a decline in overall servicing costs as well as
exiting ths Federal Education Loans segment's assel recovery business line in the fourth quarter of 2022,




asset impai t and izat d $9 million

ill and
primarily due to $6 million of impairment in 2022 of a Busi P

relationship assel as a result of exiting a line of business. No acquired mr.engmle asaels were impaired in
2023,

. R jeclined $11 million. In 2023, these expenses relate primarily 1o severance costs
incurred in oonﬂocﬂcrb with the CEC transition as well as a facility lease Iermdml]on and impalrmenl ofa
facility held for sale in conjunction with the § ion of certain effici in
2022 primarily relates to costs for severance and facihry!aaae lemnaunns in c.nnnecwn wn‘h the
Company's decision to exit the FFELP asset lines.

. The effective income tax rates for the current and year-ago periods were 27% and 22%. respectively,
The movement in the alraane income tax rate was primarily driven by the reduction aItax and interest

on state L in tax in the y go period and ch in the valuati
attributable to the deferred tax amrfwmw disallowed interest axpense carmyovers in the current
period.

We repurchased 18.0 million and 24.8 million shares of our common stock during 2023 and 2022, respectively. Asa
result of repurchases, our average oulstanding diluted shares decreased by 21 million common shares {or 15%) from
the year-ago period.




Segment Results

Federal Education Loans Segment

The foll g table p Core E: results for our Federal Education Loans segment.
Years Ended Decombar 31 % Inereass [Decroass)
2023 vs. 2022 vs.
[Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021 2022 2021
Intarest incoma:
FFELP Loans § 2901 § 1955 § 1405 48% Ire
Cash and investments i} 32 — 138 100
Todal interest income 2977 1,987 1,405 50 41
Total intorest axpense 2407 1,468 B30 o kel
Nel interest income 480 519 575 8) (10)
Less: provision for loan losses 56 — — 00 —
Nel interest incomae after provisson for loan losses 424 51 57! (18) {10}
Olher income (loss:
Servicing revenue 52 85 162 {20y (60}
Assel recovery and business processing revenue - L3 51 {100}
14 3 25 {55) 24
Total clher income (=] 102 1(35) 157}
Direct operating expenses 72 106 223 (32) {52)
Income bafore income tax expense a8 515 580 118) (13)
Income tax expense 99 108 136 (8) (21}
Net income 3 318 § 07 § 454 gﬂn 1
NS L1 S UL N

Highlights of 2023 vs. 2022
. Net income was $319 million compared to $407 million.

. Net interest income decreased $39 million primardy due to the impact of increasing interest rates on the
different index resels for the segment's assels and debl. as well as reducing floor income earned on the
FFELP Loans. The paydown of the loan portfolio also reduced nel interest income. These decreases
were partially offset by a $48 million benefit in 2023 related to the decrease in the speed of loan premium
ameortization in connection with the continued extension of the FFELP lean portfolie.

. Provision for loan losses increased $56 million. The $56 million of provision for loan losses in 2023 was
primarily a resull of the continued extension of the portfolio and the resulling increase in both the
expected fulure defaults and the premium allocated to all expected future defaults.

o Met charge-offs were $63 million compared to $40 million.
o Definquencies greater than 20 days were $2.3 billlon compared to $3.3 billion.
o Forbearances were $6.1 bilbon compared to $7.6 billion.

. Other income decreased $36 million primarily due o the discontinuation in 2022 of contract-exit ransition
services provided to third parties, as well as the paydown of the portfolio on which servicing fees are
eamned.

. Expenses were $34 million lower as a resull of the paydown of the loan portfolio, lower contract-exit
Iransition services referenced above, as well as exiling the assel recovery business line in the fourth
quarter of 2022,




Key performance melrics ane as follows:

Years Ended Decomber 31,
2022

(Dollars in millions) 201
et interest margin 112% 1.01% Y
FFELP Loans
FFELP Loan spread 1.23% 141% 1.06%
Provision for loan losses 5 56§ -5 -
Net charge-offs s 83§ 0 s 6
Net charge-off rate 9% 0% DE%
Greater than 30-days dalinquancy rate 13.9% 15.6% 10.6%
Greater than 90-days delinquency rate 7.5% 9.6% 4.8%
Forbearance rate 16.8% 18.1% 12.4%
Average FFELP Loans 5 41191 § 49183 § 56,018
Ending FFELP Loans, nat $§ 9% § 4358 5 B2EM
{Dedlars in billions)
Total federal loans serviced 5 44 8 5 § L
Net Interest Margin

The following table details the netl interest margin.

Years Ended Docember 31,
2023

202 W 203
FFELP Loan yield 6.5@% S.ﬁ'& 1.91%
Floor Income 60
FFELP Loan net yisld J’ 2.51
FFELP Loan cost of flunds [5 8I| ;2 &ﬁ; ;1 45)
FFELP Loan spread 11
uwnmmmsmwmu tlll t_) IO?J
Nat interest margin' I.E'.Vo 1&'&
M The g of ing assots bor the respect are:

Vurl&\did Ihm 31,
2023 2021

(Dablars in millions)

FFELP Loans § #411m § Mnn S 56,018

Other interest-saming assots 1,673 2110 1816

Tetal FFELP Loan inferest-saming assals 3 4:&4; 51,293 § STIW
As of December 31, 2023, our FFELP Loan portfolic Iv!aied $3r9 hlloﬂ. comprised of $13.6 billion of FFELP
Stafford Loans and $24.3 billion of FFELP Ci i Loans. The rage life of these portfolios as of
December 31, 2023 was 7 years and 8 years, r ty ing a Constant Prep Rate (CPR) of 7% and
5%, respectively.
Floor Income
The folk g table on a Core ings basis the ability of the FFELP Loans in our portfolio lo eam Floor
Income after December 31, 2023 and 2022, based on interest rales as of those dates.
{[Dollars in billions) M MM
[Education loans sligible to eam Floor Income 7T S5
Less: post-March 31, 2008 disbursed loans required
lowbawﬂw (17.9) (20.5)

hedged Floor Incoma (3.2} (12.3)

Educahonloamﬂwewum Floar Incomo afler
rebales and sconomically hedged s 166 § 104
[Education loans eaming Floor income 5 31 5 —
The following table p a projection of the average balance of FFELP Consolidation Loans for which Fixed Rate
Floor Income has been economically hedged with derivatives for the period January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2028,
[Dollars in billiens) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
Avetage balance of FFELP Consolidation Loans
whose Floor Income is economically hedged 5 18 § 8 5 T § 3 5 3




Servicing Revenue
g revenue d $13 million primarily as a result of the paydown of the FFELP Loan portfolio serviced.

Asset Ry ry and Pre ing R

Assel recovery and business processing revenue decreased $6 million as a result of exiting the assel recovery
business in the fourth quarter of 2022.

Other Revenue

Other revenue decreased $17 million primarily due to the discontinuation in 2022 of contract-axit transilion services
provided to third parties.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses for the Federal Ed Loans primarily include costs incurred to perform servicing
on our FFELP Loan portiolio and federal education loans held by other institutions, Expenses were $34 million lower
as a result of the paydown of the loan portfolio, lower coniract-exit transition services referenced above, as well as
exiting the asset recovery business line in the fourth quarter of 2022,

Various Federal Loan Forgiveness Plans

On August 24, 2022, the Biden-Harris Administration anncunced its Student Debt Relief (SDR) Plan. The SDR Plan
would have provided up to $20,000 in time: debt relef to in lified recipients with ED held student loans
md a mpaymem pause on ED held loans. Privately held FFELP Loans, like ours, were not eligible for debt

A number of states and private organizations initiated legal challenges to the SDR Plan in varlous courts throughout
the country. On June 30, 2023, the Supreme Court ruled that ED was prohibited from implementing the SDR Plan,
and student loan payments on ED held loans resumed in October 2023, After the invalidation of the SOR Plan, ED
announced thal it had begun a new rulemaking process wunnsdulolrmwurslqpﬂwﬂedphlmhﬁlnhnrmm
whld\ ooulﬂ mduds bormowears with privately held FFELP Loans. ED held several public meeting sessions with a

in the fourth quarter of 2023 and In the first quarter of 2024. ED is expecied Lo
publish p d latiens for public in May 2024,

In addition, on July 10, 2023, ED issued final regulations on income-driven repayment plans for Direct loans, which
are student loans held by ED. Eligible FFELP borrowers can access the new changes by consolidating their loans
into the Direct Loan Program. The new regulations are effective July 1. 2024; however, ED has elected early
implementation for some features starting July 30, 2023. The regulations provide a lower monthly loan payment on a
Direct loan by decreasing discretionary income (i.e., taxable income over 225% of the federal poverty guideline),

g the p of mneﬂuafmus!hepalﬂmmaﬂmbanln&%(\‘ot
mdergm&mes} and pmvndng the opllon for married borrowers to exclude their spouse’s income from baing
factored by filing a separate lax retum. Other changes provide for the elimination of accrued interest that is not
coverad by the monuwf payment amount, wwde credit towards loan forgiveness thal counts cerain penods of

Wt and f a shorter loan f period (10-y ) for s with an original principal
balance less than or equal to $12,000, and credit toward loan forgh, for eligible pay on a Direct or FFELP
lpan that is repaid by a Direct Consolidation loan. This new i dri plan may i

consolidation activity in the future as FFELP borrowers consolidate their Ioans into the Direct Loan Program in order
1o be eligible for the new income-driven repayment plan. This could have a material impact on the Company's results.
in future periods.




Consumer Lending Segment

The q table Core Earmings results for our Consumer Lending segment.
Years Ended December 31, % Increase (Decrease)
2023 vs 2022 vs.

(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021 2022 2021
Interest income:

Private Education Loans $ 1368 § 1195 § 1.8 15% 1%

Cash and investiments 27 10 2 170 400
Interest income 1.396 1,205 1.183 16 2
Interest expense 816 611 541 34 13
Net interast income 580 584 642 {2} {7
Less: provision for loan losses 67 78 (1) (15) 230
Net interast Income after provision for

loan losses 513 515 703 == (27)
Other income (Joss):

Servicing revenue 12 12 6 — 100

Onther revenue 2 1 — 100 100

Gains on sales of loans _ _ Ll ] (100)
Total other income 14 13 a7 8 {87)
Direct operaling expenses 151 148 162 2 9)
Income before income tax expense 376 380 638 1) (40)
Income lax expense 89 80 146 1 (45)
Net income: $ 287 5 300 § 492 (4)% (39)%

Highlights of 2023 vs, 2022

Originated $371 million of Private Education Loans compared to $2.0 billion,

o Refinance Loan originations were $647 million compared to $1.7 billion. The decrease in
onpnanms s pmrii:.r the result of burrmrs with fixed interest rate loans having less of an
iin light of the in interest rates that occurred during 2022
and 2023 whlm was primarily the result of historically high inflation.

o In-scheol loan originations were $324 million compared to $322 million.

Net income was $287 million compared to $300 million.

Net interest income $14 million primarily due to the pay of the loan portfolio, offset by an
increase in the net interest margin primarily due 1o improved funding spreads.

Provision for loan losses decreased $12 million. The provision for loan losses of $67 million in 2023
included $25 million in connection valh loan onginations, $35 million related to internal policy changes
being made lo reflect ch i related to school misconduct discharges on
certain populations ofumaw loans, §28 miilbun related to changes in the net charge-off rates on
defaulted loans, $23 million in connection with the resolution of certain private legacy leans in bankruptey
and $22 million related to a general reserve build, which was partially offset by a 367 million reduction in
connection with the adoption of a new accounting standard (see “Results: of Operations — GAAP
Comparison of 2023 Results with 20227 for lurlher details). The provision of $79 million in the year-ago
period included $34 million in with loa i $33 million related to changes in the net
charge-off rates on defaulted loans and $12 mﬂson related 1o a genaral reserve build,

© Exciuding the $25 million and $30 million, respectively, related to the change in the net charge-off
rate on defaulted loans, net charge-offs were $273 million compared with §313 million.

o Private Education Loan delinquencies greater than 80 days: $380 million, down $31 milkon from
$411 million.

° Private Education Loan forbearances: $363 million, down $38 million from $401 milion,
Expenses increased $3 million.




Key performance melrics ane as follows:

(Dollars in millions) _wes w20
Segment net interest margin 304% 281% 2.92%
Private Education Loans (indluding Refinance Loans):
Private Education Loan spread 3.18% 2.95% 3.12%
Provision for loan losses £ 67 % 7§ (B1)
Net charge-offs'"! $ 7§ 3§ 153
Met charge-off rate’"! 1.54% 1.59% TE%
Greater than 30-days delinguency rate 51% 5.0% 32%
Greater than 90-days delinguency rate 2.3% 2.2% 1.5%
Forbearance rate 21% 21% 256%
Average Private Education Loans s 18463 § 20524 § 21.225
Ending Private Education Loans, net $ 16902 § 18725 § 20171
Private Education Refinance Loans:
Met charge-offs $ 32 s 20 § "
Greater than 90-day delinquency rate A% 2% A%
Average balance of Private Education Refinance Loans s 9206 § 9984 § 8,876
Ending balance of Private Education Refinance Loans $ 8752 § 9516 $ 9,791
Private Loan origi $ 647§ 1680 $ 5811

n Exchudos $25 million, $30 million and $16 milion of charge-offs on e axpected lutlune recoverios of pravioualy fully changed-off laans in 2023,

2022 and 2021, respectvely. B8 & reswt of INceasing the net change-off Mo on defaubed ans.

Net Interest Margin
The following table details the net interest margin.

Years Ended December 31

2023 2022 1
Privale Education Loan yield T42% 5.82% 557%
Privale Education Loan cost of funds (4.24) (2 87) (2.45)
Private Education Loan spread 3.8 285 12
Other interest-eaming asset spread impact {.14) {14] (200
Net interest margin!") 3.04% 281% 2.92%

L The: avarage balances of (e iress-caming assets o the nespettive penods ane

Years Ended December 31
3 2022 2021

{Dollars in millions) 202

Private Education Loans $ 18 m H Jﬂm 5 2225
Other interest-eaming assels TBY
Total Private Education Loan inlerest-eaming assels & Z!EIOO ] 22012

The increase in the net interest margin from the prior years is primarily a result of improved funding spreads which
was primarily the result of a portion of the variable rate education loans being funded by fixed rate debtin an
increasing interest rate environment.

As of December 31, 2023, our Private Education Loan portfolio totaled $16.9 billion, comprised of $8.8 bilion of
refinance loans and $8.1 billion of non-refinance loans. The weighled-average life of this io as of December 31,
2023 was 5 years and 5 years, respectively, assuming a Constant Prepayment Rate (CPR) of 10% and 10%,
respectively.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for Private E Loan losses $12 milion. The provision for loan losses of $67 million in
2023 included $25 million In connection with loan originations, $35 mlllon m{md to internal policy changes being
made 1o reflect tions related 1o school h on certain p of
private loans, $29 million related Io changes in the net charge-off rates on defaulted loans, $23 million in connection
with the resolution of certain private legacy loans in bankrupicy and $22 million related ta a general reserve build.
This was partially offsel by a $67 million in ion with the adk of a new ing slandard (see
"Results of Operations — GAAP Comparison of 2023 Results with 20227 for further details). The provision of §79
million in the year-ago period $34 million in ¢ with loan originations, $33 miliion related to changes
in the net charge-off rates on defaulted loans and $12 million related to a general reserve build,




Operating Expenses

for our lending L include costs to originate, acquire, service and collect on our

o
consumer loan portfolio. Operating expenses increased 53 million.

The foll g table p Core E: gs results for our Business Processing segment.

Years Ended December 31, % Increase (Decrease)

2023 vs. 2022 vs.

{Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021 2022 2021
Business processing revenue § 3215 330§ 488 3 (32)%
Direct operating expenses 285 280 360 2 (22)
Income before income tax expense 36 S0 128 (28) (61}
Income tax expense 8 10 29 (20) (66)
Net income $ 28 § § 99 130)% (60)%

Highlights of 2023 vs. 2022

. Revenue was $321 million, $9 million lower due to a $74 million increase in revenue from services for our
traditional Business Processing clients, which was mare than offset by the expected $83 million reduction

in revenue from the wind-down of pandemic-related contracts.
. Net income was $28 million compared to $40 million.

. EBITDA™ was $39 million, down $14 million, primarily the result of the revenue decrease discussed

above,

Key performance metrics are as lollows:

As of December 31,
(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Revenue from govemment services $ 200 § 187 § 258
Rewvenue from healthcare services 121 143 230
Total fee revenue § 3211 § 330 § 488
EBITDA!" 5 3 5 53 § 136
EBITDA margin'"! 12% 16% 28%
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Other Segment

The following table Core E: gs results for our Other segment.
Years Ended December 31 % Increase rease|
2023 vs. 2022 vs.
(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021 2022 2021
Net interest loss afler provision for loan losses $ M4 s (87) § (69) 3% 28%
Other income (loss):
Other revenue 5 _ 5 100 (100)
Losses on debt repurchases (8) — {73) 100 {100}
Total other income (loss) {3) _ (68) {100} (100}
Expenses:
shared servi P g axp
Unallocated information technology costs 80 85 65 (8) 31
Unallocated corporate costs 212 157 397 35 )
Intal unallJoca‘wEI shared sefvlcles ‘operating expenses 292 242 462 21 {48}
oxpenses 25 38 26 {31) 38
Total expenses T 14 43)
Loss before income tax benefit 434) — (365) (625) 19 (42)
Income tax benefit (103} 78) ;13 ) 3 (42)
Net loss §__(33) ﬁ 5% @)%

Net Interest Loss after Provision for Loan Losses

Net interest loss after provision for lean losses is due to the negative carrying cost of our corporate liquidity porifolio,
The amount of the net interest loss is primarily a result of the size of the liquidity portfolio as well as the cost of funds
of the debt funding the corporate liquidity portfolio.

Shared i P

Unallocated shared services op 0 exp are cosis pri y related to hnology cosls related o
i and stock-based p v A ting. finance, legal, compliance and risk

related human certain it and the Board of
Directors. Regulatory-related expenses include actual setiemant amounts as wul as lhm-paﬂy professional fees we
incur in connection with such regulatory matters and are p d net of any | for covered
costs related lo such matiers. Expenses increased $50 million from the prior year primarily as a result of a $73 million
increase in reguiatory-related g elated were $80 milion and $7 million in 2023 and
2022, ely, with 2023 i ling a $73 million ¢ loss accrual related to recent developments in

connection 1o CFPB matters. The remaining $23 millon decrease In expenses was primarly the result of engeing
initiatives to reduce costs and improve operating efficiency

See ‘Note 12—C Conti ies and * for a on of legal and i matters
where itis by ible that a loss y exists. The Company s unable to anticipate the timing of a
resolution or the impact thal certain matters may have on the Company’s consolidated financial position. liquidity,
results of operation or cash flows. As a result, it is not possible at this time to arange of p

if any, for amounts that may be payable in connection with certain matters and reserves have not been established. It
is possible that an adverse ruling or rulings may have a material adverse impact on the Company.

2 ina/Other R ization Exp

These expenses declined $11 million. In 2023, these expenses relate primarily to severance costs incurred in
connection with the CEO transition as well as a fauﬂlyiam termination and impairment of a facility held for sale in

i with the impl ntation of cerain effi in 2022 primarily related to costs for
severance and facility Iom in ion with the Company's decision to exit the FFELP asset recovery
business and consolidate certain business lines.
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Financial Condition

This section i fi ion reg g the activity and credit performance metrics of our education
loan portfolio.

Summary of our Education Loan Portfolio
Emding Education Loan Balances, nel

December 31, 2023

FFELP FFELP Total Private
Stafford and  Consolidation FFELP Education Total
(Dollars in millions) Other Loans Loans Loans Portfolio
Teotal education loan portfolio:
In-schoal 5 12 % -_— -] 12 % 70 3 82
Grace, repayment and other'? 13,708 24,420 38,128 17,443 55,577
Total 13.720 24,420 38,140 17,519 55,659
Allowance for loan losses (158) (59) (215) 1 (832)
Total education loan portfolio s 13.564 & 24.361 3 3?192‘5 $ 16902 § 54827
% of total FFELP 36% B4% 100%
% of lotal 25% 44% 69% 3% 100%
December 31, 2022
FFELP FFELP Tolal Private
Stafford and Consalidation FFELP Education Total
(Dallars in millions) Other Leans Loans Loans Partfolia
Total education loan portfolio:
In-school $ 16 § - § 16 % 54 § 70
Grace, repayment and other®® 15,834 27,897 43,731 19471 63,202
Total 15.850 27,897 43,747 19,525 63,272
Allowance for loan losses (158) (83) (222) (800) (1,022
Total education loan portfolio S 15691 § 27834 § 431525 $ 18725 562250
% of total FFELP 36% Ba% 100%
% of lotal 25% 5% T0% 30% 100%
December 31, 2021
FFELP FFELP Total Private
Stafford and Consolidation FFELP Education Total
(Dollars in millions) Other Loans Loans Loans Portfolio
Total education loan portiolio:
In-schoal " 20 § - § 20 3 9 $ 39
Grace, repayment and other® 18.379 504 52,883 21,161 74,044
Total 18,399 34,504 52,903 21,180 74,083
Allowance for loan losses 180} 82) 262) 1,009y _ (1.271)
Total education loan portfolio i 18.219 i 34,422 2 52i5¢1 i 20,171 §?2 B12
% of total FFELP 5% 65% 100%
% of total 25% A% 72% 28% 100%
m Loans for w4l Bttandng aronot o mako payments on ha loan
o Includes |oans in defemint of foibearance.
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Education Loan Activity

Year Ended Docember 31, 2023

FFELP FFELP Total Private
and C FFELP  Edi I Total
(Dollars in millions) Other Loan Loans Loans Portfolio
ini balance $ 15691 § 2‘? 334 543525 § 18725 $5 62250
Acquisiti ginations and purchases)"! = = 970 970
Capitalized inferest and premium/discount
amortization sT7 616 1183 184 13717
Refinancings and consalidations to third
parties (859) (1.811)  (2,670) (238)  (2,909)
Repayments and other (1.845) (2,278) _ (4.123) 2,7 861)
Ending balance 3 13,564 S 24361 $37925 S 16902 $ 54827
Year Ended Doumhor 31,2022
FFELP FFELP
Sllﬂntd and Consolidation FFELP Education Total
[Dollars in millions) Loans Loans Loans Partfolio
Bngnm\g balmcs 18 219 3 34 422 § 52641 5 20171 §72812
: yin 2 2,049 2,051
Capnﬂlzﬂl interest and pmnitml'd!:murl
41 731 1372 208 1,580
Rernancmgs and consolidations to third
parties (1.851) (4.708)  (6,560) (452)  (7.012)
Repayments and other ;1.319) (2611) _ (3.930) (3.251) _ (7.181)
Ending balance $ Jseo1 s 27834 $ 43525 § 18725 S 52.250
e et LRl
Year Ended December 31, 2021
FFELP FFELP Total Private
Suflord and Consolidation FFELP  Education  Total
(Dollars in millions) Loans. Loans Loans Portfolio
Beq-mlng hdmee s 1.9 607 § 38677 § 58284 § 21079 $79.363
! h ¥ 70 41 111 5,993 6.104
Capitalized interest and prlmnfdlmowl
amortization 666 762 1428 186 1.614
Refinancings and consolidations to third
parties {aoe) (1,81 s) (2,725) (529)  (3.254)
Loan sales = (1613)  (1,613)
Repaymenis and other (1. 218r (3. 23 ) __ (4.457) (4,945) _ (9.402)
Ending balance s 18219 § 34,422 52641 § 20171 $72812

mn Incluses htwﬁsﬁﬁm $3%0 mlhnm lI ?mum\«m Education Refinance Loans in 2023, 2022 and 2021,
and Private E: 8t wére on our Dalance sheat




FFELP Loan Portfolio Performance

December 31,
2022 2021

Dollars in million: % Balance % Balance %
Loans i L 1,772 § 2220
Loans in forbearance! 7,603 6,292
Loans in and of each status:

Loans current 26,204 86.1% 29,004 B44% 39679 B9.4%

Loans deflinquent 31-60 days™ 1.193 38 1,247 38 1,686 38

Loans delinquent 61-90 days™ 746 25 833 24 904 20

Loans delinquent greater than 90 days®™ 2,293 75 3,288 9.6 2112 4.8
Total FFELP Loans in repayment 30,436 100% 34,372 100% 44,391 100%
Total FFELP Loans. 38,140 43,747 52,903
FFELP Loan allowance for losses (215) {222) (262)
FFELP Loans, net 3 3?& i 43&5 52,641
Percentage of FFELP Loans in repayment 79.8% 78.6% B3.9%
Definquencies as a percentage of FFELP

Loans in repayment 13.9% 15.6% 10.6%
FFELP Loans in forbearance as a percentage

of loans in repayment and forbearance 16.8% 18.1% 12.4%
T Loans for customers who may sil bo attending school or © ot actvites and are 1o maka

[paymants o thair ioans, o.g., nmwmwhmmwuw-wndhb-mwwm uw-lumh
cuslomerns wihvo have requested and qualy for other 8% reiitary,
- memmmmmmammmummmmmm mmmmnm
or wha by dum elied, including COVID-19
el peograms.
- The period of definquency i based on the rumber of days scheduled payments are conlractually past dus.

Private Education Loan Portfolio Performance

Decombaer 31
2023 2022 2021

(Dolars in millions) Balance % Balance % Balance %
Loans i 5 360 5 354 361
Loans in forbearance ! 363 401 535
Lm in repayment and percentage of each

Loans current 16,935 M4.9% 17,838 95.0% 19,634 96.8%

Loans definquent 31-60 days™ 308 18 335 18 22 11

Loans delinquent 61-80 days™ 173 1.0 186 1.0 131 B

Loans delinquent greater than 90 days™ 380 23 411 22 297 1.5
Total Private Education Loans in repayment 16,796 100% 18,770 100% 20,284 100%
Taotal Private Education Loans 17.518 19,525 21,180
Private Education Loan allowance for losses 617) B00) 1,009)
Private Education Loans, net 16.902 §18725 §2n:|?|
Porcentaga of Private Education Loans in

repayment 95.9% 96.1% 95.8%
Delinquencies as a m of Private

Education Loans in 5.1% 5.0% 3.2%
Loans in forbearance as a pomumnnﬂuam

In repayment and forbearance 2.1% 2.1% 2.6%
Percantage of Privale Education Loans with a

cosignar! 33% 33% 35%

1 Loans for customens who ane aftending school of are in offer permitied sducabonal acthities and are nol yel reguined 1o make payments on
e loans, 0.9.. infernahep pericds. as woll s loans for customors who have requested and qualify for other
such 85 varous mditary aloiile delermants.
= Loanslor d ion of grace period generally during transi wha harve
mmmmnn—dm or ather factors such as disaster refied, inchuding COVID- 19 rebef programs, consistent with established
policies and

- mm«emmqm«mnwwm e
W Excluding Private Loans, -W.nm_mmxhampmmu
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Allowance for Loan Losses

FFELP Education

(Daliars in milions) Loans. Loans Total
Allowance at beginning of period 5 7§ 800 § 1022
Total provision 56 67 123
Charge-offs:

Gross charge-olfs 163) (320 {383)
Expected future recoveries on curent period gross

charge-offs. — 47 47
Total'! 63) (273) (336)
Adjusiment resulting from the change in charge-off

rate™ = _(25) 25)
Net charge-offs (63) (288) {381)
Decrease in expected future recoveries on previously

fully charged-off loans™ - 48 48
Allowance: at end of pericd (GAAP) 215 B1T 832

Ky fully
loans™ = 226 26

Allowance at end of period excluding expectad future

recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans

{Non-GAAP Financial Measure ) g 215 3 843 - 1.058
Nal charge-offs as a pencentage of average koans in

the net resulting
in rate™ 8% 1.54%

from the change in charge-off
Net adjusiment resulting from the change in charge

-off rate a5 a percentage of average loans in

repayment™ =% 4%
Net charge-offs as a pencenlage of average loans in

9% 1.68%
lowance: coverage of charge-offs*' 34 28 (Non-GAAP)
anu:mwdmmwm
&% 48%  (Non-GAAP)
Nmuumﬂwmmn
' % 50%  (Non-GAAR)
Mh‘lm 5 38,140 5 17,518
Average loans in repayment 5 33,047 $ 17,749
Ending loans in repayment 5 30,436 s 16,796
m Charge-cits see reporied nat of aipeciad recoreries. Far Private ion Loans, we of a defaulted loan balance
pocd basis. Thas arn relarred fo s
'um i) y eh ~—mrum’mmmwnmummum

@ Anincroase imthe nel dwwdrllu an\‘low Private Education Leans in 2023 resulled in a $2% milion reduction in (he batance of expected
future recoveries on praviously fully charged-off kans.

™ Mthe . for mmzr?«mmmm.mmﬂhmumuamm
balancs by chagng off the entire loan balance and
“expected previousty fully charged-off * It actunl periodic recovenss ars kas than sxpectsd, hie differance it
future rocovaries on praviousty fully charged-off ioans. If actual periodc rocovanies are groater

wmmwﬂurqﬂmucmmwu-mwmemmmewwwm
amount exceads the iginally expected Tha f " mnhumuum
mmmmkﬂyeﬂwm
Year Ended
December 31,
3
Beginning of period expected future recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans 274
Expected future recoveries of cusment period defaults 47
Recoveries (cash collected) (46)
wgu-:mﬂh\nrmnm} (49}
End of period fully charged-off loans: $ 226
Change in balance dufing penod s (48}
# For Private Education Loans, the fam is a non-GAAP financial measure. For 8 descripbon and reconchaton, see ‘Non-GAAP Financial
Measures.”




Year ember 31,
Privats

FFELP Education
[Dollars in milbons) Loans Loans Total
Allowance at beginning of period H 262 1 1,009 H 1.2m
Total provision - 9 4]
Gross charge-offs (40) (370} 410}
Expacted futune recoveries on cument pariod
gross charge-offs - 5T 57
Total! (40) (313) (353)
Adjusimant rasuting from tha changa:in
charge-off rate™ = (30) _{30)
Net charge-offs (40) (343) 1383)
Dacrease in expacted futurs recovaries on
fully charged-off laans™ g 55 _55
;“Mwatmﬂpmodw: 222 800 1,022
fully eharged-off foans™ - 274 274
thmeutnﬂddpmdnmmmﬁ
futurg recovenes on proviously fully charged
-off loans (Non-GAAP Financial Measure)* 5 22 5 1,074 3 1 22
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans.
n iy thes rret acl
Mumhdwhdw
A0% 1.59%
WMUMMMIM
d‘!ﬂm-d'rmuawmuod
in repayment™ =% 5%
Muamuwmmm 0% 1.74%
Allowance coverage of charge-offs™! 55 31 (Non-GAAP)
Allowances a5 a percantage of tha ending total
s 5% 55%  (Non-GAAP)
Allowance: a5 a percentage of the ending koans in
repaymeant’! % 5.7% (Non-GAAP)
Ending total loans 5 43,747 5 19,526
Average koans in repayment $ 40,332 s 19,796
Ending loans in repaymant s 34,372 5 18,770
it {2 dolaulted loan bal

" Cwmwmdnwm FvF'\wlhnEduch.mw 9
3. Th are raforred 10 &5

wmmwmmwwwdm FMFFF.U'LNM el fECCrvery & received a1 the time of charge-off,

@ An increase im the net charge-off rate on defauited Private Education Loans in 2022 resulted in a 530 million reduction in the balance of sxpacted
w-mmwm\muwwdm

W Avthe end of L mmznwmemuuanumurnmmmuamm

balance by
*expoctod futiare mﬁ-mprﬂmﬂrquﬂm ¥ scton periodc .
i Oavbrkey oe Josi e nsacked @

mmmmwdw ruﬂmdu-mrwwd-u ulmuiwh-wn- Edu:mm Loan lossas once the cumulative recovery
BETOUN acesds y tha activity in the expected future

recorvaries on ammemm

(Dollars in milllons)

Beginning of period expected future recoveries on
previously fully charged-off loans $ 329

Expected future recoveries of cusrent period defaults 57

Recoveries (cash collected) (56)
Charge-offs (as a result of lower recovery expectations) (58)
End of period y

fully charged-off loans I
Change in balance during period H 155}

" For Privite Education Loans, the fem is & non-GAAR financial measure. For B descriphion and reconcliation, see "Non-GAAP Financial
Moasures,”
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Year Ended December 31, 2021
Private

FFELP Education

[Daltary in milions) Loans. Loans Total
Allowance at beginning of period 5 288 $ 1.089 s 1317
Provision:

Reversal of allowance related to loan sates™! - (107) (107

Ramaining provision — 46 45
Total provision = &1) 161)
Charge-ofts:

Gross charge-offs (26) 175) {201}

Expected future recoveres on cument period

gross charge-oifs — 22 22
Total™ (26) {153) (e
Adjusiment rasulting from the change in
charge-off rate’™ — _{16) {16)

Net (26) (163} (195)
Decrease in expected fulure recoveries on

proviously fully charged-off loans™ - 150 150
Miowance at uumw; 262 1.009 121
Pius: exp

fully charged-off loans'*' - 323 329

future recovenes on previously fully charged
-off lsans (Non-GAAP Financial Measure)™ $ 262 $ 1338 8 1.600

wmmaamdwm-m
mumirommmendwdt

rate™ D&% J6%
Net adjustment resulting from h“ﬂllﬂﬂ.h
charge-off rate as a percentage of average
loans in repayment™ —% 0a%
Net charge-offs a5 a percentage of average
boans in repayment DE% Ba%
coverage of charge-offs™ 10.0 78 (Non-GAAR)
Allowance: as a percentage of the ending total
loan balance'™ 5% 6.3%  (Non-GAAP)
Allowance as a percentage of the ending loans in
E% 6.6% (Non-GAAP)
Ending total kans 5 52,903 $ 21,180
Average loans in repayment 5 45781 5 20,150
Ending loans in repayment 5 44,390 $ 0,284
LR with the sade of $1.6 baBon of Private Education Laans in 2021,
= mﬂmwmuaw-ﬂm For Private oana, wa charge off the of a defaulted loan batance
rocoveries are roforred o as

q tecoverins on o pool basis. Thess ostmated
mmmmmmwmmmm For FFELP Loans, mmnm-mmmmcn
™ Anincroase in ihe net charge-off rate on defaulled Private Education Loans in 2021 resulled in @ $16 million reducton in the balance of expected
fulure recoveries on provicusly fully charged-aff loans.
e Alﬂl! —"'lw i "—"Mﬂzlzﬂ'ﬂnﬂﬂnn ] i f a dofaulted I
= " These are refemed 1o 88 expecied future
mnnmpmmlym h-pd-umm. If actual penodic recovents ace less than axpectsd, te diference i mmediately refiecied a3 a
reduction 1o sxpected an pravigusty fully changed-off loans. lmwmwmmmvmwmmnw
W"' Private
muw-ﬂhhm-ﬂ mmmmmmmuammmmmm
charged-off loand

Year Ended
December 31,
2021

Beginning of period expecied future recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans 7 479
Ewumwdwwwam 22
Recoveries (cash callected) (87)
w:uamﬂmmwnm} (35
End ofpmud d fu i uwdmu:dmm % 329
Change in balance dusing pariod (150)

# For Private Education Loans, he itsm |s & non-GAAP financial measure. For o description and reconcliation, see *Mon-GAAP Financial
Maasures.”
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Funding and Liquidity Risk Management
The following “Liquidity and Capital Re : " d L. ly on our Federal Education Loans

and Ci Lending seg Our F ing segment requires. minimal liquidity and funding,

We define liquidity as cash and high-quality liquid assets that we can use fo meet our cash requirements. Our two
pﬂmary liquidity nom are: (1) somclng our debt and {2) our ongoing ability to meet our cash needs for running the

of ou markel cycles, including during
penod.s olfwmwal stress. Secondary liquidity needs. which can be adjusted as needed, include the origination of
Private E Loans, of Private E ion Loan and FFELP Loan portfolios, acquisitions of

the p of stock ds and the of our stock. To achieve these

objectives, we mahrm and maonitor our bguidity needs and maintain excess liquidity and access to diverse funding
sources lru:ludnq the issuance of unsecured debl and the issuance of secured debt primarily through assel-backed

and/or other g facilities,
We define our liquidity risk as the potential inability to meet our obligations \-\hen lhsy become due without incurring
unacceptable losses or to invest in future asset growth and busi market rates. Our
primary liquidity risk relates to our ability to service our debt, meet wroltler i ions and to conti to

grow our business, The ability to access the capital markets is impacted by general market and economic conditions,
our credit ralings, as well as the overall auanlabuluy of funding seurces in the markelplace. In addition, credit ratings
may be imp to or P when we pete in certain markets and when we seek to engage
in certain i ing th ter derivatives.
Credit ratings and outlooks are opinions subject to ongaing review by the rating agencies and may change, from time
to lime, based on our financial performance, industry and market dynamics and other factors. Other factors that
influence our credit ratings include the rating agencies’ assessment of the general operating environment, our relative
positions in the markets in which we compete, reputation, liquidity position, the level and volatility cleamngs

and risk policies, capital position and capital
change in our credit rating could have a negative effect on our liquidity because it might raise the cost and wallabllhy
of lundlng and mnualhr require additional cash coﬂaleta! or restrict cash currently held as collateral on existing
wobbcmlomnmvaowcmn ratings so thal we can
confinue to emuenny access the capital  markelts mm in difficult economic and market annﬂmns We have
unsecured debt totaling $5.9 billion al December 31, 2023, Three credit rating agenci ly rate owr long-1
unsecured debl al below investment grade.

We expect to fund our ongoing liquidity needs, including the repayment of $0.5 billion of senior unsecured notes that
mature in the short term (i.e., over the next 12 months) and the remaining $5.4 billion of senior unsecured notes that
malure in the long lerm (from 2025 to 2043 with 80% maturing by 2029), through a m.mbef of sources. Thm
sources include our cash on hand, unencumbered FFELP Loan and Private Refi Loaﬂ (see
“Sources of Prmury Liquidity” belaw), the it P g cash flows provided I:r_( ing the:

on ur loan assela and the i i from our
sou.ldl]zal]on trusis. We may a]so depending on mafket conditions and availability, ﬂfawdown on our secured
FFELP Loan and Privale Loan ial paper (ABCP) facilities, issue lerm asset-backed
securiies (ABS), enter into additional Private Educauon Loan and FFELP Loan repurchase faclities, or issue
additional unsecured debt.

We originale Private Education Loans (a portion of which is cblained through a forward purchase agreement). We

also have purchased and may purchase, in fulure periods, Private Education Loan and FFELP Loan portfolios from
third parties. Loan onginations and purchases are part of cur ongoing liquidity needs. We repurchased 18.0 million
shares of commeon stock for $310 million in 2023 and have $290 million of unused share repurchase authority as of
December 31, 2023,




Sources of Primary Liquidity

_ Ending Balances Ll Balances
Doumlm n, Yoars Ended Ddotmbtr“,

(Dollars in millions) 2022 2023 2022

Unreslricted cash and liquid investmenls 839 § 155 § 1024 § 1157 § 1.209 1209

Unencumbered FFELP Loans 92 68 B9 167

u Private

Loans 236 55 105 235 842

Total $ 1167 $ 16568 § 1218 § 1559 § 2071

Sources of Additional Liquidity
may also be available under our secured credit facilities. Maximum borrowing capacity under the FFELP

Loan and Private Education Loan ABCP facilities will vary and be subject o aach g W's borrowing
including, ameng others, facility size, current usage and availability of g from loans.

The following tables detail the additional borrowing capacity of these facilities with maturity dates ranging from June
2024 1o June 2025,

Maximum Additional Capacity

Decomber 31,

{Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Ending Balances:
FFEI.F Loan ABCP facilites s 408 § 01§ 546

Education Loan ABCP facilties 1,718 1,248 2,238
'I'ﬂ.d 13 2127 § 1,349 § 2 781

Average Maximum Additional Capacity
Years Ended Decomber 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Average Balances:
FFELP Loan ABCP facilities 5 03 § 275§ 514
Privata Education Loan ABCP facilites 1,756 1998 2351
Total 3 1859 3 2273 § 2,865

At Decembaer 31, 2023, we had a total of $3.0 billion of unen:umborbd tanglbl& assets inclusive of those Ilstoﬁ in the
table above as sources of primary liquidity. Total loans $1.2 billion principal of
our unencumbered tangible assets of which $1.1 billion and $92 million related to Private Education Loans and
FFELP Loans, respectively. In addition, as of December 31, 2023, we had 55.5 billion of encumbered net assels (Le.,
ovarcollateralization) in our various financing facilities (consolidated variable interest entities). We enter into
repurchase facilities at imes to borrow against the encumbered net amls of these financing vehicles. As of

December 31, 2023, $0.6 billion of facility ings were ding
The following table il bered and unencumbered assets and their net impact on lotal Tangible Equity.
December 31, December 31,
(Doliars in billions) 2023 2022
Net assets of consolidated variable interest
entities (encumbered assets) — FFELP Loans $ 34 8 a7
Net assets of consolidated vanable interest entities
{encumbered assets) — Private Education Loans 21 15
Tangible unencumbered assets!!) 30 41
Senior unsecured debt (5.9) {7.0)
Mark-to-markel on unsecured hedged debt® 2 3
Other liabilities, net (7 (.3)
Total Tangible Equity™ H 21 § 2.3

o Exctudas goodwdl End scquined intangibl assots of $695 mdion and $705 milion a1 Dacambsor 31, 2023 and 202,
respeciivaly.

@ AtDecember 31, 2023 and 2022, there wers ${181) rillion and ${285) milice, respectively, of net gains [sses) on dervatives
hadgng this debt in unancurnbered assets. which partially offsel these gans (losses).
ol Iteem s @ non-GAAR For and see “Hon-GAAP Francal Measures.’




Borrowings

Ending Balances

Senior unsecured
dett

$ 506 § 5351 §$ 5857 §$1301 § 5711 § 702 § 2— § 7014 § 704
Total unsecured
506 5351 5,857 1.301 51 T.02 - 014 T.014
Secured bommowings:
FFELP Loan
59 35626 35685 76 42 675 42,751 - 51,841 51,841
Private Educabon
Leoan securitizations 435 11,754 12,189 725 12,744 13,469 543 14,074 14,617
FFELP Loan ABCP
1854 L] 1,943 23 386 1,309 282 150 432
Private Educaton
Lean ABCP
faciities 1,286 821 2,107 2734 — 2734 1,363 1,152 2,515
95 k] 134 121 —_ kil 302 — 02
Total secured
3720 48320 52058 4.579 55,805 60,384 2,490 &7 217 69,707
Core Eamings basis
) 4235 53680 57.915 5.880 61516 67.396 2490 421 76721
Adjusiment for GAAP
accounting treatment () (278) __(287) (10} (490) ___(500) __ — 257 287
GAAP basis
Borrowings §4206 § 53402 $57628 5 5870 § 61026 5 66896 5 2400 § 74488 S 76078

Average Balances

Average  Average
Rate

31




Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operati our ]
financial slatements, which have been prepared in i in the
United States of America (GAAP). “Note 2 — Significant Aor.ommg Pohnn mdndes a summary of the sqmﬁnam
mnnngpoﬂmsandm&mdsmdmhs,n paration of our . The af
these financial stat requires g t to make esti and ptions that affect the reporled

amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting periods.
Actual results may ﬂrl’lat fmm these mmalas unﬂer varying assumptions or conditions. On a quarterly basis,
| i icularly those that include the most dll'ﬂwh. sthacwa or complex

udgmeﬂls and are ulten about matters that aro iin, Critical involve a

ificant level of inty and have had or are reasonably likely to have a material impact on the
financial condition or results of our 1Our critical ing policies and esth are the for
loan losses, goodwill impairment assessment, and loan premium and discount amaortization.
Allowance for Loan Losses
We measure and recognize an allowance for loan losses that est the ing current exp d credit losses

(CECL) for financial assels measured al amorlized cost held al the reporting date. We have determined that, for
modeding current Wecled ::!edll losses, in general, we can leasonubiy ashmale expected losses hat incorporate

current and fi [: itions over a* and " period. For Private Education
Loans, we a bie and supp: forecast of various macro-economic variables over the
remaining life of the loans. The develop of the ible and supportable forecast i P an

that each macro-economic variable will revert to a long-lerm expectation starting in years 2-4 of the forecast and
largely completing within the first five years of the forecast. For FFELP Loans, after a three-year reasonable and
supportable period, there is an immediate reversion to a long-term expectation.

The models used to project losses utilize key credit quality indicators of the loan porifolios and predict how those
attributes are expected to perform in connection with the forecasted ewnomlc conditions. In connection with this

methodology, our modeling of current ex:peum credit losses utilizes h ical loan ! since 2008
identifying lean variables (key credit quality } that are presd of loans that will default and
pradicts how loans will perform in with the f d ic conditions.

The key credit quality indicators used by the model for Private Education Loans are credit scores (FICO scores), loan
status, loan seasoning, cenain types of loan modifications, the existence of a cosigner and school type:

. Credit scores are an indicator of the credit risk of a customer and generally the higher the credit score the
mere likely it is the customer will be able to make all of their contractual payments.

. Loan status nrrer.ls the credit sk because generally a past due loan is more ikely to default than an up-
lo-date loan. A ly, loans in a def status have different credit risk profiles compared
with those in current payment stalus.

. Of the portfolio in repayment, loan seasoning affects credit risk bacause a loan with a history of making
payments generally has a lower incidence of defaull than a loan with a history of making infrequent or no.
payments,

- Certain types of loan modifications are those that represent the historical definition of a TDR prior to the
implementation of ASU No. 2022-02 on January 1, 2023. Any loan that meets. Ihe historical definiton of a
TDR retains that classification, as a key credit quality indi used for g the all for loan
losses, for the life of the loan (incleding leans that met that definition in 2023). A TOR is where an
economic concession (interest rate modifications, lerm exlenslom or lorbeu:ancs greater than 3 months
|nU&ew24mnu|penod}hasbeengwanwa . This

is not i il |nanywaybnthenawmmﬁnahundsdnsmmwwadundpr
ASU No. 2022.02.
. The exi of a cosigner g lowers the likeli of defauit, thus. ing the credit risk,
. The type of school customers attended can have an impact on their g ion rate and job

after graduation and therefore can affect their ability to make payments, which impacts the credit risk.

For FFELP Loans, the key credil quality indicators are loan status and loan type (Stafford, Consolidation and Rehab
loans).
We project losses over the contractual term olwr loans, including any emr\sm oplions within the control of the

‘borrower. Further, we make when g our credit losses which
are derived in the same manner discussed above,
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The forecasted economic conditions used in cur modeling of exp losses are p d by a third party. The
Dl‘llnw ‘economic metrics we use in the economic forecast are unemployment, GDP, interest rates, consumer loan
ey rales and income. Several forecast scenanos are provided which represent the baseline
ic expecati aswelas andadvemesoenau‘m Wamalvzeandewualelheanamm
108 for bl g of these alternative scenarios based upon the
current economic conditions md our view of lhva H(dlhood and risks of ine alternative scenarios.

‘We use historical i o esti the amount of future recoveries (and lhe maulhng net
charge-off rate) on defaulted Private Erlun:allon Loans. We use jud; in whether h

performance is representative of what we expect o collect in the future. The amount of expected future recoveries on
defaulted FFELP Loans is based on the govemment g {which gs y limits the imum loss
to 3% of the loan balance).

‘Once our loss model calculations are performed, we d it i dj is are needed for factors not
in the gs model. These adj may include, but are not limited to, changes in lending,
servicing and collection policies and practices as well as the effect of other external factors such as the economy and
in legal or latory requi that impact the amount of future credit losses.
The Private Education Lean provision for loan losses of $67 million in 2023 included $25 millien in connection with
Ioan eriginations, $35 million related to Inlemal policy changes being made 1o reflect changing regulatory
expectations related to school mi on certain of private loans, 329 million related to
changes in the net charge-off rates on dafaumu loans, $23 million in connection with the resolution of cerain private
legacy loans in bankrupicy and $22 million related to a general reserve build, which was partially offset by a $67
million reduction in ion with the adoption of a new ac i dard (ASU No. 2022-02) (see "Results of
O ions — GAAP C: ison of 2023 Results with 2022° norrunhnr:uausg The FFELP Loan provision for loan
losses of $56 million was primarily a result of the continued extension of the portfolio and the resulling increase in
both the expected future defaulls and the i I d to all axp d future defaults. The extension of the
portfolio is primarily the result of the continued increase in the usage of Income Dependent Repayment (IDR} plans
E;ﬁbmmam i’:g‘: portfolio, This has the effect of extending the expected maturity date on the leans in which
OWErs use

With respect to the $35 million of Privale Education Loan provision for loan losses related to changing regulatory
expectations related to school misconduct, we estimated the amount of loans that will apply and be approved for loan

discharge which is inherently judgmental. With respect to the $23 mlﬂnon ision for loan losses di above,
relating to the resolution of cerlain private legacy loans in L idered the d amount of
discharges relaled lo expected litigation settlements. See "Note !2 - Comlmmms Contingencies and

" for further of this: matler,
We evaluated and considered several f when for loan
logses and lon. Wae also el tha ¢h. i of our laan porﬂollomdhsmecmdbahaﬂorlnm
forecasted economic scenarios, There has been a decline in the I it ditions since D ber 31,
2022 which has been incorporated into ourallowmw for loan loss as of December 31, 2023, Thls dwhrle in
economic conditions is seen in an i rates and

and a decrease in nominal GDP qmmh Theu is uncertainty as to the ultimate impact to the emomy from
historically high inflation over the prior two years and the significant increase in interest rates that occurred in 2022
and 2023, There is also uncertainty related fo the potential negatrve impact on the poﬂldm from the end of various

payment relief and sti benefits that previ d. These were based on an
evaluation of current and forecasted economic conditions. If fulure economic mmll:ons are significantly worse than
what was assumed as a part of this assessment, it could result in additional provision for loan loss being recorded in
future periods.

The evaluation of the allowance for loan fosses is inherently subjective, as it requires material estimates and
assumptions thal are used to project Insus ovnrmo remaining life of the portfolio (in excess of 15 years). These

assumptions and estimales are hang: H’aclual future perlarrnance in deﬂnuuency
charge-offs and recoveries are uwnﬁnanﬂydd’ewnl than esli clices were
to change, this could affect our of the l‘arloanlossesam the related prwlshonfofmn

losses on our income statement.

In determining Ity {or more frequently if required whothor goodwil is Ilnpal'od we complete a goodwill
impairment analysis which may be a qualitative or a g analysis g on the facts and circumstances
with the ling unit. O jve factors consid in ion with a analysis include: (1)

the amount of cushion that exisied the last time a quanttative test was completed which requires performing

a valualion of the reporting unil. the resulting value of which is compared 1o the carrying value of the reporting unit,
ymic factors 1. (3) industry specific factors (growth or d detarioration of the market;

mgmelgr-ymnlnlmal ﬂevaiupmnis] (4) cost factors ins), (5) fi i of the rep g unit itself, (6)

other specific items (i change in or key nnd (7) whether a sustained dmaso in our
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share price is indicative of a decline in value of the specific raperting unit. There can be significant judgment involved
in assessing these qualitative factors. If, based on a qualitative analysis, we determine it is “more-likely-than-not” that
the fair value of a reporhnq undt i5 less than its cammying amount, we also complete a quantilative impairment analysis.,
In lieu of performi . we may proceed directly to a quantitative impairment analysis. A
quantitative goodwill lrnpaummt anahms roquiss a wnpaﬁmn o( the fair value of the reporting unit to ils carmying

value. If the carrying value of the rep g unit the rep mn’sfalrvllt.ne (the amount we believe a third
party would pay for such reporting unit), the goodwill g mlll the rep g unit will be i ired in an amount
equal to the difference nemeenmerawmngunnsrslrwueandmmnam mlwmtceedmcwmngvﬂue
ofgoodwdlaﬂﬁbulodlemempomngunmm«oam i din g the fair value of a
the luation app h or app hes to utilize and the assumptions
toapply!rduﬁuesbmatesalprqmdfumushﬂmwhm i future
net income and capital expenditures from and related to existing and naw huainess acﬂvﬂns and appmpnala markul
multiples, discount rates and growth rates. An also idered. The 9

units with goodwill for which we estimate fair value are not r.u.lbudy ma and ioroums reporting units diroclly
comparable market data may not be available to aid in its valuation.

Navient tests goodwill as of October 1 each year or at interim dates if an event occurs or circumstances exist such
that it is determined that it is "more-likely-than-not” thal the fair value of the reporting unit ks less than its camrying
value (the qualitative test). Such an event or circumstance is a triggering event. If it is concluded that a Iriggering
event has occurred at an interim date, a quantitative impairment test must be performed. Despite certain negative
macroeconomic conditions during 2023, primarily the high interest rate environment, the financial results of each of
our reporting units with goodwill were strong in 2023, and Navient's stock price improved during 2023 achieving a
share price of $18.62 per share al December 31, 2023 compared to $16.45 per share at December 31, 2022. In

addition, these units have cushion (as di further below), which provides a strong
indication that the goodwill associated with these reporting units is nol impaired. As a result, at March 31, June 30,
and September 30, 2023, we Ihal no Iriggering events occurred with respect to these reporting units to
warrant p ing an interim i test.

We performed annual impairment testing as of October 1, 2023. For each of our reporting units with goodwill
including our FFELP Loans, Private Education Legacy In-School Loans, Private Education Refinance Loans, Private

Education Recent In-School Loans and Federal Educalion Loan Servicing reporting units (collectively, the Loan
reporting units) and our Go Services and k Services rapomng units {collectively, the Business
ing wnits), we 1 relevant itative factors to whether it is “more-likely-than-not”

that the fair value of an individual reporting unit is less than its carrying value. We considered the amount of excess
fair vaiuns owmo can'yinq values (the r.ushlon: of each of the Loun ropumng units, as od' October 1, 2022 when we

last p d a qu goodwill imp test by engag g an pp to estimate the fair
valueaafﬂmwmpomnuunm since the fair values of these rep; units were ially in excess of their
carmying amounts, The current outiook and cash flows for the FFELP Loans, Federal Education Loan Servicing and
Privale Education Legacy In-School Loans reporting units have not changed sns;nl!lcanllyI since our 2022 assesameru_
The cash flows for these g units 7 1o decline i with our exp as the

portiolios. amortize. For the Privale Education Recent In-School Loans g unit, we i the i in

brand awareness in 2023 of Eamest, a wholly owned subsidiary of Navient, thmugh development and rellout of new
programs and product offerings and Nmnra continued success utilizing its Going Merry platform to enable students
to match to and apply for abd and g grants. Strong in-school origination growth is
expecled in 2024 with sustained grwm expected in the future. No goodwill was deemed impaired for these reporting
units as of October 1, 2023 after assessing these relevant qualitative factors, For the FFELP Loans reporting unit,
due to the runcif nature of the pertfolio and the passage of time, our current projections of future cash flows would
result in goodwill being partially impaired in 2025. This is based on estimated cash flows and, as a result, this fulure
impairment dale may change.

We also considered the amount of excess fair value over the c.an'ying vamas of the Business Processing reporting
mmm\:mm)asﬁomn 2022, when we last perf, goodwlll iImpalrment test by

gani o esti Ihel'mrvaruosud'lmse reporting ummwiarvamesolmess
raporhng units were subsl.armalhf in excess of their carying values. The outiook and long-term cash flow projections
for these reporting units remain favorable and have not changed significantly since our 2022 quantitative impairment
assessment despie the expected wind down of significant contracts acquired in 2020 and 2021 to implement and
administer programs under the CARES act and perform contact tracing and \raccno adnunlstraﬁm services during
the COVID-19 pandemic. In 2023 there was a $8 million aggregate in ropomng unit
revenue from 2022, as expected and Inrscasbed s decline was the result of an $33 million aggregate reduction in
revenue from the wind-d of the: ic-related : however, this reduction was largely offset by a $74
rniillon aggregale mouse in revenue I'mm services for our Iradllhnal aimls The cash flows from traditional service
to and in some inst ic levels despite
mrlatnnarv Dmssums in cartain sectors. These g units also i IlW in 2023, which are
expected to yield significant benefit in future periods. No goodwill was deemed impaired for these reporting units after
assessing these relevant qualitative factors.




Foroam:n'm!r porting unils, we als d the current latory and legisiative environmant, the curment

our 2023 ings, 2024 d ings, markel expeclations regarding our stock price,
and our market Gepcl.a!lauvn in relation 1o book equity and concluded thal no goodwill associaled with our reporting
units was impai our market izalion was less than our book equily at October 1 and December 31,

2023, we have concluded |haI our markel capitalization in relation to our book equity does nol indicate impairment of
‘our reporting units’ respective goodwill at October 1 and December 31, 2023. Our market capitalization is not
indicative of the value of our reporting units with goodwill on a standalone basis. Additionally, the implied control
premium at October 1 and Dy ber 31, 2023 isa control ium above the then current stock price,

If the regul it h: such that it negatively impacis our reporling units or fulure economic
conditions are sognlfoanﬂy worse than what was assumed as a part of our annual impairment testing for each of our
reporting units, goodwill attributed to cur reporting units could be impaired in future periods.

Loan Promium and Discount Amertization

The Ci had a net balance of $180 million, or 0.32%, In connection with its $56 billion
education loan portfolio as of December 31, 2023, The most judgmental estimate for premium and discount
ameortization on education loans is the Constant Prepayment Rate (CPR), which measures the rate at which loans in
the portfolio pay down principal compared to their stated terms. In determining the CPR we only consider paymenis
made in excess of contractually required payments. This would include loans that are refinanced or consolidated and
other early payoﬁadmty These ammss are gomralgr sll'md by changes in our business strategy, changes in our

g g the ability to consalid: interest rates and changes o
the curlunl ic and credit envi L. When we ine the CPR, we begin with historical prepayment
rabes We make wdynan!s about which historical period to start with and then make further judgments about whether

ive of future and whether additional adjustment may be needed

1o lhcsa historical prspaymenl rales,

As a resull of the passage of the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (HCERA), there is no longer
the ability to consolidate loans under the FFELP although there are other consolidation options with ED and private
refinancing options with Nawvient and other lenders. At this time, we expect CPRs related to cur FFELP Loans to
remain relatively stable over time, unless there is a regulatory :hange by ED or legislative change by Congmls o
either (1) forgive ban balances (which would result in Na\denl g cash for the forgiven gina
or {2) ge or force cor Some loan ies, including Navient,

offer Private Education Loans to refi ab s loan (both FFELP and Private Education Loans). These
products and the related expectation of use are built into the CPR assumption we use for FFELP and Private

Loans. H it is difficult to y project the timing and level at which this activity will continue,
and our assumption may need to be updaled by a maternial amount in the future based on changes in the economy,
markelplace and legislation.

In 2023, there was a net $58 million increase in net interest income due fo iati related to ch
in prepayment speed and related r ining term assumptions used o ize loan plemvums and discounts. Thls
primarily related to the following two items:

. $48 million increase related to the continued extension of the remaining term to maturity of the FFELP
Loan portfolio. This is primarily the result of the continued increase in the usage of Income Dependent
Repayment (IDR) plans by borrowers in this portfolio. This has the effect of extending the expected
maturily date on the loans in which borrowers use IDR. This results in the slowing down of the
amorization of the premium on these loans which has the effect of increasing interest income in the
pariod of the assumption change.

- 510 million increase related to the Private Education Refinance Loan CPR decreasing from 15% to 10%.
This CPR assumption decrease was primarily a result of borrowers with fixed interest rates having less of
an i to refi in light of the significant in inlerest rates thal occurmed in 2022 and
2023, The decrease in the CPR has the effect of slowing down the amortization of the premium on these
loans which has the effect of increasing interest income in the period of the assumption change.

On August 24, 2022, the Biden-Harris Administration announced its Student Debt Redief (SDR) Plan. The SDR Plan
would have provided up to $20,000 in one-time debt relief to income-gualified recipients with ED held student loans
and a repayment pause on ED held loans. Privately held FFELP Loans, like ours, were not eligible for debt
forgiveness.

A number of states and private organizations initiated legal challenges to the SDR Plan in various courts throughout
the country. On June 30, 2023, the Supreme Court ruled that ED was prohibited from implementing the SDR Pian,
and student loan payments on ED hald loans resumed in October 2023. After the invalidation of the SDR Plan, ED
announced that it had begun a new rulemaking process to consider other ways to provide debi relief to berrowers,
which could include borrowers with privately held FFELP Loans. ED held several public meeling sessions with a
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in the fourth quarter of 2023 and in the first quarier of 2024, ED is expected to
publish d lations for public in May 2024,

In addition, on July 10, 2023, ED issued final regulations on income-driven repayment plans for Direct loans, which
are student loans held by ED. Eligible FFELP borrowers can access the new changes by consolidating their loans
into the Direct Loan Program. The new regulations are effective July 1, 2024; however, ED has elected early
implementation for some features slarhng July 30, 2023. The regulations provide a lower monthly loan payment on a
Direct loan by decreasing :Imnsubanary income (i.e., taxable income over 225% of the federal poverty guideline),
dec ing the p of d y income that must be paid toward a Direct loan to 5% (for
undergraduates), and pmbdng the npnon for married borrowers to exclude their spouse’s income from being
factored by filing a separate tax retum. Other changes provide for the elimination of accrued interest that is not
covered by the monthly payment amount, provide credit towards loan forgiveness that counts certain periods of

L it and f a shorter loan forgi period{"‘, ) for b s with an original principal
balance less than or equal to $12,000, and credit toward Ioan gl for eliglble ona Direct or FFELP
loan that is repaid by a Direct Consolidation loan. This new i dri plan may i

consolidation activity in the future as FFELP borrowers consolidate their loans into the Direct Loan Program in order
to be eligible for the new income-driven repayment plan. This could have a material impact on the Company’s results
in future periods.




Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to financial results reported on a GAAP basis, Navient also provides certain which
are non-GAAP financial measures. We present the following non-GAAP financial measures: {1) Core Eamings. (2)
Tangible Equily (as well as the Mjusted Tamgubie Equity Ratio), (3) EBITDA for the Business Processing segment,

and (4) Allowance for Loan Losses Future R on Previously Fully Charged-off Loans.
Definitions for the non-GAAP fi aﬂd s are provided below, except that reconciliations of
inrw-ard-lwkmu non-GAAP sided b the Company Is unable to provide such
ions withoul effort due ka the uneed,amty and inherent difficully of predicting lhe occurrence
and financial impact of certain items, including, but not limited 1o, the mpact of any mark-to-markel gains/losses
resulting from our use of d to hedge our

1. Core Earnings

‘We prepare financial statements and present financial results in accordance with GAAP. However, we also evaluate
our business segments and present financial results on a basis that differs from GAAP. We refer to this different basis
of presentation as Core Eamings. We provide this Core Eamings basis of presentation on a c.or\soidalod basis and
for each business segment because this is what we review internally when making
our performance and how we allocate resources. We also refer to this information in our wﬂsanlxhnns with uedlt
rating ies, lenders and our Core Eamnings basis of o our
ﬂnuncialpnsoruam mmrsq,uhd by GAAP to provide certaln Core Eamings disclosures in the noles to our
for our

Core Eamngsamnnla s«bsﬁMafo«raparlndresuﬂsundarGMP Weuse Core Eamings to manage our

reflect results for bwo items, discussed below, that
can creale sdgrnfn:anl volaldity mostly due to iming fncm generally beyond the control of management. Accordingly,
we believe that Core Earnings provide management with a useful basis from which lo better evaluate resulls from
ongoing operations against the business plan or agams‘t results from prior periods. Consequently, we drsdose this

information because we balieve it provids dditi information reg: g the
peﬂomamhdtcmr:malammuﬂdo:ery ‘byu When T ‘mwmw the two
items we remove to result in our Core Eamings presentations are:

{1) Mark-to-market gainsfosses resulting from our use of derivative | to hedge our

risks thal do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment or do qualify for hedge aceounting treatment
lbut result in ineffectivenass; and

(2) The accounting for goodwill and acquired intangible assets.

While GAAP pi a uniform, e basis of for the reasons described above, our Core
Eamings bws of presentation duos nol. Core Eamings are subject to cerlain gmrﬂ and spocll': limitations that
investors should Hulhy . For ple, there is forr
reporting. Our Core E.armngs are not aullned nerms within GAAP nnd may nnt be oomnaram to similarly titled
MEASUNES rnpomd by dingly, our Core E gs presentation does nol represent a

ing. I heref . may not be able to compare our performance with that of
other financial ser\dce-s Wnnanles basecl upon Core Eatnun-us Care Earrungs resurl.s are ollly meant 1o supplement
GAAP results by p the and thal are most

closely used by managmont our Boanﬂ of Directors, credit rating agencies, lenders and investors 1o assess
performance.
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mmmunmmowmwumw«sm Core Eamings results (includi lnuuch P

segment) along with the adj s made lo items o ile the GAAP results
tolnaCoreEsnﬂnusmunusmmdbyGMPsmmmmn “Note 15 — Segment Reporting.”
_  YewEndedDeesmbendon
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The f i i the diffs : Core Earmings and GAAP net income and details sach

specific adjus required to ile our Core gs segment p to oUr GAAP g
Yoars Ended December 31,
(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021
GAAP net income ] 228 S 645 § 717
Core Eamings adjustments o GAAP:
Net impact of derivative accounting 73 (266) {235)
Met impact of goodwill and acquired intangible assets 10 19 30
Net income tax effect (8) 60 39
Total Core Eamings adjusiments to GAAP 75 {187) (166)
Core Earnings net income 5 303 5 42 5 551
(1} Derivative A ing: Core E exclude periodic gains and losses that are caused by the mark-to-market
valuations on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge acmunllng treatment under GAAP, as well as the periodic
mark-to-market gains and losses that are a resull of ir i related to effective hedges under

GAAP. Under GAAP, for our derivatives thal are held lo maturity, the mark flo-market gain or loss over the life of the
contract will equal $0 excep! for Floor Income Contracts, where the mw« mmlgan will equal the amount for
which we originaily sold the contract. In our Core Eami i ic effect of these
hedges, which generally results in any net settlement r.ash pmd ormcoh'od being mcogmud ratably as an interest
expense of revenue over the hedged item's life.

The accounting for derivatives requires that changes in the fair value of dervative instruments be recognized
currently in eamings, with no fair value adjustment of the hedged item, unless specific hedge accounting criteria are
met. The gains and losses recorded in "Gains (losses) on derivative and hedging activities, net” and inleresl expense
{for qualifying fair value hedges) are primarily caused by interest rate and foreign currency e:(d'lange rate volatility
and changing credit spreads during the period as well as the volume and term of derivatives not receiving hedge
accounting treatmenl. We believe that our derivatives are eff ic hedges, and as such, are a critical
element of our interest rale and foreign currency risk management stralegy. However, some of our derivalives,
primarily Floor Income Contracts, basis swaps and at times, cerlain other interest rate swaps do not qualify for hedge
accounting treatment and the stand-alone derivative is adjusted to fair value in the income statement with no

for the ding change in fair value of the hedged item.
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The lable below g fies the adij, for derivaty ing b GAAP and Core Eamings net income.

Years Ended Decomber 31,

{Dulllrl in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Earnings derivative adjustments:
{Gm}{assesondeﬂve‘m and hedqlnn aclivities, net,
Included in other income $ {11} § {171) § (64)
Plus: (Gains) losses on fair value hedging activity included
in interest expense 48 _(83) {B8)
Tolal (gains) losses in GAAP net income 35 (254) {152)
Plus: Mmduﬁmﬂlnm{omnu}m
and hedging netl! 32 (15) (93)
Mark-to-market (gains) losses on derivative and hedging
activities, net® &7 (269) (245)
of net iums on Floor Income C
hmlmmwmmﬂ 4 12 39
Other derivative accounting adjustments™ 2 _m {29)
Total net impact of derivative accounting 3 73§ (266) § (238)
L Diervative et sstliement that dao rot qualdy as hedges to be recorded in &
sepacale incoms Mnmmuwmmﬂuwh‘mmmm“
reclassified ta tha income statement ling fom of the Eaming thes would
permanly inchude (8] rectassiying the mmmuwﬂw loan

u{h:mmm soamant amounts reisled (o corlan of us intorest mile swaps 1o debl interes! experte. The lablo Bolow
BNG hedging Sctvises and the associsled reclassification on & Core Eamings bass.

Years Ended December 31
(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Reclassification of settlements on derivative and

hedging activities:
Net seftiement expense on Floor Income Cenfracts

reclassified to net interest income $ - § 23) § (88}
Net settiement income (expense) on interest rate

swaps reclassified to net interest income 32 8 (8)
Net realized gains (losses) on terminated

derivative contracts reciassified to other

income — _— 13
Total reclassifications of setilement income

(expense) on derivative and hedging activities s 2 5 {15) § {83)

“Mark-to-market (gairs] losses on deriative and hedging actvities, net’ is comprised of the following

Years Ended December 31

(Doblars in millians) 2023 2022 202
Fair valug hedges. § Fr B0) § 139)
Foreign currency hedges 2 {33) (49)
Floor Income Contracts — (65) {133}
Basis swaps [i1] m (8)
Othor 22 {120) (16)
Tetal mark-to-markol (gains) losses on darivative

and hedging activibes, net ] 67 § (269) § (245)

% Other cervative consist of rea ainy that aid not

sccounting sdjustments 98
troatmant under GAAP but were aconomic hodges under Core Earnings and, as a rosult, such gains or losses arn
amortized into Core Eamings over the (ife of the hedged item.

42




Ci ve Impact of Dy A ing under GAAP compared to Core Eamings

As of D 31, 2023, vall ing has GAAP equity by approximately $1 million as a result
of cumulative nat mark-lo-market losses {after tax) recognized under GAAP, but not in Cora Earnings. The following
table rolis forward the cumulative impact to GAAP equity due to these after-tax mark-to-market net gains and losses
related to derivative accounting.

Years Ended December 31,

{Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Boﬂmlng impact of derivative accounting on
GAAP equity $ 122 § (209) § {616)
Nat impact of net mrﬁ-lwnamucans (losses)
under derivative accoul i {123) 421 317

Endhqlrrmolmmon
GAAP equity s (118 122 5 (209

m ol raot it airs {1 darithve of ths folh

Years Ended December 31,

Dollars in millions) =02y 2022 2021
Total pre-tax net impact of dertvative accounting

recognized in net incoma?! H s 266 § 235
Tax and other impacts of derivative accounting

adjustments 18 (B5) (59)
Change in mark-fo-market gains {Iouu]on

derivatives, net of tax recognized in

comprehensive income (68} 220 141
Net impact of net mark-to-market gains (losses) under

derivalive accounting 5 {123) § 421 § 317

m See “Core Eammings derivalive adjusiments” table above.

Hedging Embedded Floor lncome

We use Floor Income Coniracts, pay-fixed swaps and fixed rate debt to economically hedge embedded Floor Income
in our FFELP Loans. Historically, we have used these instruments on a periodic basis and depending upon market
conditions and pricing, we may enter into additional hedges in the future. Under GAAP, the Floor income Confracts
do not qualify for hedge accounting and the pay-fixed swaps are accounted for as cash flow hedges. The table below
shows the amount of hedged Floor Income that will be recognized in Core Eamings in future penods based on these
hedge strategies.

December 31
(Dollars in milllons) 2023 2022 2021
Total hedged Floer income, net of tax 10 H %0 § 200 § 325

M $118 malon, $254 million and $422 milkon on & pra-tax basis 0% of Decomber 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respactivaly.

i Of he 550 million a5 of Decombar 31, 2023, approximatoly $37 millon, 520 millon, $16 milken snd S10 milion will bo
recognized as pant of Core Enrmings in 2024, 2025, 2026 and 2027. respectively.

{2y and Acquired Assets: Our Core Eamings exclude goodwill and intangible asset impairment
and the of ired i assets, The following table summarizes the goodwill and acquired
intangible asset adjuslmems
Years Ended December 31
(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Core goodwill and
assel adjustments 5 10 § 19 % 30
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2. Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio

Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio measures the ratio of Navient's Tangible Equity to its tangible assets. We adjust this
ratio to exclude the assets and equity associated with our FFELP Loan portfolio because FFELP Loans are no longer
orginated and the FFELP Loan portfolio bears a 3% maximum loss exposure under the terms of the federal guaranty.

bali that excluding this portfolic from the ratio enh its useful foi 2 ment
uses this ratio, in addition to other metrics, for analysis and decision making related to capital allocation decisions.
The Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio is calculated as:

December 31,  December 31,
2023 22

(Dollars in billions) 2022
Navient Corporation's stockholders’ equity H 2760 $ 2917
Less: Goodwill and acquired intangible assets 695 705
Tangible Equity 2,065 2212
Less: Equity held for FFELP Loans 180 218
Adjusted Tangitie Equity § 1875 5 205
Dividod by:
Toltal assets s 61375 § 70,795
Less:
‘Goodwill and acquired intangible assets 705
FFELP Loans 37,925 43,525
Adjusted tangible assats § 22755 S 26565
Adjusted Tangible Equity Ratio 8.2% 7.7%
— e—
3. Eamnings before | Taxes, Depreciation and A ization E: {EBITDA)
This the ing perf of the Busk F g seg and is used by management and
equity i tors to monilor ing and ine the value of those businesses. EBITDA for the
Busi P i is d

Years Ended December 31,
2023 21

(Dellars in millions)
Pre-tax incoma 5 % 3 50§ 128
Plus:

D lation and exponse!! 3 3 )
EBITDA 3 3 5 53 % 136
Divided by:

Total revenue 3 321 % 330 § 488
EBITDA margin 13% 16% 2_&!-

M Thore is no interest expenss in this segment.




4, Allowance for Loan Losses Excluding Ex d Future fes on P

Loans

The allowance for loan losses on the Private Education Loan portfolio used for the three credit metrics below
ludh P d future ries on previously fully charged-off loans (o better reflect the current ex,
credit losses remaining in connection with the loans on balance sheet that have not charged off. That is, as of

ly Fully Charged-off

December 31, 2023, the $843 million Private Education Loan allowance for loan losses excluding expected future

recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans represents the current expected credit losses that remain in

connection with the 17,519 million Private Education Loan portfolio. The $226 million of expected fulure recoveries
on previously fully charged-off loans, which is collected over an average 15-year period, mechanically is a reduction
to the overall allowance for loan losses, However, it is not related to the $17,519 million Private Education Loan
portfolio on our balance sheet and, as a result, management excludes this impact to the allowance to better evaluate
and assess our overall credit loss coverage on the Private Education Loan portfolio. We believe this provides a more
meaningful and holistic view of the avallable credit loss coverage on our non-charged-off Private Education Loan
portfolio. We believe this information is useful to our investors, lenders and rating agencies.

Alfowance for Loan Losses Metrics - Private Education Loans

For the Year Ended Decomber 31
2023

[Dollars in millions)
Allowance at end of period (GAAP) $ 817§ 80§ 1,009
Plus: expacted future recoveries on previously

fuilly charged-off loans 226 274 329
Allawance: at end of period excluding expected

on praviously fully charged-off

Ioans (Non-GAAP Financial Measure) $ 843 § 1074 § 1338
Ending total loans. $ 17519 § 19525 § 21,180
Ending loans In repayment 5 18B79% § 18710 § 20284
Net $ 298 § M 0§ 169

ge of charge-offs
GAAP 21 23 60
) 2, 8 19

Non-GAAP Finmncial Measure'!! 28 31 7.9
Allowance as a percentage of the ending total

loan balance;

GAAP 35% 41% 4.8%

Adjustment™ 13 14 15

Non-GAAP Financial Measura'" 4.8% 5.5% 6.3%
Allowance 85 a percentage of the ending loans in

repayment:

GAAP 7% 42% 5.0%

Adjusiment™ 13 15 16

Non-GAAP Financial Measure'! 5.0% 5 7% £.6%

' The slowance used for these crodd mitrics exchides the expactod fulure recovanes on praviously Al charged-off loans. See dacusson above
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Risk Management

Our Approach

Navient's i and effecti of the risks inherent in our business are critical to
our continued smm We assngn risk mmphl manag and n at \ranaus levels
within our organization and these activities. We maintai ment

practices to identify, measure, monitor, evaluate, control and report on our significant risks and we mumely evaluale
these practices 1o determine whether they are funclioning properdy and can be improved,

Risk Management Philosophy

Navlent‘s risk management philosophy is to enmm all scgnrfunl risks inherent in our business are identified,
d. In fi of these goals, Navient

+ maintains a comprehensive and uniform risk rrulnagemem framework;

» follows a “Three Lines Model” structure based upon- (1) ility and hip at the busi area
level for risks inherent in their sithes (first line of {2) ing areas, such as Human
Resources, Legal, Compliance, Finance and Accounting, Technology and Inf ion Security,

maonitor, guide and advise the business areas in their respective areas of axperﬁse (second line of defense);
and (3) Internal Audit independently reviews business and support areas 1o ensure compliance with

applncahlc laws, mgu‘lmns and internal policies and p (third line of daf

s p pprop porting to Bl and our Beard of Direclors and their respective commitiees;
and

* lrains our employ of our fisk and k

Risk O ight, Roles and Responsibilities

R ibility for risk is i at several different levels of our organization, including our Board of
Directors and its committees. Each business area within cur organization is primarily rnpomlble for managing its
specific risks. In addition, our second line of defense support areas are resp: far p our i areas
with the training, systems and specialized expertise necessary to properly perform their risk mana-geme'lt
responsibilities.

Board of Directors. The Navient Board of mmm and its i i OVErsee our gic direction,
including setting our risk phi s and px ; and ing the risks our
face as well as our risk cti It ‘our annual it plan, pericdi reviews our
slralaq;cappmwandmmbeamd spends signifi time idering our capilal i and our dividend
and share repurch levels and activities. We late to our Board of Directors any significant departures from

ished lol and p and review new and emerging risks with them. Standing committees of our
Board of Directors include E:acutwe Audit, Compensation and Human Resources, Nominations and Govemance,
and Risk. Charters for each ing their specific ibilities and areas of risk oversight are
published on our website together with the names of the directors serving on these committees.
Chief Executive Officer. Our Chief Officer is ible for g our risk i culture and

ensuring business areas operate within risk parameters and in accordance with our annual business plan,
cmr Risk and Compﬂ'm Om’:ar Qur Chief Risk and Compii Officer is respensible for ensuring proper
and

g g to our Board of Directors and g garding cur risk manags
practices.
Ei Risk and Ci Ci Qur Risk and C: liance C Isan it
mnsgsrnem-lsm commitiee wime sonlor e reviews our significant risks, fves reports on adh
to risk par P ion on mitigati clwrnsksanddosureofmuesandmmsesour

risk rm: nt program. This ittee also o risk
activities including regma'lory mmlmca Mnmq regulatory r.ompnnm cn.nnga management, compliance risk
1 testing ai . policies and dures, privacy

and i ion sharing practi plis with the Oxley Act of 2002, and our Code of Business
Conduct. This ¢ ittee also risks iated with new or modified business and makes
rec X ds d business initiatives based on their inherent risks and controls.
Credif and Loan Loss Commitlee. OurCledll.mdLoanLoss" is an i o level
committee thal oversees our credit and povifdm and ies, Ihe iency of our loan

loss reserves, and current or emerging issues affecting dainquenc)r and default trends which may result in
adjustiments in our allowances for loan losses.
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Disclosure C . Cur Disch G reviews our periodic SEC reporting ds
and related di policies and di and evall whether modified or additional dlsdmes are
required,

Assel and Liability Commiltee, Our Asset and Liability Commitiee oversees our invesiment portlolio and strategy and
our compliance with our invesiment policy.

Other Management-Level Committees. We have other management-level committees that oversee various other

Navient business aclivities including critical assy hurnan mar and i iy
compensation govemance.

Internal Audit Risk Assessment

Navient's Internal Audit function menitors Navient's vanous risk and comp effors, i ifies areas

that may require increased focus and resources, and reporis its findings and recommendations to executive
management and the Audit Committee of ocur Board of Directors. Internal Audit performs an annual risk assessment
evaluating the risk of all significant components of cm mmpnny and uses the results to develop an annual risk-based
internal audit plan as well as a multl-y

Risk Appetite Framework

Navient's Risk Appetite Framework establishes the level of risk we are willing to accept within each risk category in
pursuit of our business strategy. The Risk Committee of our Board of Directors reviews our Risk Appetite Framework
annually, helping o ensure consistency in our business and Our Hevel
Enterprise Risk and Compliance Committes maonitors approved risk limits and thresholds to ensure our busmasses
are operating within approved risk hrmls Through ongoing monitoring of risk

B risks and develops approp responses and mitigation strategies.

Risk Categories

Our Risk Appetite Framework segments Navient's risks across nine domains. (1) credit, m market; (3) funding and
liquidity: (4) ional, (5) i (6) legal. (7} g : (8) and (9) strategic.

Crodit Risk. Credit risk is the risk 1o eamings or capital resulting from an cbligor's fadure to meet the terms of any
contract with us or olherwise fail lo perform as agreed. Navient has credit or counterparty risk expesure with
borrowers and cosigners of our Private Education Loans and Private Education Refinance Loans, counlerparties with
whom we have enlered derivative or other similar contracts and entities with whom we make investments, Credit and
counterparty risks are overseen by our Chief Risk and Compliance Officer and our management-level Credit and
Loan Loss Committee. The credit risk related to our Private Education Loans and Private Education Refinance Loans

is managed within a credit risk i which includes: (i) a well-defined . ing, asset quality and

llection policy (i) an ongoing itoring and review process of portfolio concentration and trends; (iii)
assignment and management of credit and loss rnmr.annng authorities and mpommuhuea and (iv) establishment of
an allowance for loan losses. Credit risk related to is by for

cradit strength on an ongeing basis and through our credit policies, which plaoe limits on cur exposure with any single
counterparty and, in most cases, require collateral to secure the position. Our Chief Risk and Compliance Officer
reports regularly to both the Risk and Audit Committees of our Board of Directars on credit risk management.

Market Risk. Market risk is the risk to earnings or capital g from changes in market it such as inlerest
rates, index mismaltches, credit weads. ity prices or ilities. Navienl is to various types of
market risk, includi t the i ion of assets and liabilities, interest rate risk and other

risks that arise through the management of our investment, debt and education loan portfolios, Market risk exposure
is overseen by our Chh( Financial Officer and our management-level Asset and Liability Commitiee, which are

g market risks i wnh uul assels and liabilities and recommending limits lo be
mcludadmournskappemeand ivities are closely tied to those related to the
management of our funding and liquidity risks. The Rlsk Comnnﬂ.ee of our Board of Directors perodically reviews and
approves the investment, asset and liability o policies, blish and i various tol or
other risk as well as i y funding plans devel i our Asset and

by
Liability Committee. The Risk Commitiee and our Chief Financial Olfwr -ewr! to the full Board of Directors on
matters of market risk management.

Funding and Liquidify Risk. Funding and liquidity risk is the risk to eamings, capital or the conduct of our business
arising from the inability to meet our obligations when they become due without incurring unacceptable losses, such
as the ability to fund liability maturities or invest in future asset growth and business operations at reasonable market
rates. Our primary liquidity risks are any mismailch between the maturity of our assels and liabilties and the servicing
of our indebtedness. Navient's Chief Financial Officer overmss our I’undmg and Iqmda!y management activities and is
responsible for planning and executing our funding activil and i g our liquidity
risk, maintaining excess liquidity and mng diverse Imdlng sources ﬁepandmg n-n current market ound:hams
Funding and liquidity risks are P imarily through our |

a7




Asset and Liability Committee. The Risk Committee of our Board of Directors penodically reviews and approves our
funding and liquidity positions and the gency funding plan ped and administered by our Asset and
Liability Committee. The Risk Commitlee also receives regular reports on our performance against funding and
liquidity plans at each of its meetings.

Operational Risk. Operational risk is the risk to eamings or the conduct of our business resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, pecple or systems or from external events. Operaticnal risk is pervasive, existing in all
business areas, functional units, legal entities and geographic locations, and it includes information technology risk,
cybersecurity risk, physical security risk on langible assels, hrdmrly vundor risk, legal risk, compliance risk and
risk. Op risk exp ane ged by b gement and our second and third
lines of defense, with ight by our level i The Board of Directors or the Risk Committee
of our Board receives operam reports at eam mguiariy scheduled meeting. The Board of Dlrsf:m or the Risk
Committee of our Board also pment updates reg g our various
recelves periodic information security and cweruwllry updales and reviews operauonul and systems-related
matters to ensure their imp P no internal control issues

C 10 .I_ega\' and Risk. C i Iogal and g risks are subsets of operational risk but
s a separate and I y risk category given their importance in our business. Compliance
nsk is mmwum: capital or rep arising from ions of, or non with, laws. rules,
internal policies and p or ethical Legal risk Is the risk to
aamngs. capital or reputauon manifested by claims made through the legal system and may arise from a product or
service, a transaction, a business relationship, property (real, personal or Imelsctual] omcmct of an employee or
change in law or regulation. Governance risk is the risk of not and g a control that
aligns with stakeholder and regulalory expectations, including tone at the lop and board pu'forrrmnca These risks are
inherent in all of our businesses. The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors oversees our monitoring and control
of legal and compliance risks. The Audit Commiltes annually reviews our C li Plan and signifi
of our Code o{Busmoss Conduct and receives rugular lepom from | ible for the:
regulalory and rigk rdo&Dvectorsandﬂ\eMllem!leermwa
reports on significant litigation and mgdu!nry matters nl each regularly scheduled meeling.

Ri ionalPolifcal Risk. R i 'risklsmmmmmorcMammlmdmagamourmpumumm
the view of, or loss of the trust of, cusiomers and the general public. Political risk is the closely related risk to eamings
«or capital arising from damage to our i with g al entities, regul and political leaders and
candidates. These risks can anse due to both our own acls and omissions (both real and perceived), and the acts
and omissions of other industry participants or other third parties, and they are inherent in all of our businesses.
Reputational risk and political risk are ged through a of busi area ent and our
second and third lines of defense. The Nominations and Govemnance Commitiee of our Board of Direclors oversees
our reputational and political fisk and regularly receives reports on these matters,

Strategic Risk. Strategic risk is the risk 1o eamings or capital arising from our potential inability to successiully carry
out our strategy. This risk can arise due to both our own acts or omissions, and the acts or omissions of other
m:lusuy Darhﬂpanb or uﬂm third parties, and it is inherent in all of our busi ic risk is ged through
a nent and our second and third lines of defense.




Supervision and Regulation
Regulatory Oversight
We operals ina hnghnr mgulmd Indusll')l' where many aspects of our businesses are subject to federal and state

and he foflowing is a summary of the material stalutes and regulations currently
Swlmable to us and our sutm:hm We may beeonu subject 1o additional laws, rulm of regulahonu in the future.
This analysis of li laws and is fied by to the full text of the
statutes and mgulahnns referenced below.

The Dodd-Frank Act was adopled to reform and strengthen regulation and supervision of the U.S. financial services
indusiry. It ¢ e Ihat govern the practices and oversight ulﬁnﬂnclal institutions and
other parti in the fi | markets. It i rec ight on almost
every upo:l of the LS. financial services industry, including increased capital and Inqnhilly requirgments, limits on
and d supervisory authority. Some of these provisions apply to Navient and its varicus businesses
and seouﬂllzadon vehicles.

The CFPB has authority to write regulations under federal consumer ﬂnanuai protection laws and to directly or
indirectly enforce those laws. snd ine financial insti for P The CFPB is authorized fo impose
fines and provide ion in the event of vi . engage in ial education, track
consumer complaints, request data and promole the Enralul:lllty of financial services to underserved consumers and
. It also has laptmnlmlulr deceplive or abusive practices. In January 2017, the CFPB filed a

lawsuit agnlnsl Navient aihglng saveral unfair, deceptive or abusive practi and aother vi of

statutes. Additi 1 on the CFPB lawsuit is included in “Nate 12 - Commitments,
Cnnhrmernss and Guarantees” in this Form 10-K.

The Dodd-Frank Act also authorizes slate officials to enforce regulations issued by the CFPB and lo enforce the
Dodd-Frank Act's general prohibition against unfair, plive and abusive practi The ws General of the
State of llinois, the State of Washington. the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the State of California, the State of
Mississippi and the State of New Jersey also filed lawsuits against Navient and some of its subsidiaries containing

similar alleged violati of consumer p ion laws as those alleged in the CFPB lawsuit as well as several
additional areas. These cases were seltled by mutual ag) the Company and various State Aliomeys
General. Additional information on these lawsuits is i in "Nole 12 — Commi . gencies and

Guarantees” in this Form 10-K.

Higher Education Act (HEA). The HEA is the primary law that wlmﬁzos and mgulam fodmal s‘mdcnl nﬁ programs
for higher education. Navient is subject to the HEA and its loan op are by ED
and Guarsnlcn or entities acting on their bel\all As a servicer ol’fedwal education leans, Navient & u subject to ED

ing financial y that govern all third-party servicers of
Insured education loans. In connection with its somclng operalions on behalf of Guarantor clients, Navient must
comply with ED reguiations that govern Guarantor activi as well as ag| for rei ED
and our Guarantor clients. While the HEA is required to be revi and ized” by Congress every five
years, Congress has not reauthorized the HEA since 2008, choosing to temporarily extend the Act each year since
2013. During the COVID-19 pandemic, the Biden-Harris Adminisiration and ED have relied upon The CARES Act and
The HEROs Act lo provide the legislative authorily necessary lo delay or cancel direct student loan payments. We
cannot predict whether or when legistation will be passed or how it would impact us.
Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council. As a service provider to financial institutions, Navient is subject to
periodic examination by the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council (FFIEC). FFIEC is a formal
mletagem:ybodyo(meus d to p ibe uniform principh dards, and report forms for
the federal ination of ial instituti by the Federal Reserve Banks (FRB), the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC). the National Credit Union Administration, the Office of the Comptrolier of the Currency and the
CFPB and to make recommeandations to promote uniformity in the supervision of financial institutions.

48




Consumer Protection and Privacy. Navient's Consumer Lending and Federal Education Loan segments are subject
to federal and stale consumer protection, privacy and related laws and regulations and are subject lo supervision and
examination by the CFPB and various state agencies. Some of the more significant federal laws and regulations
include:

* various laws governing unfair, deceptive or abusive acts or practices;
the Truth-in-Lending Act and Regulation Z, which govemn disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers;

the Fair Credit Reporting Act and Regulation V., which govem the use and provision of information 1o
consumer reporting agencies;

the Equal Credit Opporiunity Act and Rogulal]on B, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, creed
or other prohibited factors in extending credi

+ the Servicemembers Civil Relief Act (SCRA), which applies to all debts incurred prior to commencement of
active military service (including education loans) and limits the amount of interest, including certain fees or
eharges that are related to the obligation or liability, and

= the Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA), which governs communication methods that may be used
to contact customers.

Navient's Business Processing legment is swwdln leﬂeral and state consumer protection, privacy and related laws
and regulations, as well as cerlain acti by the CFPB and various state agencies.
Some of the more significant federal slatules ala the Fer Debt Collection Practices Act and additional provisions of
the acts listed above, as well as the HEA and the various laws and regulations that pertain to government
contraclors. These activities are also subject to state laws and regulations similar o the federal laws and regulations
listed above.

Regulatory Qutlook

In 2024, we expect the regulatory environment for the buamess in which we operate will continue ln be challenging.
‘We anticipate that regulators will be more focused on y audits and actons,
We a number of promi themes will emerge:

s The number and of the CFPB, State Attorneys General and various
MIW Is Ilksylod\anqe which msyaﬂdw the cost and of timing for

i s,

* The regulatory, compliance and risk control of financial tuth subject to enf actions
by state and federal regulators are frequently cited rogardlnss ol%ﬂwrp&s’tmﬂkﬂhm been
changed, and enforcement orders have often i 1ud d detai P audit
and board supervision, as well as the use of third-parly or itors to d further

changes or moniter remediation efforts.

Issues first identified wilth respect lo one consumer produel class or distribution channel are somelimes
applied to other product classes or channels.

For a discussion of potential upcoming ED regulations after the invalidation of the Student Debt Relief Plan, see
“Segment Resulis — Federal Education Loans Segments — Various Federal Loan Forgiveness Plans.”

‘We expect that ion regulations, is, supervision, ination and ent
continue lo evolve in both detall and scope as well as being more unwedmblc than in pmnom ponnds ‘I'hin
evolution has added and may continue to significantly add to Navient's rich P
We have invested in compliance through multiple steps including muﬁgnmem of Navient's uompllarm
system lo a lending, servicing, and model; dedicated compliance resources
for certain topics to fo-nus on consumer l nl’ i support o ﬁsk
control and P in each busi area; additi guiatory training for front-i
ensure obligations are undersioed and followed during interactions with customers, as well as addihonal mguralory
trammginrwﬂuardofwacmtomnoelmahitytommu\ef‘ s risk fr and
as it and the latory Ges, d ight and analysis af complaint trends to identify
and al if Y. areas of harm. Despite these increased activities, our cument

tions and may not salisfy evolving regulatory Past or p may
continue 1o be the focus of examinalions, inquiries of lawsuits. As a resull of our recent siralegic announcements, we
anticipale the need to further restructure and realign our compliance efforis and focus with our evolving foolprint and
businesses.
As ibed in s Di and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations —Risk
Management,” Navient has P da ol d, formal rise risk r o] systemn aimed at
reducing business and regulatory risks.




Listed balow are some of the most significant recent and pending regulatory changes that have the potential to affect
Navient.

E ion Loan icing and Ci Lending. The CFPB has been active in the education loan industry and
undertook a number ehrﬁﬁams in recent years relative to the private education loan maltel and education loan
servicing. In addition, several stales have enacted various state icing and B i It is possibl
that more states will propose or pass similar or different requirements on eﬂher holclers oladucahon loansor their
servicers. Depending on the nature of these laws or rules, they may impose additional or different requirements than
Navient faces at the federal level.

Debt Collection Supervision. The CFPB also maml,ams super\nwy authority over larger consumer debl collectors
and in late 2021 fo R Fg g the collection of third-party consumer debt. The
CFPB's rules do not preempt the various and varied levals almls consumer and collection regulations fo which the
activities of Navient's subsidiaries are currently subject. Nawient also utilizes third-party debt collectors to collect
defaulted and charged-off education loans and will continue to be responsible for oversight of their procedures and
controls.

Owersight of Derivatives. The Dodd-Frank Act created a h new for der

ions under the C dity Futures Trading Commission {CFTC), other prudmllal regulators and the SEC.
This lramwnk among other '.hlngs subjects cerfain swap parlicipants to new capital and margin requirements,
rec and and imposes registration and regulation of swap dealers and major
swap participants. Even wham Namnl of a securitization trust sponsored by Navient qualifies for an exemption,
‘many of its derivatives counterparties are subject to capital, margin and business conduct requirements and therefore
Navient's business may be impacted. Where Navient or the securitization trusts it sponsers do not qualify for an
exemption, Navient or an existing or future secunlization trust sponsored by Navient may be unable to enter into new'
swaps lo hedge interest rate or currency risk or the costs assoclated with such swaps may increase. With respect lo
axisting securitizaton trusts, an inability to amend, novate of otherwise materially modify existing swap contracts
could result in a downgrade of its outstanding assel-backed securities. As a result, Navient's business, ability o
access the capital markets for financing and costs may be impacted by these regulations.

Legal Proceedings

Fora discussion of legal matters as of December 31, 2023, please refer 1o "Note 12 — Commitments, Contingencies
and " 1o our lidated financial included in this report, which is incorporated into this item

by reference.
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RISK FACTORS

‘We employ an risk y and fr which seeks to identify the material risks

ing our busi and provides a process for luating and iy such risks. Our Enterprise Risk and
Compliance C i monilors app d risk limits and thresholds to ensure our businesses are operating within
approved risk parameters. Our Risk Appetite Framework segments our risk acress nine risk domains: {1 ) credrl (2
market; (3) funding and liquidity; (4) operational; (5} compliance; (6) legal; [?) o (8)
and (9) strategic. The risk faclors enumerated in this section are presented in a manner that is consistent with this
overall rigk framework.

Besed on current conditions, we believe that the following list identifies the material risk factors thal could affect our
results of operations or cash flows. These risks and risk domains are not the only risks facing our
Company. Mdmmal risks ml currently known o us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may adversely
affect our busi or results of in future periods. Material risks that could apply
generally to any company are listed below under the r.‘.awon “General Risk Factors.” In addition, our reaction to future
s as well as our itors’ and ions 1o these may affect our future

results.

CREDIT RISK.

Et i and the cr of third parties could have a material adverse offect on our
business, results of operations, financial condition and stock price.

Oursumusla'gely upan the of our lally with respect to our
ion loans. Our h istenty ind that b ls rates and the failure of in-school

borrowers to graduate or otherwise complete their education are two of the most signifieant economic factors that
affect loan performance. Any material changes in graduation or completion rates could increase or decrease
delinquencies and defaults. Additionally, modifications to the original repayment terms in Ine l'nrm ol’]nan
forbearance, deferment, gfaoa poﬁoﬂs and the use of p modification ir d

lly and y impact the performance of our loan ponfolws Maodifications lo
pmrale loans ma',' loww the potential return on mvash'nent and may have ihe related effect of delaying defaults which
would olherwise have becorme apparent in the performance of our portfolios.

Defaults on education loans held by us, particularly Private Education Loans, could adversely affect our
earnings.

FFELP Loans are insured or guaranteed by state or not-for-profit agencies and are also protected by contractual
rights to recovery from the Unsted States to guaranty its ameng ED and these agencies. These
guarantees generally cover at least 97% of a FFELP Loan's principal and acerued interest upon defaull and, in limited
circumstances, 100% of the loan's principal and accrued interest. We are exposed to credit risk on the non-
guaranteed portion of the FFELP Loans in our portfolio, In addition, under cerlain circumstances, if we, or any third-
party servicer that we utilize to service our loan portiolio, fail to service FFELP Loans in compliance with HEA we may
jecpardize the insurance, guarantees and federal support we receive on these loans. A small percentage of our
FFELP Loan portfolio has become permanently uninsured as a result of these regulations and we anticipate this will
conltinue to a limited extent in the future. Under such circumstances, we bear the full credit exposure on such
previously insured loans.

‘We bear the full credit exposure on the loans in our Private Education Loan porifolio. We believe that delinquencies

ara an important indicator of the potential future credit perf for Private ion Loans. Our delinquencies
of Private E ion Loans in y were 5.1% at December 31, 2023, For a complete
dsc\lssbnolwrlmn‘ i ies, see "M, 's Di ion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Op — Financial C ion — Private lion Loan Portiolio Performance.”
Future defaults could be higher than ahﬁclwled due to a variely of factors, such as downturns in the economy, public
health crises, reg and o future trends. During 2023, global markets continued to
expenence significant dmm driven by the economic impact of inflation and interest rate Incruascs by the Federal
Reserve and concerns about the risk of ion persist. A g to Ci

young adults who slopped attending college before eaming a degnee or certificate are among those most likely to
have trouble making payments. Losses on Private Educalion Loans are alsa impacted by various risk characteristics
that may be specific to individual loans. Loan status (in-school, grace, # and deli ), lean
seasoning (number of months in which a payment has been made by a customer), undelwrl!mg criteria (e.g.. crecit
scores), exislence of a cosigner, school type and whether a loan is a TDR mallfaobrslhulm impact the

of defaull. Adds general ic and err I t rates for
recent college grad can have a signifi mpsl:tonloandahnqumcymdded‘amms If actual loan
is worse than y estimated, it could y affect our esti of the all for loan losses

and the rejated provision for loan losses and as a result wvsrsely affect our results of operations.
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The Ci y's g for the for Loan Losses on our edi fon loan portfoli quili
slgui'ﬂcml'j‘qumml and uﬁmlm

The Company accounts for the allowance for loan losses in connection with its FFELP Loan and Private Education
Loan portfolios under ASU Mo, 2016-13, “Financial Instruments — Credit Losses.” Under this standard, we are
ired fo and ize an alk for loan losses that estimates remaining expected credit losses for

fnam-al assets held at the mwrhnu date. This results in us presenting our loans held for investment, at the net
amount of credil losses over the remaining life of the loan
portiolio is based m mlmalm aboul past events, including historical i . current d and

bie and ic and other i that affect the colleclahilry of the reported amount. This
measurement lakes p&ace al the time the financial asset is first added to the balance sheet and ql.ml‘tnarlyI thereafter.
Estimating expected losses aver the remaining life of the loan ios requires signifi
estimates. If we are required to our level of all for loan losses, such Inman could
adversely al’uﬂ our buslness financial condmon and results of aperations. In addition, the evaluation of our expected
credit losses is inh sbjective and requ i that may be subject to significant changes. See
“Management's Discussion and Analysis ul Fmanual Condition and Results of O — Critical
Policies and Estimates — Allowance for Loan Losses” and “Note 2 — Significant Accounting Policies” for !uﬂhar
discussion of this standard.

Our Lending us to credit underwriting risks based upon the credit model we use
to forecast loss rates. #mmmmwmm forecast loss rates, it could materially adversely affect
our operating results.

‘We acquired Eamest, a leading 1 hnology and finance y. in 2017, Since then, Eamest
has become one of the leading providers of education refinance loans. In 2019, Eamest entered the “in-school”
lending markel. We underwrite new Private Education Loans mhnn our Consumer Lending segmenl based upon our

a.naws of extensive credit eriteria. Criteria reviewed in undenwri loans may include any or all of the
(i} employ or offer of loy t and incomae; (l]emplu t status and career specialization; (i)

qunlrf'ymg credit history, I.aklng inta account credit score; (iv) debt to income ratio; (v) demenstrated ability to pay

through free cash flow cal (v} d; al or graduation from an ali-ghle post-secondary school, or

separated from an eligible post-secondary school within a specified period of time and met additional credit
requirements, or be the parent of a graduate or student; and (vil) savings. We define free cash flow generally as
after-tax monthly income of a borrower minus the sum of rent or mortgage payments, student loan payments and any
other fixed expenses of such borrower.

‘We do not rely on any single fa:l.of in making our undomrllhg decisions. Each of the above factors is reviewed and

weighted depending on the i 'S circur al the time the underwriting decision
ls meda If gur underwriling process dm not sll’echvaly forecas! our losses, our operating results, cash flow or
may be y al

MARKET, FUNDING & LIQUIDITY RISK.

Our busi is affected by ch in interest rates and the cost and availability of funding in the capital
markets.

The capital markets may from lime-lo-lime experience pericds nlsmﬁcml volatility, such as the volatility we have
recently experenced due to rising interast rales and em emmm: pressures. This volalility can dramatically and

adversely affect fi g costs when d to hi ical norms or make funding unavailable at any costs. We
carmot provide any assurmw that the cost and availability of funding in the capital markets will not continue to be
by current Other factors that could make ing more expensive or unavailable o

us include, but are not Emiled lo, financial losses, events that have an adverse impact on our repulation, changes in

the acﬂvlljss of our businoss partners, events that have an adverse impact on the financial services Iindustry

credit rating actions with respect to us, asset-backed securities

sponsored by us or the U.S. federal government, changes affecting our aasels the ability of existing or future

Navient-sponsored securitization trusts to hedge interest rate and and il actions,

sbsolule and oorwaraﬂw interest rate changes, general economic wndlllms and Ihya legal, regulatory and tax

ar g funding Including existing or l\nulo securitization and derivatives transactions.
‘_usdlﬂiwlt. ive or L i our results of cash flow or ial condition could be

materially and adversely affected. Further, rising interest rates and expectations of inflation may negatively impact

borrower demand for our privale education loan products.
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Certaln aspects of the impact of the tien of the LIBOR refe rate and the transition to the Secured
Owvernight Financing Rate (SOFR) remain uncertain and could neg ly impact our results and
business.

On June 30, 2023, the LIBOR admini ceased publication (on ive basis) of all LI.S. Dollar (USD)
LIBOR rates, including one-month and three-month LIEQR_ u.s. Dailar {USD) LIBOR had historically been the
reference rate for most nfourvarianle rate student loans, bonds, asset-backed securities (ABS), other financing
facilities, and d fi [

On March 15, 2022, the Adjustable Interest Rate (LIBOR) Act (the LIBOR Act) was signed into law. The LIBOR Act
provides that for contracts that contain no fallback pravision or contain fallback provisions that do not identify a
specific USD LIBOR benchmark replacement (including the Special Allowance Payment (SAP) formula for FFELP
Loar\s} a benchmark replacement based on SOFR, as pl.bﬁshed b\r the Federal Reserve Bank ol New York,

any spread adj and will repiace the
USD LIBOR benchmark in the contract after June 30, 2023. On Deoembed' 16, 2022, the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York adopted a final rule that implements the LIBOR Act by identifying bmd1matk nms based on SOFR lhal
will replace LIBOR in certain financial contracts after June 30, 2023. Followil il and in of
the LIBOR Act, all of our financial instruments which were indexed to USD Ll‘BﬂR as olJune 30, 2023 Iransmumd to
SOFR after June 30, 2023,

Despite the | ion of our ial instruments from USD LIBOR lo SOFR, certain aspects of the impact
of the ion of LIBOR ane ition o SOFR remain uncertain, and we are continuing to moniter the value and

4l of our fi i and whether the transition to SOFR continues to produce a retumn that is the
econemic equivalent of LIBOR. The transition from LIBOR, which had historically been one of the mest widely used
benchmarks across the world, to SOFR is a novel event and there is also no guaraniee that the transition will not
result in P d . These ur inti garding the LIBOR itien could have a material adverse
impact on our funding costs, net interest margin, lean and other asset values, assetiability management strategies,
operations, aru'.l other aspects of our business and financial results. Further, our customers, investors and

may be dissati mhlwwSOFRpeﬂbmswmpwedeIBOwammmetrmpmm
occumed. L|ugaﬂm disputes or other action may occur as a result of
counterparties or a result of orin ion to the interp ion and ,ofcerlamfalbackhnwagomwr

contracts onginally based on LIBOR or in the LIBOR Act.

For more information regarding the aclions we have taken with respect to the LIBOR transition, see "Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk — LIBOR Transition to SOFR.”

Prepayments on our loans can materially impact our p. y. results of op
cash flows or future business prospects.
The rate at which borrowers. prepay their loans can have a material impact on p ity, results of i

financial condition, cash flows or fulure business prospects by affecling our net interest margin, the future cash fiows
from our loans including loans held by our securitization trusts. Higher or lower prepayments can resull from a varety
of causes including borrower aalivity and changes in the education loan market as a result of markel conditions,
interest rate s, loan forgi or other g initiath FFELP Loans and Private
Education Leans may be voluntanly prepald v«mom panalty by the or or olidated with the
borrower's other loans through refi rates on educati Inansas!aubjedmavaﬁmol
economic, political, r.ompmvcandotmtaclm luding changes in our P i hang
in interest rates, ilability of financings i and consolidations), legislative, a'xewlnne
and regulatory changes affecting the education loan markot and the general economy. Refinance products offered by
us. our competitors, and the Federal G may the repayment rate on eur FFELP Loans and Private
Education Loans.

In particular, new interpretations of current laws, rules or regulations or future laws, tive orders or other policy
initiatives which operate to or requirg lidation, abolish existing or create aﬁdiﬁunal inoomsmsnd
or debt forgi prog or blish other policies and prog! also may ord

rates on ion loans. For after the invali of the Student Debl Relief (SDR) Plan, ED
announced that it had begun a new rulemaking process o consider other ways to provide debl relief to borrowers,
vmld1 could lndude borrowers with privately held FFELP Loans. ED held several public meeting sessions with a

1 ittee in the fourth quarter of 2023 and in the first quarter of 2024. ED is expected to

publlsh, posed | at for public in May 2024. Further, on July 10, 2023, ED issued final regulations
on Income-driven repayment plans for Direct leans, which are student loans held by ED. Eligible FFELP borrowers
Can access lho W nhangos by cmsolldmg thair loans Into the Direct Loan Program. This new income-driven
activity in the future as FFELP borrowers consolidate their loans into the
Dmt Loan begram in order 1o be eligible for the new income-driven repayment plan.




If ED implements a broad-based student loan forgiveness plan or new It policies or prog ‘that

g orrequlre lo i their loans into Direct Loans held by ED, it will likely result in a
in of our existing education loan portfolio and could materially and adversely impact
our p ility, results of op . financial ion, cash flows or future business prospects. We cannot predict

what {if any) plans or policies regarding broad-based loan forgiveness or other related policies or programs may
ultimately be implemented, the timing of when such plans or policies may be implemented, andler the outcome of
such actions,

FFELP Loans may also be repaid after default by the Guarantors of FFELP Loans. Conversely, borrowers might not
dmsshopmpaylhakoducmloam or the tarms of their education loans may be as a result of grace

periods, i i plans, or other repayment terms or monthly payment amount
mdlnmnm agreed fo by the senvicer, ht example. FFELP Loan borrowers may be eligible for varous existing
income-based repayment programs under which bormowers can qualify for reduced or zero monthly payment or even
debt focuiwms afler a certain number of years of repayment.

of of idized funding at below market interest rates — whether from
federal or private sources — — could increase the prapayment rates of our existing Private Education Loans and have a
material adverse effect on our results of financial son, cash flows or fulure business
prospects.

wm respect to our securitization trusts when, as a result of i d levels, ion loans within
trust ize faster than origi d, the trust's pool balance may decline at a rate faster
rhln the prepayment rate assumed when the tlust’s bondsm originally issued, If the trust's pool balance declines
faster than originally anticipated, in most of our securitization structures, the bonds issued by that trust will also be
repaid faster than originally anticipated, In such cases, our net inlerest income may decrease and our future cash
flows from the trust may simitarly decline. C ly. when education loans within a it trust
mare slowly than onginally contracted, the trust's pool balance may decline more skowly than the prepayment rate
assumed when the trust's bonds were originally issued. and the bonds may be repaid more slowly than originally
anticipated. In these cases, our net interest income increases and our future cash flows from the trust may increase.
It is also possible, if the prep rate is especially slow and certain rights of the sellers or the servicer are not
exercised or are insufficient or other action is not taken to counter the slower prepayment rate, the trust's bonds may
not be repaid by their legal final maturity date(s), which could result in an event of default under the underlying
securitization agreemenis.
Our ability to hedge Floor Income and our ability te enter into hedges relative to that Floer Income s
dependent on the future interest rate environment and therefore is variable, which may adversely affect our
earnings.

FFELP Loans disbursed before April 1, 2006 generally eam inlerest at the higher of either the borrower rate, which is
fixed over a period of time, or a floating rate based on a Special Alowance Payment or SAP formula set by ED. We
have generally financed our FFELP Loans with floating rate debt whose interest is matched closely to the floating
nature of the applicable SAP formuta. Historically, these loans have been indexed to either the Treasury bill,
commercial paper or one-month LIBOR rates, The SAP formula, which was indexed to one-month LIBOR prior to the
transition away from LIBOR, transitioned to 30-day Average SOFR after June 30, 2023,

If a decline in interest rates causes the borrower rate to exceed the SAP formula rate, we will continue to eam interest
on the loan at the fixed borrower rale while the floating rate interest on our deb! will continue to decline. The
additional spread eamed between the fixed borrower rale and the SAP formula rate is referred to as “Floor Income.”
The transition from LIBOR to SOFR as a benchmark rate may have a further detrimental impact on our debl originally
indexed to LIBOR if rates suddenly rise as new market borrowing activity transfers to other benchmark rates.
Depending on the type of FFELP Loan and when it was originated , the borrower rate is either fixed to term or is reset
to a market rate on July 1 of each year. For loans where the borrower rate is fixed to term, we may eam Floor Income
for an extended period of time; for those loans where the borrower interest rale is reset annually on July 1, we may
earn Floor Income to the next reset date, In accordance with legislation enacted in 2006, holders of FFELP Loans are
required to rebate Floor Income to ED for all FFELP Loans disbursed on or after Apnil 1, 2006.

Floor Income can be volatde as market rales and the rates on the underlying education loans move up and down.
Subject to p iling market it we lly hedge this risk by using derivatives in an effort to lock in a
portion of our Floor Income over the lerm of the contract. A rise in interest rates will reduce the amount of Floor
Income received on the FFELP Loans not presently hedged with derivatives, which will compress our net interest
margins. Furthar, sur ability to hedge Floor and our ability to enter into hedges relative to that Floor income is
dependent on the future interest rate environment and therefore is varable, which may adversely affect our earnings.
Additionally, net interest margins can be negaltively impacted by unusual variances between 30-day and 90-day
Average SOFR
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Ow:.mmnm: mlmpomm to our liquidity. A reduction in our credit ratings could adversely affect our
g costs or limit our access fo the capital markets.

As of Dar.embnr 31, 2023, Moody's, S&P and Fitch rated our long-t debl below | W grade. In
addition, the capital markets for sub-i grade ies are not as liquid as those involving investment
grade enfities. These factors have resulted in a higher cost of funds for us and have caused our senior unsecured
debt to trade with greater volatility,

Our unsecured debl tolaled $5.9 bilion at December 31, 2023. We ulilize the unsecured debt markets to help fund
our business and refinance outstanding debt. The amount, type and cost of this funding directly affect the cost of
operating our business and growing our assels and are dependent upon outside factors, including our credit raling
from rating agencies. There can be no assurance thal our credit ratings will not be reduced further. A reduction in the
credit ratings of our senior unsecured debl could adversely affect our liquidity, increase our borrowing costs, mit our
access to the capital markets and place incremental pressure on net interest income.

market or an inabili e our ty risk or access liquidity could
negatively impact our abllity to mmam.ﬂquidw:nd nmo‘m noodk. which could materially and adversely
impact our results of operations, cash flow or financial condition.

We must effectively manage our liquidity risk. We require liquidity and the ability to access funds held at banks and
other fi 1o meet cash such as day-lo-day oparnung expenses, origination of loans,
required payments of principal and interest on b and d holders. We expect to fund our
ongeing liquidity needs, including the repayment of $5. 9 billion of senior unsocured notes that mature in 2024 to
2043, primarily through our cument cash, |mres1menui and unencumbered FFELP Lnan and ana!a Education
Refinance Loan pmﬂolnns the predi g cash flows p by , the of

i on du loan asam, “and the dstnb\.mnn of overcollateralization from aur securitization
trusts. We may also, depending on markel itions and avai draw down on outsawved FFELP Loan and
Private Education Loan facilities, issue term ABS, enter into additional Private Loan AB
facilities, or issue debt. We may maintain toa much liquidity, which can be costly, otmayham
iliquid or may be unable to access funds held at banks and other financial institutions due 1o such banks or financial
institulions entering receivership or becoming insolvent. which could result in financial distress during times of
financial siress or capital markel disruplions.

The interest rate characteristics of our earning assets do not always match the interast rate characteristics of
our funding arrangemants, which may have a negative impact on our net interest income and net income.

Net interest income is the pnmarmr source of cash flow generated by our portfolios of FFELP Loans and Private
Loans. F of USD LIBOR on June 30, 2023, interest eamed on FFELP Loans and

variable rate Privale Educahon Loans is primarily indexed 1o one-month Term SOFR, 30-day Average SOFR or

Prime Rate, and inlerest earned on variable rate Private ion Loans origi in D ber 2021 or

thereafter is indexed to 30-day Average SOFR. In contrast, certain of our debt is indexed to rates ofher than one-

maonth Term SOFR, 30-day Average SOFR or Prime Rate, or if indexed to one-month Term SOFR or 30-day Average

SOFR, it has a different repricing frequency.

The different interest rale characlenstics of our loan portfolios and the labilities funding these loan portfolios resull in
basis risk and repricing risk. It is not economically feasible to hedge all of our exposure to such risks. While the asset
and hodge indices are shor-term with rate movemants that are typically highly correlated, there can be no assurance
that the historically high correlation will not be disrupted by cupllal market dnsiocabons or other factors not within our
centrol, There have been situations in the past in which we g spreads b th and
three-month LIBOR and the cost of hedging this variance was prohibitive, which we may also experience with
different SOFR-based indices. We cannot provide any assurance thal such a situation will not occur and if it did
eceur, it weuld potentially reduce our net interest margins and net income. In these circumstances, our earnings could
be materially adversely affected.

Qur use of derivatives to manage interest rate and foreign currency sensitivity exposos us to crodit and
market risk that could have a material adverse effect on our earnings and liquidity.

We strive lo maintain an overall sirategy that uses derivatives to minimize the economic effect of interest rate and/or
foreign However, ping an effective strategy for dealmgm these movements is complex,
and no slralcg)r can completely avoid the ﬁsks | with these fi e, our tion loan
portfolio s subject to prepayment risk that could result in being under- or mrvmdged which could result in material
losses, As a resull, there can be no assurance that hedging activities using derivatives will effectively manage our
interest rate or foreign currency sensitivity, have the desired beneficial impact on our results of operations or financial
condition or not adversely impact our liquidity.




Our use of derivatives also exposes us lo markel nsk and credit risk. Market risk is the chance of financial loss
resulting from changes in interesi rates, foreign exchange rates and markel liquidity. Our Floor Income Contracts and
basis swaps we use 10 manage earnings variability caused by different reset characteristics on interest-eaming
assels and interest-bearing liabilities do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. Therefore, the change in fair
value, called the “mark-lo-market,” of these derivative i is inchuded in our of income without a
comesponding mark-to-market of the economically hedged item. A decline in the fair value of these derivatives could
have a material adverse effect on our reporied earnings. In addition, a change in the mark-to-market vaiue of these
instruments mayy cause us ko have o post more collateral to our counterparty or to a clearing house. If these values
change si the i i 1 posting req could have a material adverse impact on our
Hquldlly,

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty, for a period of time or indefinitely, will not perform its obligations under a
contract or is not permitted to perform its obligations under a contract due to the counterparty entering receivership or
becoming insolvent. Credit risk Is limited to the loss of the fair value gain in a derivative that the counterparty or
clearinghouse owes or will owe in the future 1o us. If a counterparty or dlearinghouse fails to perform its obligations,
we could, depending on the type of counterparty arrangement, experience a loss of liquidity or an economic loss. In
addition, we might not be able to cost effectively replace the ive position on the type of derivative
and the current economic environmenl.

Our securitization trusts, which we consolidate on our balance sheet, had $1.6 billion of Euro denominated bonds
outstanding as of December 31, 2023. To convert these non-U.S. dollar denominated bonds into U.S. dollar liabidities,
the trusts have entered into foreign-currency swaps with highly rated counterpartios. A failure by a swap counterparty
1o perform its obligations could, if the swap has a pesitive fair value o us and was not adequately collataralized,
materially and adversely affect our earnings.

OPERATIONAL RISKS.

If we dn noreﬂhcumy aw cmunuaﬂ:r align our cost structure with our business operations, our results of
o and fi could be materially adversely affected.

‘We continually strive to align our cost with our busi perati The ability to properly size our cost
structure is dependent upon a number of variables, i ing our ability to fully execule on our business
plans, growth or g and future legisiative or regulatory changes. Persistent inflation, as experienced
throughout 2023, could significantly increase our ongoing operaling costs and reduce our net income. Additionally, on
January 30, 2024, as a result of an in-depth review of our business, we announced three sirategic actions to simplify
our pany, reduce our exp base, and our flexibility. See “Business — Overview and Fundamentals
of our B — Recent Busi D * for more information on our strategic actions. We could fail 1o
fully i our ic actions or may fail to fully realize the anticipated benefits from the sirategic
actions or the benefits may take longer 1o realize than expected. Further, we may fail to implement, or be unable to
achieve, necessary cost savings with our busi and I we costr
based on our business plan or the implementation of our recently announced strategic actions, those reductions, if
not undertaken property, could cause disruptions in our business, reductions in the quality of the services we provide
of even cause us (o !al to compPy with applicable regulatory standards. In each case, our business, results of

P and could be adversely affected,
A failure of our op g Sy or e could disrupt our business, cause significant losses,
resuit in reg 'y action or ge our
A failure of our i inft could disrupt our busi . Our busi is d dent on the
Mrywpmmsandmommlalwnumbersofdldywnumnsm i with contractual, legal and reguiatory

standards and our own product specifications, both currently and in the future. 'We have strategic agreements with a
third party, the primary provider of led1mlngy solutions for servicing our FFELP Loans and our Private Education
Loans. We 3 the logy solutions for our other lines of business as well as our customer

As our pr ing and Iom rifolios change, both in volume and in terms and
cmdmonrs our ability to develop and maintain our and i may | become nuwsngly
challenging. There is no assurance that we have adequalewot ficient ped, q or scaled
such systems and infrastructure or will do so in the future.

The data ing and other g systems and facilities thal support our
business may fail to operate pmﬂy or become disabled as a resull of events that are beyond our control, adversely
affecting our ability to timely process transactions. Any such failure could adversely affect our ability to service our
clients and result in financial loss or Hability to our clients, disrupt our business, and result in reguiatory action or
cause repulational damage.
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Despite the plans and facilities we have in place, our abdity to conﬁucl. business may be adversely affected by a

g P in the i P our This may include a disruption involving
Internet, or other services used by us or third parties with which we
conduct business.
We d!plndon secure ml‘urmam mhnuhw. cmu .Imm'h ofw i gy 5Y could
result in losses, of ion and ional damage, which
would adversely affect our mi’nou
Qur operations rely on the secure processing, storage and ission of ial and other
information in our computer systems and networks. ugh we take P i we deem and
mpdale Hm other financial insti our syslems, and may be to

access, puter viruses, malic altacks, ransomware attacks and other cybersecurity evenls that
could have a securily impact beyond our control. These lechnologies, syslems and networks, and those of third
jparties, may become the target of cyber-attacks or information security bread\oe that could result in the unauthorized
release, gathering, montoning, misuse, 10ss of ion of our cust prop y and other
information, the loss of access to our systems and networks or those of third parties we rely upon orom“ndso disrupt
our business operations or hose of our customers or other third parties. Information security risks for institutions that

handle large of ions on a daily basis such as Navient have generally increased in recent
years, in part of the prolife of new the use of the Intemet and telecommunications
to conduct fi ial { and the i d 1 and activities of organized crime,

hackers, lerrorists, activisis and other external parties. In addition, our increased use of mobile and cloud
technologies could heighten these and other operational risks. Any failure by our service providers, including our
mobile or cloud technelogy service providers, to adequalely safeguard their systems and prevent cyber-attacks could
dusrupt ouraperalbns or those of third parties we rely upon anﬁ msult in interruptions of services or loss of access or
ption or loss of or p ien. Moreovar, the loss of confidental

jon could harm our reputation, result in the lermination of contracls by our existing
customers and subwu us to liability under state, redem and mlemmal laws that protect confidential personal data,
resulting in increased costs, loss of and

If one or more of such events occur, p ial and other i ion processed and stored in, and
transmitted Ihrnugh our computer Eys!sms and networks could be jecpardized or ouuld cause mberruphuns or
malfunctions in our operations that could result in signficant losses or tinely transmit
and receive personal, confidential and proprietary information, some of it through third punies We mdm.aln secure
transmission capability and work to ensure lhul thlrd parbes luilow similar p i ani
misuse ar mishandling of i bemgsenltonrramuedfrunamalmr
orﬂwdpaﬂynnudreaulmagalhabany ,mnnand ional harm, In the event persenal, confidential
or other inf or mishandled, or our sy or thosa of third parties we
rely upon suffer |nlcrmp1nns in :omou or Ios: of access, we may need o lxpend significant additional resources lo
maodify our protective measures or lo i gate and of other exp and we may be
subject 1o fines. ies, itigation and costs and financial losses that may nol be insured or may not be
fully covered through insurance. If one or more of such events occur, our business, financial condition or results of
could be and ad y affected.

P

We depend on third parties for a wide array of services, tems and info i fnol licatit
and a breach or violation of law by one of these third parties could disrupt our business or provide our

T with an opp ty to enh their p al our expense.
We depend on third parties for a wide array of services, sy and i i ications. Third-party
vendors are significantly involved in many aspects of our soffy and sy development, servicing systems, the
timely transmission of information across. our dala communication network, and for other lelecommunications,
processing, i and lechnols d ices in ion with our servicing or payment services
businesses. In addition to bed'mdomr appﬂcaibns we also utilize various Ihlrd-pen)r service providers across our
business, including in connection with our loan originations and in in the of Private E L

Loans and in other areas and in the future, may utilize a third-party service provider lo service all or a portion of our
loan portfolio. If a service provider fails to provide the services required or expecled, or fails to meet applicable
contraciual or regulatory requirements such as semce levels or compliance with applicable laws, the failure could
gatively impact our business by g. for ple, the p g of ions in a
tlmel\r and accurate manner, otherwise hampering our ability to serve cur customers, or subjecting us to Ilhgahm and
regulatory risk for matters as diverse as poor vendor ight or improper release or i
information, Such a failure could also y affect the of the reliability of oumemrlus and services
and the quality of our brands, which could oY ly affect our busi and results of operations.




Qur work with government clients and servicing for the federal government exposes us to additional risks.
Federal

g ts a, g policy g by federal sp g
deadlines may result in disruption of payments for services we provide to the government, which could
materially and adversely affect our gy or future prosp

Qur clients include federal, state and local governmental entities. This work carries various risks inherent in the
govemment contracting process. These risks include, but are nat limited to, the following:

- Wt ane affected by the political or budgelary processes of the United
States govermnment. Somelimas the political process leads to government shutdown of all parts of the
federal or state govemment. This can lead to work or pay delays. Contracts

may be cancelled or altered due lo political or policy priorities.

. Gcwemrnent enlities in the United Svmes often reserve the right to audil coniract costs and conducl
ns of These entities also conduct reviews and investigations

and rnalm i g systems, includi of third parties, used in connection with the
performance of the mnlrads Negative inﬂnng: lrom audits, investigations or inquiries could affect the
contractor's future revenues and g them, ion of law or in practice, (i) from
receiving mgwmemmacbform period nrlimno«{u]fmm being paid at the rale they believe
is warranted.

+ I improper or illegal activities are found in the course of g audits or i

the
may become subject to various civil and criminal panalhes, including those under the civil U.S. False
Claims Acl. Additionally, we may be subject lo adrnmmm sanctions, which may hcludu Iermlnalmn o
non-renewal of contracts, iture of profits, of pay fines and
from doing with other agencies of that g Due to the inherent Ilrrxtauons of
internal controls, it may not be possible to detect or prevent aII improper or illegal activities.

The diti ibed above could affect not only our busi with the

entities involved, hut also our business or potential fulure business with other entiies of the same or other
govemmental bodies or with commercial clients and could have a material adverse effect on our business of our
results of operations.

Additionally, Navient receives payments from the federal government on its FFELP Loan portfolio. Payments for
these services may be affected by various factors, including if in the future, the administration and Congress engage
in a prolonged debate linking the federal deficit, debt celling and other budget issuas. If U.5. lawmakers in the fulure
fail to reach agreement on these issues, the federal government could stop or delay payment on its obligations,
including those on services Navient provides with respect to the servicing of the FFELP Loan pertfolio and other
govemment-related work. Further, legislation to address the faderal deficit and Spendmg could impose proposals that
wnulﬂ advmaiy aﬂad the FFELP-related servicing business or other g d work. A p

or flation of the demand for the services Navient provides, or pmposad changes o the
terms or Dm:ng of services provided under existing contracts with the federal government, could have a material
adverse effect on Navient's fevenues, cash flows, profitability and business outlook, and, as a result, could materially
adversely affect its iion and results of operati Navient cannot predict how or what
programs or policies will be impacted by any actions that the Administration, Congress or the federal government
may take.

Qur business could be negatively impacted as a result of sharehold fwi including a proxy conlest or
an unsolicited takeover proposal.

We have been and may continue to be the subject of actions taken by activist shareholders. While we strive to

maintain constructive, ongoing with all of our and welcome their views and opinions
with the goal of enhancing value for all shareholders, we may be subject to actions or proposals from activist
shareholders that may nol align with our 1 gies or the i of our other shareholders. Responding (o
such actions may be costly and time 9, disrupt our busis and udlvnrlmeaﬂ.enbonofw
Board of Directors, management, and smralaym from the pursuit of our busi Such ities could

interfere with our ability to execute our strategic plan.
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Evaen if we are successful in a proxy contest or in def against any
could be adversely affected by any such proxy contest or unsolici attemp! b

»  perceived uncertainties as fo future direction may result in the loss of potential acquisitions, collaborations
or other sirategic opportunities, and may make it more difficult to attract and retain qualified personnel and

attempt, our business

business pariners;
+ ifindividuals are elected or appeinted to cur Board of Directors with a specific agenda, it may adversely
affect our ability to ively and timely imp our gic plan and create additional value for our

shareholders: and

# il individuals are elected or appointed to our Board of Directors who do nol agree with our siralegic plan,
me nbully of our Boem of Directors to function effectively could be mrsely affected, which could in tum
affect our busi ing results and fi

Uncertainties relaled 1o, or the resulls of, such actions could cause our slock price to experience periods of volatility.
The of any of the f ing evenis could o ity affect our busi

We cannot predicl. and no assurances can be given, as o the oulcome or timing of any mamm rdanng to the

going actions by shareholders or the ultimale impact on our Hquidity, fi ion or results of
operations, and any of these matters or any further actions by this or other shareholders may impact and result in
volatility or stagnation of the price of our slock.

REGULATORY, COMPLIANCE & LEGAL RISK.

Our businesses are subject to a wide variety of laws, rules, requlations and g policies that may
dlmgc!ﬂ swﬁclmmys. and cmlu to such laws lnd'ugu!ﬂfwls nrchlneu in existing regulatory

P could materially ly impact our business and results
nfopmﬂons

Our businesses are subject to a wide variety of U.5. federal and state and non-U.S, laws, rules, regulations and
policies. There can be no assurance that these laws, rules, regulations and policies will not be changed in ways that
will require us to modify our businesa models or objectives or in ways that affect our returns on investment by

ing existing acti or change how our companies operate or the characteristics of our assets,
subjecting them to escalating costs or mw or increased taxes or prohibiting them outright.

The CFPB has authority with respect to several aspects of our busi It has ity to write regulations under
federal consumer financial protection laws and to directly or indirectly enforce those laws and examine us for
compliance. The CFPB also has ion and enf hority with respect lo various federal consumer
financial laws for some providers of consumer financial products and mm including us. New rules if
implemented, could have a material effect on our consumer lending or other businesses and may result in significant

capital itures to develop that enable us to comply with the new regulations.
The CFPB is authorized to impose ¥ ies, collect fines and pmvide consumer restitution in the event of
violations, engage in consumer fi ial ion, track plaints, request data and promole the

of financial ices to und d and ‘I'heCFFBhes ity o bring an

action to prevent unfair, deceplive or abusive acts or practices and fo ensure that all consumers have access to fair,
transparent and competitive markats for consumer financial products and services. The review of products and
practices to prevent unfair, deceptive or abusive conduct will be a confinuing focus of the CFPE. The ullimate impact
of this heightened scrutiny is uncertain, but it has resulted in, and could continue to result in, changes to pricing,
practices, products and procedures. It has also resulted in, and could continue to result in, momased costs relaled lo
reguiatory oversight, supervision and ion, additional iation efforts and possible p

In addition, where a company has viclated Title X of the Dodd-Frank Act or CFPB regulations implemented under
Tite X of the Dodd-Frank Act, the Dodd-Frank Act empowers State Attiorneys General and state regulators, under
certain circumstances 1o bring civil actions lo remedy violations of state law. If the CFPB or one or more State
Attorneys General or state regulators believe that we have violaled any of the applicable laws or regulations, they
could exercise their enforcement powers in ways that could have a material adverse effect on us or our business,

The CFPE filed an action agamsl usin ..lanuaqr of 201? which is curmmiy pending. A description of the CFPB action
is included in "Mote 12 - Ci Also, in 2022, we entered into a series of
Consent Judgments and Orders {lhe‘.kgveuﬂenu ] w!th 40 State Arhumeys General to resolve all matters in dispute
relaled lo the certain state atiomeys general cases as well as the related investigations, subpoenas, civil invesligative
demands and inquiries from various other state regulators.




Our FFELP Loans are subject to the HEA and related laws, rules, requiations and policies, Qur nmdng operalions
are designed and monitored to comply with the HEA, relaled reg and program g ED could
determine that we are not in compliance for a variety of reasons, including that we misinterpreted ED guidance or
incorrectly applied the HEA and its related laws, rules, regulations and policies, Failure to comply could result in fines,
the loss of the Insuram and mlalnd I'oﬂaral guaraniees on affected FFELP Loans, expenses required to cure
servicing ion of our right to participate as a FFELP servicer, negative publicity
and potential legal claims. The lnww" of significant fines, the loss of the insurance and relaled federal guaraniees
on a material number of FFELP Loans, the incurrence of additional expenses andior the loss of our ability to
parlicipate as a FFELP servicer could individually or in the aggregate have a material, negative impact on our
business, financial condition or results of operations.

Our businesses are also subject o regulation and oversight by various state and federal agencies, particularly in the
area of consumer pmlemn. and are subject to numerous state and federal laws and regulations. Several states

have passed or proposed student loan jeing rules or legisk and several others have imposed license or other
requirements. Imposition of new Im r|||es or requlam of the failure to comply with these laws and regulations
may result in significant costs, i g costs, and/or busi sanctions i ing but not limited to

termination or non-renewal of contracts.

P y and g ight of our will i our costs and risks.

‘We are now, and may in the future be, subject to inquiries and audits from state and federal regulators as well as
Iitigation from private plaintiffs. in recent years, wa have entered into consent orders and other settlements, We have
provided monetary and other relief in connection with the resolution of some of these actions and settlements. We
have also enhanced our procedures and controls, expanded the risk and control functions within each line of
business, invested in technology and hired additional risk, control and compliance porsonnai.

Il’ournﬂ(andoonlrol pmcodumsmdpmomﬂslmllnmmm d of our reg and other
we could be d to enter inlo further order; and sell]emenis provide additional monetary
relief, or accept material y restri on our busi . which could adversely affect our operations and, in
turn, our financial results.
‘We expect heightened regulatory scrutiny and g tal i and L actions lo continue for
us and for the financial services mdusw as a whole. Such actions can have significant consequences for a financial
institution such as ours, ding loss of and busi and the inability 1o operate certain businesses.
Further, legislative and U o COVID-19 have had a signi impact on our education loan

portfolios. Inmrpbmmwﬁh Im C.ARESMandmlatadexunMn actions, payments and interest accrual on all

loans owned by ED were suspended from March of 2020 to September 2023 Sao risk factor entitled "—Prepayments

onourioaﬂscnn i Imoaclouru. illity, results of i dition, cash flows or future
prospects” for additi jon on the SOR Plan.

Due 1o the memmmy engundeled by these new regulations, legislation. guidance and actions, coupled with the
to the local, state and federal slatutes, regulations and practices
apphcablalomh«smm wsammtnhloloeﬂmabemeummalolmpadotchangesmmmwrlmaelmm
o or i Webohavemalmeowef P g to and lying with these hving laws
and i as well as any g from actions, will oonlklue to increase, as will the nskof
penalties and fines from any enforcement actions that may be imposed on our businesses, Our profitability, results of
operations, financial condition, cash flows or future business prospects could be materially and adversely affected as
a result.
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GOVERNANCE RISK.

Certain provisions of Delaware law and our and ifi of incorp and ded
and restated by-laws may prevent or delay an acquisition of us, which could decrease the trading price of
our common stock.

Certain provisions of Delaware law and of our amended and leslxled certificate of moormwu and second
amended and restated by-laws are i d to deter bids
among other things, o iate directly with aur Boml of Direclors rather lhun la
altemp! a hostile takeover, These pmslom -ndude among olheﬁ

= limitations on the ability of our shareholders to call a special meeting such that shareholder-requested
special meetings will only be called upen the request of the holders of at least one-third of cur capital stock
issued and outstanding and entitled to vote at an election of directors:

= rules regarding how shareholders may present propesals or nominate direclors for election at shareholder
meetings;

«  the right of our Board of Directors lo issue one or more series of preferred stock without shareholder
approval;

= the inability of our shareholders to fill vacancies on our Board of Directors;

«  the requiremant that the affirmative vole of the holders of at least 75% in voting power of our stock entitled
to vole thereon is required for shareholders to amend our amended and restated by-laws; and

= the nability of our shareholders to cumulate their votes in the election of directors.

‘We are also subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. Section 203 generally provides that,
with limited exceplions, persons who acquire, or are affiliated with a person that acquires, 15% or more of the
oulstanding voling stock of a Delaware corporation shaﬂ not engage in any business combination with that
corporation, including by merger, consolidation or of al shares, for a three-year period folowing
the time at which that persen or its affiliates becomes the holder of 15% or more of the corporation’s outstanding
wvoting stock. Being subject to Section 203 could cause a delay in or completely prevent a change of control that
shareholders may favor.

We believe these isi protect our shareholders from coercive or olherwise unfair takeover tactics by requiring
potential aleulrura lo negotiate mth aur Board of Direclors and by providing our Board of Directors with mare time to
ASHESS ANy |. These p are not intended to make us immune from takeovers. However,

thase provisions will apw Mn if the aﬂor may be considered benaficial by some shareholders and could delay or
prevent an acquisilion that our Board of Direclors determines is not in the best interests of us and our shareholders.

Sharcholders’ hip in Navient may be diluted in the future.
In the future, sh [ It hi In Ns\dunl may be diluted as a resull of equity issuances for
acquisitions, capital market ions or g future equity awards that we may grant to our

directors, officers and employees. If made, these awards will havu a dilutive effect on our eamings per share, which
could adversely affect the market price of shares of our common stock.

In addition, our and restaled it of incorporation permits us lo issue, without the approval of our
sharsholders, ane or more series of preferred stock. Our Board of Directors generally may determine the rights of
preferred shareholders including their powers, pref and refative, ing, optional and other special

rights, including preferences over our commeon stock with respect to dividends and distributions. If our Board wera fo
approve the issuance of preferred stock in the future, the terms of one or more serles of such preferred stock could
dilute the voting power or reduce the value of our common stock. For example, we could grant the holders of
preferred stock the right to elect some number of our di in all ch or upon the h g of
specified avents, or the right to veto specified transactions. Similarly, we could grant the preferred shareholders
certain repurchase or redemption rights or liquidation preferences that could affect the value of the common stock.

Our il of ir ation de the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware as the exclusive
forum for certain litigation that may be initiated by our shareholders, which could limit our shareholders’
ability to obtain a kwnﬂo}uﬂﬂmhmmfwdhpnmm us,

Our certi of i that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware will be the sole and
exclusive forum for (i) any demawo action or proceeding brought on our behalf, (i) any action asserting a claim of
breach of a fiduciary duty owed to us or our shareholders by any of our direclors, officers, employees or agenis, (i)
any action asserling a claim against us arising under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (DGCL)
of (iv) any action asserting a claim against us that is governed by the intemal affairs doctrine. By becoming a
shareholder in our company, holders of our common stock will be deemed o have notice of and have consented 1o
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the wwlmn:dwammdod and mdcmﬂnmolmm«m related to choice of forum. The choice of forum
in our ded and restated of i poration may limit cur shareholders’ ability to obtain a
favarable judlual forum for disputes with us.

REPUTATIONAL/POLITICAL RISK.

Reputational risk and social factors may impact our results and damage our brand.

Negalwe publi: opinion or darnagu to our brand could eccur as a result of actual or alleged :ondl.m in any number of

lendlﬂu practices, regulatory security g the use
and ion of corporate gi wce, and sales and marketing, and lmm actions taken by
regulators or other persons. Such mndud could fall short of our customers’ and the public’s heightened expectations
of companies of our size with rigorous data, privacy and compliance practices, and could further harm our reputation,
In addition, third parties with whom we have important relationships may take actions over which we have limited
control that could negatively impact perceptions about us or the financial services industry. The proliferation of social
media may increase the likelihood that negative public opinion from any of the events discussed above will impact cur
reputation and business.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH OUR SPIN-OFF.

Navient owes g incl g service and e b te SLM BankCo under various
! ‘nuplr!oﬂbosmn-oﬂ These g could be materially
dismpdvamﬂmnnl‘s .hus.inm or subfect it to sub liabilities, i i iabilities and

liabilities that are p

In connection with the Snln-Oﬁ from SLM BankCo, Navient, SLM Corporation and SLM BankCo entered into various
agreements.

The and distribution ag b Mavient, SLM (‘.'ofporamn and SLM em provides for, among
other things, igati designed lo make Mavient i y all li

that may exist whether incurred Dl‘lor to or after the Spin-Off, relating lo the busi Aiviti o1' SLMC

prior to the Spin-Off, other than those arising out of the consumer banking business and expressly assumed by SLM
BankCo in the separation and di 1 ag! II Navient is required to indemnify SLM BankCo under the
circumstances set forth in the ion and distri g Navient may be subject to substantial liabilities
including liabilities that are accrued, i ise and reg of whether the liabilities were known or

unknown at the time of the Spin-Off. SLM &ankcu is party to various claims, litigation and legal, requlatory and other
proceedings resulting from ordinary business acnvillss relating to its current and former operations. Previous
business activities of SLM BankCo, inciudi jons and acquisitions of various classes of consumer loans
oulside of Sallie Mae Bank, may also ms.ult in Imhlny due to future laws, rules, interpretations or court decisions
which purport to have retroactive effect, and such liability could be significant. SLM BankCo may also be subject to
liabilibes related lo past ies af i Itis a.rrme and in some cases impossible, 1o

il the p losses ! with and unk of this nature, but future losses may
be substantial and may be bome by Navient in accordance with the terms of the separation and distribution
agreement,

STRATEGIC RISK.

Net Income on our existing FFELP Loan portfelio is declining over time. We may not be able lo develop
revenue streams lo replace the declining revenue from FFELP Loans through Increased private credit
originations.

In 2010, C passed legislation ending the # loans under the FFELP program. Since
then, all federal education bans have been ununaled lJ’vbu-,gh the DSLP oI’the ED. Whlle the 2010 law did not alter
or affect the terms and conditions of existing FFELP Loans, it signifi loan industry. As a

result of this legislation, net income on our FFELP Loan portfolio is declining, and is anlk:palsd to continue to decline,
over ime as those existing FFELP Loans are paid down, refinanced or repaid after default.

Additionally, our ability to grow is significantly dependent upnn our ability to nngmnhu new in-school and refinance
loans. In 2023, the student loan refi market as a result of the
significant increase in inlerest rates, the proposed SDR Plan and the omnuad moraloﬁ.lm on student loan
repayments, Although student loan payments on ED held loans resumed in October 2023, inferest rates remain high
and the new income-driven repayment plan for which ED issued final regulations in July 2023 and the potential new

re ions by ED g loan ¢ ion may ien activity in the future as FFELP bormowers

consoﬁﬂalemmrbmmlc LheDwadLoan Progmnmmdeflubed.gble for such programs and plans. These

fac‘nors o some b from refi g their direct student hans and have negatively
our inati To the extent that such addits are i such

implementation may nagahvﬂy impact our future student loan origination volume and our profitability, results of
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oparations, Hnannal mmhm. cash flows or future business prospects could be mﬂnnaly and adversely aﬂ'oclod as
a result. on our loans can ially impact our y. results of
financial condition, cash l’lwus o future business prospects”,

business and financial condition.

Our growth strategy has included making opportunistic acquisitions of, or material invesiments in, loan portfolios and
complementary businesses and products,

or that we pursue may not be successful and could harm our

Al it of i i or loan portfolios involve financial risks as well as operational risks. There
may be additional rl$k$ |lwe éﬁbél iI‘WD a line of business in which we have imited expenence or which aperates in a
legal, or with which we are not familiar. The expected benefits of acquisitions and

Investments also may nnl be realized for various reasons, including the loss of key personnel, customers or vendors,
If we fail to lrmgmne or realize the expected beﬂeﬁts of our acquisitions or Investments, we may lose the return on

these or incur costs, and our business and financial condition may

be harmed as a rosul:

Our strategy may also include rnal:lng dmsmums of certain brands or businesses. If we are unable lo complete

div ul ¥ Including Iha Hecti of the related
costs, services, and the of relationships with ¢

and other businoss partners, our business, financial condition of results of operations could be mgaﬁvm

impacted. Even if such ions are leted, the antici| d growth and other strategic objectives of such

transactions may not be fully realized or may take Ionger o realize than expecied, which may adversely affect any
anticipated benefits from such transactions.

GENERAL RISK FACTORS.

Our framework for managing risks may not be effective in mitigating the risk of loss,

Our P sk g ir seeks to mitigate risk and appropriately balance risk and retums. We
have i and i fo identify, . monitor, control and report the types of
risk to which we are subject. Wi seek to monitor and controd risk exposure through a framework of policies,
procedures, limits and reporting requirements. Management of risks in some cases depends upon the use of
analytical and forecasting models. If the models we use lo mitigate these risks are inadequalte, we may incur
mcreased losses In addmwl thwe may be risks that exist, or that develop in the future, that we have not
approp itigated. If our risk does not i ldenll!y or
mitigate nsks wa could suffer unexpedna losses, and our results of ti cash flow or financial 1 could
be malerially adversely affected.

m-maub}wmudnwwrmmanﬂmwm"w, gs or other g
may or resulis from operations.

‘We are subject toa varlaty of legal proceedings in vifually every part of ourbusnsss (see "Note 12 — Commitments,
Contingencies and Guarantees”). While we believe we have adopted legal and risk and
compliance programs, the diverse nature of our operations, including operations of business we have recently
acquired, means that legal and npli risks will i o exist and addi | legal p dings and other
contingencies, the cutcome of which cannot be predlched with cenmmy will arise from time to time. Some of these
legal pi ings or other conling may y ad ity affect our business. financial condition or results
from operations.

f and P by in with the prep of our
fi I statements could ly affect our rep i assets, ities, income, or

The preparation of our lidated financial requires o make critical accounting estimates
and ions that affect the reported of assets, liabilities, income, revenue or expenses during the
reporting . Incormect esti and ptions by could affect our
of assets, labilities, income, revenue and expenses dnnng the rep-omng periods. If we make incorrect assumptions or
estimates, our repomd financial results may be over or d, which could lally and ad y affect our
and results of X




results of

If we are mmrommrmmmmmmmmmsm dership skills, our b

P i and i I may be ly %
Qur suooess is dapanuanl in larga part, on our ability to attract and retain personnel with the knowledge and skills 1o
lead our busi | in our industry are in high demand, and competition for talent is very high.

We must hire, rnlam and motivate appropriate numbers of talented people with diverse skills in order to serve our
clients, respond quickly to rapid and ongoing technology, industry and mau\uecmomc developments, am grow arnd
manage our business. As our business evolves, we must also hire and retain an i number of

with different skills and professional expectations than those of the professionals we have hislorically hired and
retained. If we are unable to successfully integrate, motivate and retain these professionals, our ability to continue 1o
secura work in those industries and for our services and solutions may suffer.

Qur busi te in iti' i and could lose market share and revenues if
compaetitors coﬂ'pnu more amulw!y or oﬁlcl'lnly
We compete with for-profit and not-for-profit g and many with sirong records
of podcm\am We compete based on price, affeclhnenm and wslcmar seMr.o metrics. To the extent our

agg y or more eff ly than us, we could lose market share to them or our service
offsnrlgs may nul prove fo be profrtahle ‘Our business and financial condition may be harmed as a result.
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CYBERSECURITY

Risk Management and Strategy

Navient is dedicated to helping our dlems and kpep their inf ion secure. R izing the i
threats facing all ies, Navient ion security progs (the CISPJ
that utilizes a delenseﬂ—dw&l strategy to prvted Nmnt’s TESOUrCEes, 1nfras1rudule assets and most importantly, cur
customer data and information

The CISP is an integral component o{Nment’s ouomﬂ risk management program and follows the same risk
and fr

phy g ‘s Di 8 Iﬂd Aﬂalym of Financial Condition
and Resulls of O i Risk M " The hon of ur formation secuity into
our broader risk d so that risks and idh are a critical part of

Navient's overall risk management and ﬁadtlon-maklng ProCesses.
The overall objective of the Navient CISP is lo establish effective enterprise-wide pollﬁes standards, programs,

procedures and strategies that address the security of Navienl's @, data and
information assets. The CISP includes administrative, technical, and physical salaguaﬂﬂs doslgmd o achdm cortaln

bjecii Inchudi g the security, Y, integrity and ilabili g against
aﬂy reasonably Bumpalsd lhreats or hazards o the swuﬂly or integrity o(&ud\ hlorrnallm Dlul.ec‘hng ‘against
unauthorized access 1o or use of such information that could result in harm or i ence to any
customer of individual, or to Navient; providing that busi 1l will be achieved and
security incidents will be p d or d d ined and d: and complying with legal, statutory,

and i y ped req.

As part of the CISP, Navient has developed and implemented a formal security incident response program which
provides clear, mcﬂml wmm and actionable steps lo respond lo cybersecurity incidents. The security incident
a fn rk which is comprised of different phases and overarching functions.
reprewrllmg ﬂ!e loer activities lo prepare for and respond to a security incident. Additionally, a cross-functional
incident response team is utilized fo ensure that appropriate staff, msournes and axpertise are anra;lah(e at all times to
provide a coordinated respense to any incident or event thal may th P syslems, i
resources or data of the Company. In the event of a suspecied or ounﬁrmeﬂ secumy incident. the Company's Chief
Information Security Officer {CISO) is responsible for coordinating with intemal departments, including risk,
compliance and legal, and other senior management as appropriate as well as outside vendors and
advisors. Incident ises and tesis are ponodlc.aily to ho!p ensure an adequal.e incident
response program is in place. Upen completion of the tests, results are d and d and rep d to
the Company's senior management and to the Risk Committee of the Board of Directors, as appropriale. Any
notable deficiencies or findings resulling from the tests are entered into the Company’s open issues tracking system,
1o be tracked for follow-up and/or remediation, as applicable.

The CISP is characlwlzed by mng board and senior management level support and governance, integration
through the Company and clear ility for camying out respective

ibilities leent’s ion security team i a review of the CISP on an annual basis to confirm
that the CISP plies with dicable laws and lations. The CISP is also reviewed and approved by the
Company's CISO and the Risk Commitiee of the Board of Direclors at least annually. Further, our CISO is
responsible for administering the CISP. Our CISO, along with our Chief ion Officer (CI0) provides periodic
reports regarding the status of the program and the overall state of the Company's security to senior management
and the Risk Committee of the Board, as may be necessary or appropriate.

From time to time, Navient engages third parties in connection with its ma!( rnanugumem precesses, including to

conduct evaluations of our security controls, whether through 1 testing, p audits or gon
best practices. Navient may also from hme fo time engaga third parlws to pﬂwlﬂe services to Navient, pursuant to
which the third- -party sm pmv!dat [ Navient

and other ion, Navien| try risk o
ensure that service prwldarmlts ale identified and mlbwled Oulswwed functions are Pleld 1o the same level of
rigor, continuous monitoring, and security & privacy as if the f were within the
Company. Navient maintains a third parr,r md oulseurcing security program that provides a for i
with third-party service p P ] nsl( 9 igl Nwaﬂl also takes appropriate mps w
monitor andior audit sewl::e iders to ensul with this prog Al material ag: with service
providers conlain a provision that neqwms hem at am ini ] and an infe ion security
program that complies with the i ing s and to the
‘Company to conduct security assessments, reviews, M'nhq and ing to ensure pli

As of the date of this Form 10-K, Navient has not ed a ity threats, i ing as a result of any

ny
previous cybersecurity incidents, thal have materially affected or are reasonably kkely to malsrlelty affect the
Company. While we continually monitor potential or likely cybersecurity threats and remain prepared o respond to
any threats or incidents in an efficient, effective and consistent manner, we may not be successful in preventing or
mitigating a cybersecurity incident that could have a material adverse effect on the Company. See “Risk Factors —
Operational Risks — We depend on secure information technology, and a breach of our information technology
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systems could result in sig losses, di of customer ml‘ormn'lnn and reputational damage,
which would y affect our i " for further di of gur

Governance

The Company’s Board of Directors plays a critical rele in ing the C 'S CY ity risk g

. The Risk Committee of the Board of Directors ives regular bri from the C ‘s CIO and CISO
on material matters related to information security such as risk messmoms, risk managmem an.d results of testing
and security incidents, and is notified between such updates regard new y threats or

The Risk C i also ives a formal, amualmpﬂﬂonﬂmeﬁeﬂlveﬂeu of the CDmDal!ysCISP
from the Company's CIO and CISO and approves the program on an annual basis,

The C 's CISO is ible for administering and r g ,u\nc!SPasMashtmmng_

{ g and g all regarding v or related to the use
of misuse alﬂ\e Company 'S O our vanoors computer uyﬁlams applicalions, data or leswruu No cybersecurity
incident r activity is o be without the consent and approval of our CISO. Qur CISO
provides periodic reports regarding the status of the CISP and the overall state of the Company’s security to senior
management and to the Board of Directors. Further, the CISO and his | security team di periodic
inciden! response exercises and lests lo help ensure an gs incident Is in place, as
descri

bed above. Upan completion of the tests, results and any findings are reported lume cmmn senior
management, the Board of Director's Risk Committee and the Enterprise Risk and C

The Company's CISO Ilasbeenwnh Ihe Coﬂmn‘,'fowvor 20yem Pncwwlmﬂg appommd CIS0 in September

2022, he led the Secunty Security in our security team and served
as information systems security nlﬁcerlot all of Navient's contracts with the federal govemnment.
Navient's Enterprise Risk and Complance Committee is an i gecns level o whom senior
management reporls and with whom senior reviews signi ing risks relating to
cybersecurity, receives reports on adherence to established risk paramaners pmmas direction on mitigation and
rnmadaaﬂon of our risks and closure of issues and sup our progi For more
on our prise Risk and C i c L andu.smlesan-d ponsibilit m‘" 's
Discussion and Anatysqs of Flﬂanmal Condition and Resulls of Op i Risk o Risk O‘-'usq;hl.

Roles and R, Risk and C jance Commitiee.”
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

LIBOR Transition fo SOFR

On June 30, 2023, the LIBOR adn ceased publication (on a ive basis) of all USD LIBOR rates,
including one-month and three-month LIBOR

In preparation for the transition, we worked internally as well as with external parties to ensure an orderdy transition
fram ene-month and three-menth LIBOR 1o an allernative benchmark rate by the June 30, 2023 transition date. We
established an internal LIBOR transition team whose purpose was lo ‘assess impacts, recommend plans. and
coordinale transition efforts among different busis areas. g and the LIBOR transition leam
provided quarterly reports to our Board of Directors. We also established internal LIBOR working groups comprised of
members from difierent business arcas who met regularly lo assess specific business-level impacits and to implement
operational changes necessary o effectuate a successful transition from LIBOR In ad:wun to our emrpdse-ndda
efforts, we engaged with market participants, industry groups and regi
Ramm (the ARRC), to develop plans and documentation to faml!ta#.u the transition to an alternative
benchmark rate.

We worked to align with the ARRC's ded best practices for g the ition from LIBOR. All of our
new variable rate Private Education Loans issued since December 2021 are indexed to SOFR. Also, as of December
31, 2021, we ceased entering into any other nenw contracts that are indexed to LIBOR and, where practicable, have
angaged with counterparties to medify certain existing contracts to transition the existing reference rate from LIBOR
to SOFR. With respect to our legacy variable rate Private Education Loans and other financial contracts that
refarance USD LIBOR and contain fallback provisions that clearly spacify a method for the transition from LIBOR, we
successfully transitioned such loans using such existing l'aHIsm 'We engaged with our IT vendors and impacted
internal work groups 1o prepare and update our sy 3 es and p to ion LIBOR-indexed
contracts to SOFR. With respect o our financial instruments that did not |r|:|udo fallback provisions that cleardy
specified a method for the fransition from LIBOR to an alternative benchmark rate, where practicable and
commarcially reasonable, we made efforts to engage with customers, counterparties and investors to modify such

. Due to dder consent requi . it was not practicable to modify certain financial
instruments like certain of our ABS. Further, the SAP formula for our FFELP Loans, which was indexed to one-month
LIBOR prior to the June 30, 2023 transition date, was not able to be modified without legisiative action. Thus, in such
instances, we needed 1o rely on federal legislation to transition to SOFR.

On March 15, 2022, the Adjustable Interest Rate (LIBOR} Act (the LIBOR: Act) was signed into law. The LIBOR Act
provides that for contracts that contain no fallback provision or contain fallback provisions that do not identify a
specific USD LIBOR benchmark replacement {including the SAP formula for FFELP Loans), a benchmark
replacement based on SOFR, as recommended by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, will automatically replace
thes USD LIBOR benchmark in the contract after June 30, 2023. On Dacember 16, 2022, the Faderal Resarve Bank of
New York adopted a final rule that implements the LIBOR Act by Ident!\dng benchmark rates based on SOFR that
will replace LIBOR in certain financial contracts after June 30, 2023, Fi g the tment and impler of
the LIBOR Act, all of our financial instruments which were indexed to USD LIBOR as of June 30, 2023 transitioned to
SOFR after Jume 30, 2023. Specifically, after June 30, 2023, the SAP formula for FFELP Loans transitioned to 30-day
Average SOFR and our LIBOR-indexed FFELP ABS contracts that are subject to the LIBOR Act transitioned to 30-
day or 90-day Average SOFR. Our LIBOR-indexed Private Education Loan ABS contracts that are subject to the
LIBOR Act transitioned to 1-month or 3-month Term SOFR.  Similarty, our LIBOR-indexed Private Education Loans
transitioned to 1-month or 3-month Term SOFR. Our LIBOR-indexed derivatives transitioned to the Fallback Rate
(SOFR) as defined in the 1ISDA 2020 IBOR Fallbacks Protocol published by the | Swaps and Derivali
Association, Inc. on October 23, 2020.

For a discussion of the risks related to the LIBOR transition, see "Risk Factors — Mamel. Fumng & Lquﬁty Risk —
Certain aspects of the impact of the cessation of the LIBOR refy rale and the
Owvemnight Financing Rale (SOFR) remain uncertain and could negative impact our financial resuils and business.”




Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

Qur interest rate risk management seeks to limit the impact of movements in interest rates on our results of
operations and financial position. The following tables summarize the potential effect on eamings over the next 12
months and the potential effect on fair values of balance sheet assets and labilities at Demnbor 31, 2023 and
December 31, 2022, based upon a itivity analysis perfc d by manag: a hypoth

and decrease in market interest rates of 100 basis points, The eamnings sensitivities assume an immediate increase
and decrease in market interest rates of 100 basis points and are applied only fo financial assets and liabilities,
including hedging instruments, that axisted at the balance sheet date and do not lake inlo account any new assels,
liabiliies or hedging instruments that may arise over the next 12 months.

As of December 31, 2023 As of December 31, 2022
lmpmmAnﬂudElmlnql Impact mMMII Earnings

Im.mﬂ Rates: IMUM Rates:
Increase Decroase Increase Decrease
100 Basis 100 Basis 100 Basis 100 Basis
[Dellars in millians, except per share amounts) Paints Points Paints Points
Effect on Earnings:
Change in pre-tax net income befare mark-to
-market gains (losses) on derivative and
hedging activities"! H 20 § 6 § 58 § (41)
Mark-to-market gains (losses) on derivative and
hedging activities 50 (43) 35 (28)
Increase (decrease) in income before taxes $ m s (43) § 93 § (69)
Increase (decrease) in net income after taxes $ 54 § (33) § 72 $ (53)
Increase (decrease) in diluled eamings per
commaon share $ AT § (29 § 55 % {41)

" i docreasing interost rates by 100 basis ponts resulls in @ negative intorost rate, wo sssuma the inforost rate & 0% for (his disciosurs (as opposed
10 beiny a negative interost rate)




At December 31, 2023

Interest Rates:
Change from Changa from
Increase of Decrease
100 Basis 100 Basis
Paints. Points
Fair Value 3 e $ %
$ 52877 § (88) —% § 130 -
2,939 - - — -
S R (s i
Total assets gain/(loss) $ 59425 § 181) —% § 180 —
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilites $ 56803 § (279) —% § 295 1%
Other liabilties 987 13 1 {67) @
Total liabilities (gainyloss § 56790 §_ (161) — § 228
At December 31, 2022
Interest Rates:
Change from Change from
Increase of Decrease of
100 Basis 100 Basis
Paints
(Dollars in milliens} Fair Value £ % H %
Effoct on Fair Values:
Assels
Education Loans § 59306 §  (81) —% § 120 -
Other earning assets 4,974 — — — —
Other assots 3,571 36 1 (29) (1)
Total assets gaini(loss) $ 67851 § (45) —% $ a1 s
Liabilities
Interest-bearing habilites $ 63531 §  (250) —% $ 272 —
Other liabikties 922 125 14 (134) (15)
Total liabilities (gainyloss § 64453 5 (125 — S 138 =
A primary objective in our funding is to ize our ativity to ing interest rales by generally funding our

floating rate education loan portfolio with floating rate debt and our fixed rate education loan portfolio with fixed rate
debt although we can have a mismatch at times. In addition, we can have a mismaltch in the index (including the
frequency of resel) of floating rate debt versus floating rate assets. In addition, due to the ability of some FFELP
Loans to earn Floor Income, we can have a fixed versus floating mismateh in funding if the education loan eams at
the fixed borrower rate and the funding remains floating, We use Floor Income Contracts, pay-fixed swaps and fixed
rate debt to economically hedge embedded Floor Income in our FFELP Loans. Historically, we have used these
instruments on a periodic bass and depending upon market itions and pricing, we may enter into additional
hedges in the future. The result of these hedging fransactions is to fix the relative spread between the education loan
assel rale and the funding instrument rate.

In the preceding tables, under the scenario where interest rates increase or decrease by 100 basis points, the change
in pre-tax net income before the mark-to-market gains (losses) on derivative and hedging activities is primarily due to
the impact of (i} our unhedged FFELP Loans being in a fixed-rate mode due to Floor Income, while being funded with
variable rate debt in low interest rate environments; (i) certain FFELP fixed rate loans becoming variable interest rate
loans when variable interest rales rise above a certain level (Special Allowance Payment of “SAPT). When these
loans are funded with fixed rate debt (as we do for a portion of the porifolio to economically hedge Floor Incoma) we
earn additional interest income when earning the higher variable rate that is in effect; and (jii) a portion of our variable
rate assets being funded with fixed rate liabilities. ltem (i) will generally cause income to decrease when interest rates
increase and income o increase when interest rates decrease. item (i) and (iii) have the opposite effect. The change
due to the interest rate scenario where interest rates increase by 100 basis points in the current peried ks primarily a
result of item (iii) as well as item (i) having a more significant impact than item (i) as a result of interest rates being
higher compared 1o the prior period. The change due to the interest scenario where interest rates decrease by 100
basis points in the current period is primarily a result of item (i) having a more significant impact (including annual
resel floors in connection with a portion of the Staflord FFELP loan portiolia) than item (if) as a resull of inlerest rates
being higher compared o the prior period. The relative changes from the prior period are a result of interes! rates
being lower in the prior period,
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In the preceding tables, under the scenario where interest rates increase or decrease by 100 basis points, the change
in mark-to-market gains (losses) on derivative and hedging activities in both periods is primarily due 1o (i) the notional
amount and remaining term of our denvalive portfolio and related hedged debl and (i} the interest rate environment,
In both periods, the mark-to-market gam rlosm} are primarily related to derivatives that don't qualify for hedge
accounting that are used to hedge the i of fixed rate Private Education Refinance loans. As a
result of not qualifying for hedge accounting, there is not an offsetting mark- to-market of the hedged item in this
analysis.

In addition to interest rate risk addressed in Ihepmmdingmhbs we are also exposed to risks related to foreign
currency exchange rates. Foreign Y ge risk is p rily lhe result of foreign currency denominated debl
issued by us. When we issue foreign i d d and itization debt, our policy is to use
cross currency interest rate swaps to swap all foreign mncy denominated debt payments (fixed and floating) to
USD SOFR using a fixed exchange rate. In the tables above, there would be an immaterial impact on eamings if

ge rales were 1o d of dué to the lerms of the hedging instrument and hedged items
matching. The balance sheet interest-bearing liabilities would be affected by a change in exchange rates; however,
the change would be materially offset by the cross-currency interest rate swaps in other assets or other liabilities. In
certain economic environmants, volatility in the spread between spot and forward foreign exchange rates has resulted
in mark-to-market impacts to currenl peried eamings which have not been faclored inlo the above analysis. The
earnings Impact Is noncash, and at maturity of the instruments the cumulative mark-to-market impact will be zero.
Navient has not issued foreign currency denominated debt since 2008,

Asset and Liabllity Funding Gap

The table below presents our assets and liabilities (funding) arranged by underlying indices as o\‘ December 31, 2023.
Management analyzes interest rate risk and in doing so includes all dervatives that are hedging our

debl whether they qualify as effective hedges or not (Core Eamnings basis). Accordingly, we present Lhe asset and
liability funding gap on a Core Eamings basis. The difference between the assel and the funding is the funding gap
for the speci index. This rep our o interest rate risk in the form of basis risk and repricing risk,
which is the risk that the different indices may reset at different frequencies or may not move in the same direction or
al the same magnitude.

Frequency of

Index Variable Funding
3 mown;ll":'“"w bill ::.0:;' Sh“l; 0 :Mﬂ $ 2.0

reasury . -— 4
3 month Treasury bill annual A — A
Prime annual A - A
Prime quarterly 1.0 - 1.0
Prime menthly 35 - 35
3 month Term SOFR quarterly 2 1.3 {1.1)
3 month Term SOFR 1" monthly —_— r (4)
1 month Term SOFR manthly 24 1.1 1.3
Overnight SOFR® daily 35.7 356 A
Mon Discrete reset (') maonthly —_ 45 {4.5)
Mon Discrete reset @ daily/weekly 29 A 28
Fixed Rate ! 136 __ 185 (4.9)

Total § 615 5615 § =

Funding includes debd related 10 Losn ABCP and Repuschase Fackites.

1 The assets ave indexed to 30-try average cvemight SOFR. A porion of the furding uses the daly average of overmight SOFR from a
pofiod procoding e accrual poniod of the asset (Tookback debt”). Funding inchudes 5172 bilion of 30-day average SOFR lookback debt
and $15.6 biion of 80-day average SOFR lookback debt

M Assets include resicted and untestricted cash equivalonts and other avemight type instruments. Funding includes the obiigation to
ruturn cash collateral held related 1o derivalives oxposures.

W Assats include recenables and other assets (incuding goodwill and acquired intangitiles). Funding includes other labities and
sinckhoidens' equity
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‘We use interest rate swaps and other derivatives to achieve our risk managemant objectives. Our asset liability
management siralegy is lo malch assels with debl (in combination with denvatives) that have the same underlying
index and reset frequency or, when economical, have interest rate characteristics that we believe are highly
correlated. Interest eamed on our FFELP Loans is primarily indexed to 30-day average ovemnight SOFR reset daily
and our cost of funds s primarily indexed 1o ovemight SOFR but resetting at different times than the asset. A source
«of vanability in FFELP net interest income could also be Floor Income we eam on certain FFELP Loans. Pursuant to
the terms of the FFELP, cerfain FFELP Loans can eam interest at the stated fixed rate of interest as underlying debt
interest rate expense remains variable. We refer to this additional spread income as “Floor Income.” Floor Income
«can be volalile since il is dependent on inlerest rate lavels. We frequently hedge this wrolal:lll.'yI 1o lock in the value of
the Floor Income over the term of the contract. Interest eamed on our Private Loans is g
fixed rate with the related cost of funds generally fixed rate as well. Interest earned on the remaining Pmm
Education Loans is generally indexed to either one-month Prime or term SOFR rates and our cost of funds is
primarily indexed to one-month or three-month term SOFR. The use of funding with index types and reset
frequencies that are different from our assets exposes us to interest rate risk in the form of basis and repricing risk
This could result in cur cost of funds not moving in the same direction or with the same magnitude as the yield on our
assets. While we believe this risk is low, as all of these indices are shori-tarm with rate movements that are highly
correlated over a long period of time, market disruptions (which have occurred in prior years) can lead no a tamporary
divergence between indices resulting in a negalive impact to our ings. See p I
and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk — LIBOR Transition to SOFR” regarding the i uﬂhe LIBOR
indexed instruments to SOFR that occurred after June 30, 2023,

72




Properties
The following table lists the principal faciliies owned by us as of December 31, 2023;

Location Function Business Segment{s) e Feet

Wilkes-Barre, PA  Loan Sarvicing Center Federal Education Loars; Consumar Lending, 133.000

Muncie, IN Processing Canler Federal Education Loans; Consumar Lending; 75,400
Business

Big Flats, NY Pieneaer Cradit Recovery — Processing Center Businass Processing 60,000

The following table lists the principal facilities leased by us as of December 31, 2023:

Approximate

Location Function Business Segmant|s) Square Fest

Fishers, IN Loan Senvcing and Data Conter ederal Education Loars, Consumer Lending. 79.000

Hemdon, VA Heaclquarters Federal Education Loars; CaumLmnq 43,000
hslncuﬁumhg.

TN Xiend R Cych ) 36,000
Mooresiown, NJ  Pionear Credit Recovery — Procassing Canter Bulmul‘mum 30,000
Guaynato, PR mmm—wm Business Processing 21,000
Inving, TX uncan Solutions — Business Processing Business Processing 21,000
Salt Laka City, UT Emu«-umonm Consumer Landing 4.500

None of the facilities that we own I-s encwmhomd by a morigage. We believe thal our headquarters, loan servicing
cenlers, dala center and other [+ g centers are g to meet cur long-term needs and
i goals. Our h is y in leased space at 13865 Sunrise Valley Drive, Hemdon, Virginia

20171,
:::um Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
urities

Our common stock is listed and traded on the NASDAQ under the symbol NAVI. As of January 31, 2024, there were
112,749,884 shares of our common stock outstanding and 249 holders of record,

We paid rly cash dividends on our stock of $0.16 per share for each quarter of 2022 and 2023.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following tables provide information relating to our purchases of shares of our commeon stock in the three months
ended December 31, 2023,

Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares.
Total Numbaer of That May Yet Bo
Shares Purchased Under
Total Humber  Average Price as Pari of Publicly Publicly Announced
of Shares Paid per  Announced Plans Plans or
{ln millions, except per share data) Purchased” ___ Shars __ _or Programs/™ Ll
Period:
October 1 — October 31, 2023 1T 5 16.97 1.7 § 33z
November 1 — November 30, 2023 16 16,80 16 § 304
Decamber 1 — December 31, 2023 8 18.37 8 280
Total fourth-quarter 2023 41 5 17.17 4.1
" OnDecember 10, 2021, wmamawastmm“-mwmmmwmum;
The Share Pragram doos nat hay
- On September 14, 2023, mwymmamh |M—|Uﬂﬁﬁwmlm“bm..mmm
of R 1005-1, pursuant to which the Company purchased e spplhicable shanes dusing fourth-guarter 2023 from October 2. 2023 1o October

mnMumhmmumdnwlm1 memlhwmmhw
sharss during lanuary 2024. No shares were purchased under this plan during the quarter 2023, This plan y ita terms on
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"

Total Number of Average Price Paid
per Share

Total Number of Approximate Dollar Value
Shares Purchased as  of Shares that May Yet Be
part of Publicly Purchased Under Publicly
Announced Plans or Announced Plans or
Programs!"! 1

Exocution Date Shares Purchased™
10r22203

75,754 17.04 75,754 358,713,450
10032203 77.860 16.60 77,860 357,420,655
101472203 78,420 16.52 78,420 356,125,353
100572203 76,080 16.92 76,080 354,538,032
10M6/72208 74,150 § 17.46 74,150 § 353,54
10052023 72,808 § 17.72 72,508 § 352,251,743
102023 72,009 § 1783 72,009 § 967,
1011172023 72,781 1771 72,781 349,678,321
10/12/2023 71,916 17.75 71,0916 348,401,826
1032023 74,380 17.45 74,380 347,104,141
1011672023 73,967 17.55 73,967 345,819,855
101712023 72,848 17.67 72,848 344,532,347
101182023 74015 § 17.44 4115 § 343,239,081
10192023 75.205 $ 17.28 75.205 § 341,840,258
76,755 § 16.93 76,755 § 340,640,428
10/232023 74,844 § 17.09 74,844 339,361,396
1002472023 75.826 17.16 75,826 338,060,
1072572023 81,600 16,14 81,800 336,740,025
262023 81,325 15.89 81,325 335,439,597
1012772023 84,311 15,83 B4,311 334,104,566
81,300 1554 81,300 332,808,636
1003172023 81,400 15.93 81,400 331,512,113
1Mz 81,500 15.88 §1.500 330,218,293
1122023 748,000 16.35 79,000 328,926 556
111312023 17.15 7! 327,540,561
11672023 71,979 § 16.97 71,979 § 326,418,998
TTR2023 1710 325,119,003
1182023 76,024 17.01 76,024 323,826,161
12023 T8.755 16.51 78,755 322,526,168
111102023 79,155 16.42 79,155 321.226.174
11132023 78,618 16.54 78,619 319,926,193
1111472023 75620 § 17.18 75,620 § 318,626,210
111152023 74910 § 17.35 74,910 § N732W.214
1111672023 77513 $ 16.73 77513 § 316.029.220
MMT2023 78,174 § 16.64 78174 § 314,728,225
11202023 77,180 $ 16.86 77,180 § 313,427,248
212023 7B043 $ 1667 78,043 § 312,126,263
112212023 73,625 $ 16.72 73,625 § 310.895.077
12472023 77,051 § 16.88 77,051 § 309,584 078
1ETIR023 77.733 § 16.79 77.733 § 308,289,105
11282023 76537 § 16.80 76,537 § 306,995 637
11292023 76,280 $ 17.13 76,280 § 305,688,663
1173002023 76, 17N kl 304,381 677
121172023 74,507 § 17.54 74,507 § 303,074,690
73,520 § 17.76 73.520 § 301,769,298
12152023 73,352 § 17.80 73,352 § 300,463,779
1262023 704 17.96 70,652 § 299,194,523
1272023 72,652 $ 18,05 72652 § 297,
71311 § 18,29 71,311 § 296,571,501
1211172023 70,654 $ 18.56 70,654 § 295,250,922
12M22023 70,165 § 18.69 70,185 § 293,948 504
121132023 69,982 § 1872 69,882 § 292,638,454
1211472023 67,506 § 19.43 67,506 § 291,326,806
1252023, 68,162 § 16.32 68,162 § 290,008 507
4076781 § 17.17 4,076,781
On December 10, 2021, our Board of Diroctors approved a $1 billion muli-yoar share program (the Sharg Program),

The Share Repurchass Program does not have an expiraton date.

O September 14, 2023, the Company sntered info & Rule 10651 trading arrangement’ Intended 1o salisly the aMrmrative defends conditions

of Rude 10851, pursuant to which the Company purchased the appiicable shares during fourth-quarter 2023 from October 2, 2021 1o Octobar

27, 2023 This plan terminated by &5 lems on October 27, 2023. On December 12, 2023, the Compasy snlensd into a “Ruln 10651 trading
nmumm affemative delenss conditions. of Rule 10051, mmwm;?slluwvslmmu

BITENGHmET
whares duning January 2024, No shares wero purchaned undar this plan cunng the
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Stock Performance

The foll graph the yearly dollar change in our cumutalive total shareholder return on our
common stock 1o that of the S&P 600 Financials and the S&P Small Cap 600 Index. The graph assumes a base
investment of $100 at December 31, 2018 and reinvestiment of dividends through December 31, 2023 In June 2023,
as a result of the S&P Dow Jones Indices g y rebal . the Company was moved from the S&P Midcap 400
Index to the S&P SmallCap 600 Index,

This graph shall nol be deemed "soliciting material® or be deemed "filed” for purposes of Seclion 18 of the Exchange
Act or otherwise subject to the liabilities under that Section, and shall not be deemed to be incorporaled by reference
into any of our filings under the Securilies Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act), whether made before or afler
the date hereof and irrespactive of any general incorporation language in any such filing,

Five Year Return

$300

$250

$200

$150

100

%50

12N8 1273119 12320 12321 127322 127223
~ M- Havlent Carporation A sap e s i
- —-

Company/index 123118 123149 12031720 1213121 1213122 12131023
Navient Corporation § 1000 § 1631 § 1254 S 2809 § 2265 § 266.1
S&P Small Cap 600 Index $ 1000 $ 1227 $ 1364 $ 1730 § 1451 § 1682
S&P 600 Financials $ 1000 $ 1204 § 1103 § 1404 § 1205 § 1267
S&P Midcap 400 Index $ 1000 § 1262 §$ 1434 S 1789 § 1554 § 180.9
SA&P 400 Financials 5 1000 § 1263 § 1242 § 1651 § 1593 § 1721

Source: Bloomberg Total Retum Aralysis

Other Information
Director and Officer Trading Arrangements

Nane of our directors or officers (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f)) adopted or terminated a Rule 10b5-1 trading
arrangement or a non-Rule 10b5-1 trading amrangement (as defined in ltem 408(c) of Regulation S-K) during the
fourth quaner of 2023,
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Controls and Procedures

Discl and Py

Our with the participation of our Principal Execulive and Principal Financial Officers, evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act)) as of December 31, 2023. Based on this
evaluation, our Principal Executive and Principal Financial Officers concluded that, as of December 31, 2023, our

diselosure controls and p d were effective lo ensure that ir a ired to be disclosed by us in the
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is (a) ded. p summarlzed and reported within the
time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms and (b} and icaled o our

including our Principal Executive and Principal Financial Officers as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

Management's Report on internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our Is ible for and maintaink d Internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act). Under the sup-oMsJon and with the participation of our
management, including our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, we assessed the effectiveness
of our intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023. In making this assessment, cur management
md the criteria established In Imfernal Conlrol — Inlegrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committes of

P g Org of the Tread C {COS0). Based on our assessment and those criteria,

1 that, as of D 31, 2023, our internal control over financial reporting was effective.
KPMG LLP, an ind: d g d public firm, audited the effectivenass of the Company’s internal
control over fi poriing as of D 31, 2023, as staled in their report which appears below.

Because of ils inherent limitalions, mtemaﬂ control over financial reporting may nol prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, of any of 1o fulure periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deferiorate.

No change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) occurned during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2023 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely lo materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item will be contained in the 2024 Proxy Staterment, including in the sections titled
“Proposal 1 — Election of Directors,” "Execulive Officers,” "Other Matters — Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports™ (if
applicable) and “Corporate Governance,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be contained in the 2024 Proxy Staternent, including in the sections titled
“Executive Compensation” and "Director Ci ion,” and is | P d herein by ref

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial and M. and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item will be contained in the 2024 Proxy Statement, including in the sections litled
“Ownership of Commaon Stock” and "Ownership of Common Stock by Directors and Executive Officers,” and is
incorporated herein by reference.

The table below presents information as of December 31, 2023, relating to our equity compensation plans or
arrangements pursuant lo which grants of op‘ﬂuns. restricted stock, restricted stock units, slock units or other rights to
acquire shares may be granted from time to time.

Number of

Securities

HNumber of Weighted Remaining
Socurities to be Average Available
Issued Upon Exercise for Future
Exercise of Price of Issuance

Optionsand ~ Optionsand  Compensation
Plan Category Rights Rights
Equity i by security holders:
Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan:
Traditional options - % -
Nel-Settied Options
Restricled Stock Units. 2,191,274
Performance Stock Units 1,148,878 -
Total 3340152 = 11,491,978
Amended and Restated Navient Corporation Employes
Stock Purchase Plan™ — — 1,513.218
Total equity plans by security holders 3340152 § = 13,005,196
Yullwul\'cmwmunmndmppwhysmﬂdm L - =

" Pmmmww\umlvsunrmoﬁhmlmm.nnmmw (2021-2023), with the patential payout ringing
Hrom 0% to 150% of the target awa actual 3 Ihe Sree-yonr perfonmanca penod relastve to pre-
nstablighed ﬂnnmuwdnnmpmamlwunwmdunwumnw.lwwunudnmdhcumwnm
sinck two business days after the Company files s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, These 2021 PSUs are shown sbove as
‘outstanding on December 31, 2023, based on the fnal achieved amount (Le. . 45.26% of the target amourt).

- Nurriber of shares availabis for issusnce under the Amended and Restaled Navient C Purchase Plan (a3 amended
from time to timsa, e ESPP) a8 of December 31, 2023, The ESPP was approved on Apl 8, 2014 by The company now known a8 SLM

0w then scle sharshoider. The ESPP became effective May 1. 2014. The Company amanded the ESPP effective Novermber 1,
2015 to atter the affenng pariod for smpioy "'mm The Company again amendaed the ESPP on April 4, 2018,
nnpumummauwm o increase the shares avadable for isuance under The plan by 2 milon shares. This amendment was
approved by the Company's sharehcldars on June &, WlémmwmuEmmleMmmhm

of irterest on indivicual account balances for periods after July 31, 2020

Certain hips and Related T i and Director Ind d

The nformabon requl'ed I:y hs item wil be contained in the 2024 Pmy Slatemeﬂi including under “Other Matters
— Certain 15" and “C " and is herein by reference.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be contained in the 2024 Proxy , including under “Ind dls
Registered Public Accounting Firm,” and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(@)

(b)
21

3

32

32

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

1. Financial Statements

The lidated financial stat ts of Mavient Corporation and the Report of the Independent
Rogsbered Public Accounting Firm thereon are included:

Report of g Public ing Firm F-2

‘Report of Regi Public A ing Firm F-3

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 F-5

Comhdalod Statements of Income for the years ended Decomber 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 ....... F-&
i Stats of Comp ive Income for the years ended December 31, 2023,

2022 and 2021 F-7
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31,

2021, 2022 and 2023 ... -B
‘Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 F-11
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ........... F-12
2 st Schodul
Al schaculas 8!‘9 Oﬂ\im because they are not i of the i i ion is shown in the

of noles therato.
3. Exhibits

1F'he ea;hilr;u listed in the accompanying index to exhibils are filed or incorporated by reference as part of this

We will furnish at mt a copy of any exhibit filed with or incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K. Oral
wor written requests for copies of any exhibits should be directed to the Secretary.

4. Appendices

Appendix A — Federal Family Education Loan Program
Appendix B — Form 10-K Cross-Reference Index

Exhibits

The Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of October 16, 2014, between Navient Corporation and
Navient, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Navient Corporation's Current Report on Form
8-K filed on October 17, 2014).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation qumdanl Cor by o
Exhibit 3.1 of Amendment No. 3 to Navient Corp on Form 10 (File No.
001-36228) filed on March 27, 2014),

Second Amended and Restated By-Laws of Navient Corporation adopted April 4, 2018 (incorporated
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Navient Corporation™s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 9, 2018).

Certificate of Designations of Series A Junlor Participating Prefermed Stock of Navient Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filing on
December 20, 2021).

Descrption of Registrant's Securities registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act (incorporated by
reference o Exhibit 4.1 lo Navient Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on February 24,
2023).

Indenture, dated as of July 18, 2014, between Navient Corperation and Bank of New York Mellon, as
trustes, (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-3ASR filed on July 18, 2014).

First ing the Form of Note contained herein), dated as of November 6,
2014, between Navient Corporation and Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee, (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 1o Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 11,
2006,

Second e Indenture ing the Form of Note contained herein), dated as of March 27,
2015 between Navient Corporation and Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.2 1o Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 27, 2015,
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45

46

47

48

49

411

412

413

414

415

4186

418

The Third Supph I (including the Form of Note contained herein), dated as of July 29,

2016, between Navien! Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee (incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibit 4.2 to Mavient Corporation’s Current Report on Form B-K filed on July 29, 2016)

The Fourth Sug i ing the Form of Note contained herein), dated as of

16, 2018, Navient Ci ion and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee
{incorporated by reference to Exhibil 4.2 o Navient Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 16, 2016).

The Fifth ] g the Form of Nole conlained herein), dated as of March 7,
2017 to the Indenture dated as cIJuly 18, 2014 between Navient Corporation and The Bank of New

York Mellon as trustee (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on March 7, 2017).

The Sixth il Ind (including the Form of Note contained herein), dated as of March 17,
2017 o the Indenture dated as of .I|.|l1|I 18, 201-1 between Navienl Corporalion and The Bank of New

York Mellon as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on March 7, 2017).

The Seventh Suppl I Irvch including the Form of Note contained herein), dated as of May 26,
2017 to the Indenture dated as of July 18, 2014 between Navient Corporation and The Bank of New
York Mellon as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on May 26, 2017).

The Eighth Indenture fthe Form of Note contained herein), dated as of June 9,
2017 to the Indenture dated as of July 18, 2014 betwean Navient Corporation and The Bank of New

York Mellon as trustes (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Navient Corporation’s Current Repont
on Form &-K filed on June 9, 2017).

The Ninth Supplemental Indenture (including the Form of Nole contained herein), dated as of December
4, 2017 to the Indenture dated as of July 18, 2014 between Navient Corporation and The Bank of New
York Meflon as trustes (incorporated by reference lo Exhibit 4.3 to Navient Corporation’s Current Repon
on Form &K filed on December 4, 2017).

The Tenth Supplemental Indenture (including the Form of Note conlained herein), dated as of June 11,
2018 to the Indenture dated as of July 18, 2014 between Navient Corporation and The Bank of New
York Meflon as trustee (incorperated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on June 11, 2018).

The Eleventh Supplemental Indenlure (including the Form of Note contained h-amln}. dated as of
January 27, 2020 (this "Supplemental "), Navient C a Delk ion
{the "Company”), and The Bank of New York Mellon, a New York banking corporation, as trustee. (the
“Trustee”) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on January 27, 2020).

The Twelfth Supplemental Indenfure (including the Form of Note contained harein), dated as of February
2, 2021, between Navient Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 2, 2021).

The Th [ the Form of Mote contained herein), dated as of
Movember 4, 2021, between Navient Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 5, 2021,

The F S g the Form of Note contained herein), dated as of May
4, 2023, bemen Navient Corporation ard The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 o Navient Corporation®s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 4, 2023).

The Fifteenth l [indh including the Form of Note contained herein), dated as of
November 3, 2023 between Navient Comomuon and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
MNovember 3, 2023).

Rights Agreement dated as of Decamber 20, 2021 between Navient Corporation and Computershare
Trust Comp N.A.. which includes the form of Certi of O as Exhibit A, the form of
Right Cerhﬁcnw as Exhibit B and the Summary of Rights to Pu!ﬁ'laso Preferred Shares as Exhibit C
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 20, 2021),
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Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Stock Option Agreement, Net Settled
Oplions — 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 of the Company’s Quarterly Reporl on Form
10-Q filed on August 1, 2014).

Farm of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Stock Option Agreement, Net Settled
Options — 2010 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 of the Company's Quanterly Report an Form
10-Q filed on August 1, 2014).

Form of Navient Corporamn 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Independent Director Stock Option
— 2011 { by to Exhibit 10.31 of the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q ﬁladonkngustl 2014).

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Clmmbua Incentive Plan, Independent Director Stock Option
— 2010 (i to Exhibit 10.32 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q filed on August 1, 2014).

Form of Navient Corperation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement — Net Settled
Options (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-0
filed on April 28, 2016).

Farm of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by
refarence to Exhibit 10.3 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on April 27,
2017).

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Cmnibus | i Stock Unit Agy
(incorporated hy reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Navient COrpomlnon s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
on May 3, 2018

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus | ive Plan Restricted Stock Unil Ag
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-0 filed
on May 3, 2018).

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 3, 2018).

MNavient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Amended and Restated as of May 24, 2018
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 1o Navient Corporation’s Quarterdy Report filed on Form 10-0
filed on August 3, 2018,

Navient Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors, as amended and restaled effective Oclober 1. 2015
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 10-K (File No. 001-36228) filed on
October 30, 2015).

Mavient Corperation Change in Control Severance Plan for Senior Officers, Amended and Restated as
of May 24, 2018 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 1o Navient Corporation’s Cuarterly Report filed
on Form 10-Q filed on August 3, 2018.

Navient Corporation Executive Severance Plan for Senior Officers, Amended and Restated as of May
24, 2018 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Navient Corporation's Quarterly Report filed on
Farm 10-Q filed on August 3, 2018,

Navient Corporation Deferred C ion Plan, Amended and R d as of May 24, 2018
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterdy Report filed on Form 10-C
filed on August 3, 2018

Farm of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus i Stock Un
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Navient Corporallon s Quarterly Raport on Form 10-Q filed
on May 3, 2019).

Faorm of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus | ivee Plan, Restricted Stock Unit A
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Rapwl on Form 10-Q filed
on May 3, 2019).

FumquawanlCnrpwﬁonzouommm ive Plan, Ind dent Director i Stock
toE:Hbulm.SInNaﬂenlCnrporshonsnummRapoﬂmFm

10-Q filed on May 3, 2019).

Amended and Restated Navient Cotpomllon Employne Stock Purchau Plan (Innorpo-alod by reference
to Appendix A to Navient Corp finitive Proxy filed on April 30, 2019)
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Underwriting Agreement dated January 28, 2021 among Navient Corporation and J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC, Barclays Capilal Inc. and RBC Capital Markets, LLC, as representatives of the
underwriters named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Navient Corporation’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on February 2, 2021).

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus ive Plan Perf Stock Unit Ags
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 10-Q filed on May 1, 2020).
Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus | Plan R d Stock Unit Ag

{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 on Form 10-Q fled on May 1, 2020).

Form of Navient Corperation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan Independent Director Stock Agreement
{incorporated I:y reference to Exhibit 10.3 on Form 10-Q filed on May 1, 2020).

Ur i dated h ber 1, 2021 among Navient Corporation and J_P. Morgan
Securities LLC Bnmlays Capital Inc. and RBC Capital Markets, LLC, as representatives of the
underwriters named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Navient Corporation’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on November 5, 2021).

Consent Judgment and Orders dated January 13, 2022 between Mavient Corporation, Navient
Solutions, LLC and Pionoer Credit Rmvy lnc and the Attomney General for the State of Washington
as arep of the the Navient Parties and the State Attorneys.
General for the States :mrpomud by reference to Exhibit 10.24 and the list of States and Localities
that are a party to the Consent Judgment and Orders included on Exhibit 10.24.1, both exhibits of which
are included on Form 10-K filed on February 25, 2022).

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Perlormance Stock Unit Agreement
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
on April 28, 2021).

Momination and Cooperation Agreement, dated April 14, 2022 by and among Mavient Corporation, Mr.
Edwnrd J. Ellamsan Sl\emumn Investors Managsmenl LP and anbur]r Investors LI.C (togather with
LP and to Exhibit

D
8.1 loﬂswmlCorpommsCulreruRnpmanma Kﬁedonkpdlis 2022}

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Performance Stock Unit Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Navient Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
on Apnil 27, 2022).

Form of Navient Corporation 2014 Omnibus Incentive Plan, Performance Stock Unit Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Navient Corporation’s Quartery Report on Form 10-Q filed
on April 26, 2023).
A Mo. 1o Nomination and Cooperation Ag , dated D ber 14, 2023, by and

LP, Ne«bury Invesbous LLC, Edward J. Bramson and Navient
corpotamn (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Navient Corporation's Current Report on Form
8-K filed Decemnber 15, 2023).

Agreement and Release, dz.lcd as of June &, 2023, by and between Navient Corporation and its affiliates
and John (Jack) F. R di (inc: i by refe to Exhibit 10.1 1o Navient Corporation’s
Current Repert on Form 8-K filed June 9,2023),

Letter Agreement, dated as of May 15, 2023, by and between Naviem Corporation and David L.
Yowan {incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.1 to Navient Corporation’s Current Report on Form §-
K filed May 16, 2023).

List of Subsidiaries.

Consent of KPMG LLP.

Cartification of Principal E: iver Officar Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
of Principal E: ive Officar Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to

Socuon Q06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

a1




32,2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

97 Navieni Corporation ive Officers’ E ive C ion Clawback Policy.

101.INS*  Inline XBRL D the i ok does not appear in the Interactive Data File as
its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document.

101.5CH*  Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema With E d Linkbase Dy

104 Cover page formatied as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101,

y Cantract or C: Plan or

" Filad harswith

* Fumished hewwith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its bahall by the undersigned h duly ized.

Dated: February 26, 2024

NAVIENT CORPORATION
By: Is! DAVID YOWAN
Dawvid Yowan

President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrani and in the capacities and on the dates indicaled.

Signature Title Date
s/ DAVID YOWAN President, Chief Executive Officer and February 26, 2024
David Yowan Director (Principal Executive Officer)
sl JOE FISHER Chief Financial Officer (Principal February 26, 2024
Joe Fisher Financial and Accounting Officer)
Isd LiNDA A, MILLS Chair of the Board of Direclors. February 26, 2024
Linda A Mills
/5! EDWARD BRAMSON Vice Chair of the Board of Directors February 26, 2024
Edward Bramson
s/ FREDERICK ARNOLD Direclor February 26, 2024
Frederick Amold
Is! ANna ESCOBEDO CABRAL Director February 26, 2024
Anna Escobedo Cabral
s/ LARRY A. KLANE Director Fabruary 26, 2024
Larry A, Klane
Is! MICHAEL A, LAWSON Director February 26, 2024
Michael A. Lawson
I3/ JANE J. THOMPSON Director February 26, 2024
Jane J. Thompson
s/ LAURA 5. UNGER Director February 26, 2024

Laura S. Unger
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the SboddwldumandﬂoaldolDlrwm
Navient Corporation:

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

‘We have audited Navient C * (the Company) internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2023, hasad on mlma esl.abd;shed in .lnlamal Control = Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the
c of (o] of the Ti ission. In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial rew‘urm as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria
established in Intermal Control - Integrated Framework (2073 issued by the C i of Sp g g

of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the related

of income, I+ imcome. kholders’ equity, and cash flows for each
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2023, nnd Ihn related noles (collectively, the consolidated
financial statements), and our report dated February 26, 2024 expressed an unqualified opinion on those

Barsis for Opinion
The Ci 'S is for ining eff Inlemlnomruiwmndalmporhngmdhl
its assessment of the effectiveness of intemal control over i included in the

Management's Reporl on Internal Contrel over Financial Reporting. Our mspomiblllty Is o express an opinlon on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audil. We are a public accounting firm registered
with the PCADB and are required 1o be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the LS. federal

securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the 5 ities and Exchange Ci ission and the
PCADB.

We d d our audit in with the dards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
parform the audit to obtain bl aboul whether effectiva internal control over financial reporting was

maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial rnpoﬂmg assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and u-udwgnand perating of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audit also b P ing such other p as we in the We believe
that our audit provides a leasormble basl-s for our opinion

Dafinition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process ¢ d 1o provide
regarding the reliability ol fi ial reporting and the pi of fi for external purposes in
with ted ] iples. A s internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and Mﬁymﬂaﬁmmnms and dispositions of the assets of the pany; (2) provide

that ti are d as o permit p ion of financial in
wilh g I ing principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in s with authori. af vt and di of the p and 3) pmv!de reasonable
assurance el ion or timely d ien of horized usool' position of the pany's
assels that could have a matsrial effect an the financial statemants.

Because ol |I.= Iri'mbnl !llmauon: lrmrnal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatemants.
Also, proj of to fulure periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate becsuse of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deleriorate.

sl KPMG LLP

McLean, Virginia
February 26, 2024
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
Navient Corporation:

Opinion an the Ci d Financial

We have audiled the accompanying consolidated balance sheels of Navient Corporation and subsidiaries (llls
Company) as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the related consolidated of income,

income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash nowsforaamcrmu yeamnmelnraamrpedodamed
December 31, 2023, and the related notes lecti In our opinion, the
present fairly, nalimlena&mpem the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, andm:aml.mdllsopemlmsmd:lscashﬂmtoreachofﬂlsmrsmlrnlhw

year period ended Dy ber 31, 2023, in with U.S. gt P g P P

‘We also have audited, in accordance with the sumdards of IM Puhl:c Comparvy Accounting Oversight Board (United
States) (PCAQB), the Company's internal control over fi 5 of D 31, 2023, based on cnlernl
astablished in intemnal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) tuuoﬂ by lha C of §

«of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated February 26, 2024 expressed an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting,

Basis for Opinion

These lidated financial are the ity of the Company's . Our resp Y is 1o
axpress an opinion on these lid financial based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to mecumpmymmcnrﬂmmm the
U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the ities and E. ission and
the PCADB.

We our audits in with the of the PCAOB. Tlme slandards require that we pian and
perform the audit to obtain neasonable assurance about whether the are free of
material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks
«of material mi of the financial whether due lo eror or fraud, and performing

procedures that respond 1o those risks, Such procedures included examining, on a test besns evidenoe nege-dlng mﬂ
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial staterments. Our audits also inch

inciples used and signi made by as well as lati Mowrallpmsomnnonulme
i We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Catical Audit Matter

The crlical audit malter communicated below is a malter arising from the current period audil of the consolidated
that was or reguired to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1)
ralales o aouounh or dlsdw.lres that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2} invoived our
g s or complex judgments. The communication of a critical audit matter does not alter
in any way our ooinion on the financial stal taken as a whole, and we are nol, by communicating
the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or
disclosures to which it relates.

Assessment of the allowance for loan losses on private education leans

As discussed in Notes 2 and 4 to the i financial the Company's total allowance for loan
losses for private ion loans (private ion ALL) was $617 million as of December 31, 2023. For the private
education ALL, the expected credit losses are the product of a transition rate model determining the Company's.
eslimates olptd:ahdlly of default nnd prepayment as ml as loss given default on an undiscounted basis. The
G makes rates i and on defaulls includi
d future ies on previously fully charged off loans (expected mumﬂ The model used to project
losses utilizes key credit quaﬂry mdum of the loan portfolio and predicts how those attributes are expected to
perform at the loan lewel in connection with the forecasted economic conditions over the contractual term of the loans
any and options within the control of the borrower. The private education ALL
i bie and supportable f of various macro- economic vaniables and several forecast
scenarios over the remaining life of the loans. The of the and forecasts
incorporates an assumption that each macro-economic variable will revert to a long-t ion. Qualitati
adjustments are based on factors not reflected in the quaniitative model.

WG identified the assessment of the pm'ahe education ALL as a critical audit matter. A high degree of audit effort,
ing skills and k edge, and and auditor | was i in the
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Specifically, the assessment encompassed an evaluation of the private ed ALL dology ding the
method md model used lo estimate the prqer.‘wd losses and their sig i Such signifi

(1) the 08, including related welghtnqs (2) the reasanable and
supportable forecast periods, (3) the transition rates including ts, {4) the exp
and (5) certain of the g The also included an ion of the |
soundness and pur!nnnw of the medel, In addition, auditer judg; was required to evaluate the iency of

audit evidence obtained.

The following are the primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We evaluated the design
and heal.ed the: opetmng effectiveness of certain internal controls related to the Company’s measurement of private
1ALL

ding controls over:
- develop of the privale ed ALL methodology
- i use and app of changes made to the model
. L ification and det ion of signi ptions used in the model to estimate credit losses
= P of the qualitath

. performance menitoring of the medel
- analysis of private education ALL results, trends, and ratios.

‘We evaluated the Company’s process to develop the private education ALL estimate by testing cerain sources of
data, factors, and assumptions that the Company used, and considered the rulm-nnoeand reliability of such data,

factors, and assumptions. In addition, we involved credit risk i with ialized industry k dge and
expenence who assisted in;
- luating the C. ‘s private education ALL methodology for compliance with U.S. generally
ao\:eptqd accounting principles
. g the judg: made by the C: relative to the and perft testing of
the mcdel rncludlne transition rates used by the Company by conwuma them lo raieuanl Company
specmc metrics and trends and the: icable industry and reg Y
- the: | i and perf testing of the model including Iransition rates by
insp g the mode| ck lion to Metmemodellsmb!efulhekhmndcdum
- evaluating the selection of the economic ted including the g of the

and underlying assumptions by comparing it to business environment and relevant mduslr)f practices
. evaluating the length of reasonable and supporiable forecast periods by comparing them 1o specific
porlfniin ﬁﬁ characteristics and trends
d H paring them to relevant Company-specific metrics and trends
and the appllcabln industry and mgu!al(ry wmces
. evaluating the methodology used to develop certain of the qualitative adjusiments and the effect of those
adjustments on the private advuaauon ALL wnpamd with rela‘var\l credil risk factors and consistency with
credit trends and identifi of the modal.

‘We also assessed the sufficiency of the audit evidence cbtained relaled lo the Company's private education ALL
estimate by evaluating the:

. cumulative results of the audit procedures

- qualitative aspects of the Cumpurvgr’! accounting practices

. ial bias in the

s/ KPMG LLP

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2012,

McLean, Virginia
February 26, 2024
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NAVIENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except per share amounts)

December 31,
2023
Assets
FFELP Loans (net of allowance for losses of $215 and $222, respectively) 5 37.925
Privale E Loans (net of for losses of $617 and $800,

respectively) 16,802
Investments 146
Cash and cash equivalents 833
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,954
Goodwill and acquired intangible assets, net 695
Other assets 2914
Total assels g 61.375
Liabilities
Short-term borrowings s 4,226
Long-term borrowings 53,402
Other liabilities 987
Total liabilities 58.615
c I — : ————
Equity
Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.20 per share;

2 million shares authorized at December 31, 2021; no shares issued

or outstanding —
Commeon slock, par value $0.01 per share; 1.125 bilion shares authorized:

464 millien and 461 million shares issued, respectively 4
Additional paid-in capital 3,353
A lated other D income (net of tax expense of

$6 and $29, respectively) 19
Retained eamings 4,638
Total Navieni Corporation stockholders’ equity before treasury stock 8.014
Less: Commeon stock held in treasury at cost: 350 million and 331 million

shares, respactively {5.254)
Total equity 2.760
Total liabilities and equity 5 61,375
Supplemental information — assets and of riable interest entities:

December 31,
2023
FFELP Loans $ 37.832
Private Education Loans 15,758
Restricted cash 1.837
Other assets, net 1.744
Short-term borrowings 3634
Long-term borrowings 48,169
Net assets of consolidated variable interest entities $ 5.469
Sea ing notes to lidated f ial
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December 31,
2022
$ 43,525

18,725

167

1,535

3272

705

2,866

$ 70.795

$ 5,870
61,026
— =
67.818

4
3,313

87

— 4490
7.894

4,917}
2977

2977
$ 70,785

55,598




NAVIENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Years Ended Decomber 31,
2022
Interest income:
FFELP Loans $ 2,897 § 1966 § 1,464
Private Education Loans 1,369 1,195 1.181
Cash and invasimants 153 62 3
Total interest income 4,418 3223 2,648
Total inlerest expense 3,557 2,102 1,316
Net interest income B62 1121 1,332
Less: provisions for loan losses 123 79 {61}
Net interest income after provisions for lean losses 739 1.042 1.393
Other income (loss):
Servicing revenue 64 77 168
Assel y and ing revenue A 336 539
Orther income 21 32 a0
Gains on sales of loans - - 78
Losses on debt repurchases (8) - (73)
Gains (losses) on derivative and hedging activities, net 11 171 B4
Total other income 409 616 806
Expenses:
Salaries and benefils 401 444 569
Other operating expenses 399 332 638
Total operaling expenses 800 776 1.207
and ired asset g and
amortization expense 10 19 30
foth 25 36 26
Total expenses. 835 a3 1,263
Income before income tax expense 313 a7 936
Income tax expense B85 182 219
Net income $ 228 § G845 § 717
e e -
Basic earnings per common share $ 187 § 454 § 423
Average common shares outstanding 122 14 170
Diluted earnings per common share 5 185 § 449 § .18
Average and i shares i 123 144 172
Dividends per common share $ 64 § 64 § 64
See noles to i i
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NAVIENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{In millions)
Years Ended Decamber 31,
2022 202
Net income 5 228 $ 645 § 7
Net changes in cash flow hedges, net of tax!"! (62) 220 141
Total comprehensive income 5 160 5 865 § 858
" See Nole 7 — Derivatie Financial Instuments.”
Seo notes to i financial statemaents,




NAVIENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In millions, except share and per share amounts)

Stock Sharas

Additional

lesued
Balance st
Decomber 11, 2020 453,770,975
Camprohen

plans
Issuance of common shares 4.850.409

|
f
E

campansation plans —

nterest —

Treasury
(267.476.521)

(34,371.073)

(3.039.019)

Paid-in

Outstanding | __Stock = _ Capital
186302454 § 4 3 120

4850409 =

(34311073} =

(3,039,019} -—

I8 2|

Comprehensive Retained

- Ti?

= 2}

5

Treasury

(3.854)

1)

Interest

<1}

]

8
December 31, 2021 A58 E26 384

304,886.613)

153 742771 i 4 i 3,282

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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NAVIENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In millions, except share and per share amounts)

Accumutated

Additional Other Total
i Stock Shares Paid-in Comprehentive Ratained h{ Stockholders’ Nencontrelling Total

Trsued Treasury  _Ouistanding _ Stock _Capial  income(loss) _Eamings Stack Equity _Equity
458,620 384 (304,886 613) 183142TH 3 4 § 1wz 3 {133 § 3838 § (4405 § 2887 § 11§ 2608
— - - - - - B45 - B45 - 645

— - - - - 20 - - 320 - 220

— = = = — = — = B65 = 65

= - - = - = @ - 1) - 1)

= == — = ==, = (] = (3) — [
2.458.208 - 2.458.208 - 12 - - - 12 - 12
-_ —_ - - 19 -_ — -— 19 - 19

= (24.811,009) (24.811,009) = = = = 1400} (400} = (400}

- {1.180.530) (1,180,530} - . o e 22) {22y s 22}

— — = — — — - - - {1y (11}
ﬂ‘lm5w 5330678 152} ‘JD&W‘!& 5 4 z JISYS 3 87 3 4.490 5 (4917 % ?9_77 13 - 5 2977

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




NAVIENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In millions, except share and per share amounts)

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Common Stock Shares Comman Paid-In Comprohensive Retained Treasury s 4 3
Issued Treasury _Outstanding Stock _Capital Income (Lose Earnings Stock Equity Interest

461,087 580 (330.878,152) 130,306,438 5 4 5§ 1 5 L 5 44800 5 (@07 § 2877 =
= = = = = - 2 - 28 -

- - —_ — - (68} — - i68) -

- - — - - - - —_— 160 —_

- - - - - - (] = 78 -

— - = — — - 2 - iz -

2827 458 - 2827458 - ;] - - - 18 -
- -_— _ —_ 24 — - — 24 -—

— (18,016,841} (18016841} = — — — 310 [EA 1] -

— (1.315,644) {1.315.644) - - - - 24) 24) -

= = = = = = = 3 (3 =
-(827‘5013 I!SCIZW?!:I 113 504,311 - 4 z 3353 z 19 ! 4 638 2 iS?g} 3 2.TED —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NAVIENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{In millions)

Operating activities

Nel ncoma
Adustments to reconcile nel income 1o net cash provided by operating activities:
Gains on sale of sducation loans
Losses on debt repurchases.
Goodwill and acquired intangible asset impainmant and amortization expense
based compensation

(Increasa) decrease in accrued inlerest receivable

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable

Decrease in olher assels

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities

Total adjustments

Total net cash provided by operating actvities.
Investing activitios

Principal payments on education loans.

Proceads from sales of education loans

Purchase of subsidiary. nel of cash acquired

Total net cash provided by investing activities
activitios

Bomowings collteralized by leans in trust - iesued
collateralized by boans in trust - repaid

Total nel cash used in financing acivities
Nel increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash ond restricted
cash equivalents

Cash, cash equivalents, resticted cash and restricted cash equivalents st
besginning of period

Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricled cash equivalents at
end of pericd

of Cash Flows to

Detivities.
Evvesting activity - Heid-lo-matwity asset backed securities refained related fo
siles of educaton
Operating actwiy - Servicing assets recognized upon sales of sducation loans

See ing noles lo

Years Ended December 31,
—e2

s 28 % 845 3 7

= = (78)

8 - T3

1% 18 0

24 19 2

147 (590) (433)

123 79 (61}

(50) (147} 47

29 158 (55}

52 387 145

108 28 )

o s %

1970) (2.051) (6.104)

8322 12,540 11,137

= B 1588

5 96 68

= = (18)

7357 10,585 CCEE]

1,357 2.243 Ta7

(8.753) 12.581) £11,163)

a 1,004 (2,169)

883 - 1.237

(2,159) {15) (2,702)

o1y B3 197

(213 {400) (B0}

{78} {81} (107)

(10.047) {9.661) 7.334)

{2.014) 1.229 4

4,807 3578 3537

i 279 3§ 4807 § 3578

$ 3431 § 1004 § 1,378
3 ST 3 TR 1 T

5 ﬁ) 5 {12) § {11}

3 839 § 153 § 805

1.554 aamn 2673

3 279 § 4807 § 3578

3 b - % 8
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NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Business

Navient's Business

Navient (Nasdag: NAVI) provides technology-enabled education finance and business processing solutions that
simplify complex programs and help millions of people achieve success. Our cuslomer-focused, dala-driven services
deliver exceptional results for clients in education, heaith care and government. Learn more al navient.com,

With a focus on data-driven insights, service, compliance and innovalive support, Navient’s business consists of;

»  Federal Education Loans
‘We own a portfolio of $38 billion of federally guaranteed Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP)
Loans. As a servicer on our own portfolio and for third parties, we deploy data-driven approaches to support
the SUCCESS oloul wslomera Our flexible and scaiatlie infrastructure marnuges farge volumes of complex

+ Consumer Lending
‘We help students and families succeed through the college journey with innovative planning tools, student
loans and refinancing products. Our $17 billion Private Education Loan portfolio demonstrates high customer
success rates. In 2023, we originated approximately $1 billion of Private Education Loans.

+ Business Processing
‘We leverage our loan servicing expertise to provide business processing solutions for approximately S00
jpublic sector and healthcare orgarizaﬁons and their tens of millions of clients, patients, and constituents.
Our suite of omnichannel . digital p ing and revenue cycle solutions enables our
clients to deliver batter results for |ho poopla they serve.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

Our financial reporting and accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States of America (GAAP), The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make eslimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities al the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses dumg tha r\ewﬂlng period, Uncorlalrl and volatile market and economic conditions increase the risk and

in these and actual results could differ from estimates. Accounting policies that
include the moﬂ sbgnlﬂcnm judgments, estimates and assumplions include the allowance for loan losses. goodwill
and intangible asset impairment assessment and the of loan p and di using the
interest rate method,

Consolidation

The i include the of Navient C: ion and its majority-owned and
controlled subsidiaries and those Variable Interest Entities ME;} for which we are the primary beneficiary, after
eliminating the effects of | and

We consolidate any VIES where we have determined we are the primary beneficiary. A VIE is a legal entity that does
not have sufficient equity at risk to finance its own operations, or whose equity holders do not have the power to
direct the aclivities that most significantly affect the economic performance of the entity, or whose equity holders do
nol share proportionately in the losses or benefils of the entity. The primary beneficiary of the VIE is the entity which
has both: (1) the power lo direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIE's economic

i and (2) the obligation to absorb losses or receive benefits of the entity that could potentially be
significant to the VIE. As it relates to our securitizations and other secured borrowing faciities that are VIEs as of
December 31, 2023 that we consolidale, we are the primary beneficiary as we are the servicer of the related
education loan assels and own the Residual Interest of the securilization trusts and secured borrowing facilities.
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NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair Value Measurement

We use estimates of fair value in applying various ing dards for our t Fair value
measurements are used in one of four ways:

« Inthe balance sheet with changes in fair value recorded in the statement of income;

. lnlhebalmcemetmmm:nmfmvdwmommmm lated other ¥ ive income
section of the \ges in ' equity;

# In the balance sheet for instruments carriad at lower of cost or fair value with impairment charges recorded
in the statement of income; and

* inthe notes to the financial statements,

Fair value is defined as the price to sell an asse! or transfer a liability in an orderly ransaction between willing and
able market participants. In general, our policy in estimating fair value is to first look at observable markel prices for
identical assets and liabilities in active markets, where available. When these are not available, other inputs are used
to model fair value such as prices of similar instruments, yield curves, volatililies, prepayment speeds, default rates
and credit spreads, relying first on observable data from active markets. Depending on current market conditions,
additonal adjustments Lo fair value may be based on factors such as liquidity and eredit spreads. Transaction cosls
are not included in the determination of fair value. When possible, we seek lo validale the model's cutput lo market
transactions. Depending on the availability of observable mpuu and prices, different valuation medels could produce

materially different fair value esti The values pt d may not rep t future fair values and may not be
realizable.
We categorize our fair value estimates based on a | L3 with three levels of price

utilized in financial i at fair value. Classification is based on the lowest level of
Input thatis slgnlﬂ:am to the fair value of the instrument. The three levels are as follows:

*  Lovel 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we have the
ability to access at the measurement date. The types of financial instruments included in level 1 are highly
liquid instruments with quoled prices.

* Level 2 — Inputs from aclive markets, other than quoted prices for identical instruments, are used to
determine fair value, Significant inputs are directly observable from active markets for substantially the full
term of the assel or liability being valued.

. LevdS—Pdmg:nwlss»gruﬂcﬂlolhsvabahmara b ble. [nputs are developed based on the
lbest information available. However, sigs is required by us in developing the inputs,

Loans

Loans, consisting of luderalhy insured education loans and Prw.m Education Loans, thal we have Ihe ability and
intent to hold for the fulure are ified as and are carried at amortized cost

Amortized cost i the i ﬂlsr.nunls and capitalized origination costs and fees, all o1' which
are amortized to interest income as further discussed below. Leans which are hokl for-investment also have an
allowance for loan loss. Any loans we have not i as held-for-i i as held-for-sale and
carried at the lower of cost or fair value. Loans are classified as held4or—sale when we have I.Ile intent and ability to
sell such loans. Loans which are held-for-sale do not have the
origination costs and fees amortized into inlerest income. In addition, ence a loan is dassuﬁed as hekl -for-sale, any
allowance for loan losses that existed i diately prior to the recl ion to held-for-sale is reversed through
provision,
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NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Alfowance for Loan Losses
We account for our FFELP and Private Education Loans' allowance for loan losses under ASU No. 2016-13,
“Financial Instruments — Credit Losses,” which requires and of an lor loan loss
that estimates the remaining current expecied credit losses (CECL) for fi ial assels at cosl
held at the reperting date.
We have that, for modeling current exp credit losses, we can reasonably esﬂmala expected losses
that incorporate current and f SConomic iti overa and ® period. For Private

Loans, we incorp a ble and supportable forecast of various rnacmmorm: variables over
the remaining life of the loans. The develop it of the ble and supp ble forecast ites an

P that each i \ranablswillrnvmtoalongtennsupedabonslamngnyem?-ioﬂ'me

forecast and largely completing within the first five years of the forecast. For FFELP Loans, after a three-year
reasonable and supportable period, there is an iImmediate reversion to a long-term expectation. The models used to
project losses utilize key credit quality indicators oftho lean portfolio and predict how those attributes are expected to
perform in ion with the it These losses are calculated on an undiscounted
basis. For Private Education Loans, we utilize a transition rate model that estimates the probability of prepayment and
default and apply the loss given defaull. Fot FFELP Lonns we use rates to
prepayments and defaults. The f ions used in our modeling of exp d losses are
provided by a third parly. The Dnmﬂry economic metrics we use in the ic forecasl are ployment, GDP,
interest rates, ounsumer rates and IllDO!“ﬂ Several forecast scenarios are provided
whmh the b i jons as well as f; ble and advnrse ios. We analyze and
the al i rios for bk and d the: of these al
scenarios based upon the current economic conditions and our view ul\he 1|kelihoon‘ and risks of the allernawe
scenanios. We project losses at the loan fevel and make prepay and on
defaults. Charge-offs include the discount or premium refated to such ﬂelaulhed loan.

Once our loss model calculations are performed, we determine if qualitati dj are needed for factors not
in the itative model. These adj may include, bulwenotlmihedw changes in lending and
een»umu and collection puilcies nnu practices, as well as the effect of other external factors such as the economy and
ges in begal or reg requ that impact the amount of future credit losses.

At the end of each month, for Private Education Leans that are 212 days past due, we charge off the estimated loss
of a defaulted loan balance by charging off the entire loan h-a-lance and sslllna'nng recoveries on a pool basis, These
estimated recoveries are referred to as ‘fulum onp fuly chargaddﬂnan& If actual
periodic recoveries are less than d, the diately refl d as a reducti d future
recoveries on previously fully chumed-oﬂ Ioans If actual pedodlc reoovedes are greater than expecied, they will be
reflected as a recovery through the almnce for Private Education Loan losses once the cumulative recovery

amount the ¢ ive amount to be
FFELP Loans are insured as to their principal and accrued lrmmsl in ma mn: of default subject to a Risk Sharing
level based on the dale of loan di nent. These i by contractual rights

against the United States. For loans disbursed after Oclober 1, 1993, and befote July 1, 2006, we receive 98%
reimbursement on all qualifying default claims. For loans disbursed on or after July 1, 2008, we receive 97%

For loans disb prior to October 1, 1993, we receive 100% reimbursement. We charge off the
amount for which we do not receive reimbursement on the defaulted loan balance.
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NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments
are primarily i for cash | posted to dert

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents can include term federal funds, Eurodollar deposits, commercial paper, asset-backed
commercial paper (ABCP), CDs, treasuries and money market funds with original terms to maturity of less than three
maonths.

Restricted Cash and In

Restricted cash primarily i amounts held in education loan securitization trusts and other secured borrowings.
This. cash must be used to make payments related to trust obligations. Amounts on deposit in these accounts are
primarily the result of timing differances between when principal and interest is collected on the trust assets and when
principal and interest is paid on trust labilities.

Seourtuas pledged as wllalarai related to our derivative portfolio, where the counterparty has rights to replace the

are d as restricted. When the dmnalhavemmnwls the security is recorded in
and as pledged in the notes. A , certain require cash

coiln!uﬂnhdgndbnuswbc 9 and held in icted cash
Goodwill and Acquired I ibls Assels
Acquisith are d for under the isition method of ing which mulls in the Company allocating
the purchase price to the fair value of the acquired assets, Rabilities and non g if any, with the
remaining purchase price allocated to goodwill.

dwill is not ized bul is tested peri for impail We test goodwill for impairment annually as of

Oclober 1 al the reporting unit level, which is the same as or one level below a business segment. Goodwill is also
tested al interim periods if an event occurs or circumstances change thal would indicale the carrying amount may be
impaired.

We cornplelo a goodwill 1mpa|rmoﬂt mlym which may be a quali ora itative analysis d ing on the
facts and circur rting unit, In junction with a qualil mparmenl anaﬂysm we
assess relevant qualitative factors Iu detemme whether it is ‘mnle-l:kaiy—ﬂ\an—ml that the fair value of a reporting
unit i5 less than its carmying amount. The “mare-likely-than-not” threshold is deﬂnsd as having a kkelihood of more

than 50%. If, based on first ! i utilizing a i L Wi ine it is “more-likely-than-
nol that Ille fair value of the re'porlmg um is less 'Ihan rts carrying amwnt. wWe -mll also complete a quantitative
i it analysis, In conjunclion with a i analysis, we compare the fair value of the reporting

unit to the reporting unit's carrying value, {ndnﬁng goodml If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds the fair
value, goodwill is impaired in an ameunt equal to the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the
reporting unit not to exceed the goodwill amount attributed to the reporting unit.

Acquired intangible assets include, bul are not limited to, irade names, and ather ips, and non-
Acquired intangible assets wﬁh finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives in
1o their esti ic benefil. Fi fived ired intangible assets are reviewed for impaiment

using an undiscounted cash flow analysis when an event occurs or drcumstances change indicating the carrying
amount of a finite-ived assel or assel group may nol be recoverable. If the carrying amount of the asset or asset
group mee:ls the mdcsr-ounlnd cash flows, the fair value of the asset or asset group is determined using an

i loss would be recognized if the carrying amount of the asset or asset
g;oup exceeds the fair value of !M asset or asset group. The impairment loss recognized would be the difference
between the carrying amount and fair value.
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NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Securitization Accounting

Qur securitizations use a two-step structure with a spec-al wrpm emﬂy that legally isolates the transferred assels
from us, even in the event of iment are also sl.ruclm 1o ensure that the
holders of the beneficial interests issued are not ined fmm ing or ing their | and that we

do not maintain effective control over the transferred assets. If these criteria are not met, then the transaction is
wmunbed for as an on-baianee sheet secured borrowing. In all cases, irespective of whether they qualify as

\g sales our are legally to be sales of assets that isolate the transferred assets
from us. i a securitization qualifies as a sale, we then assess whather we are the primary beneficiary of the
securitization trust (VIE) and are required to consolidate such trust. H' W are the pﬂmﬂry beneficiary, then ne gain or
loss is recognized. See "Consolidation” of this Note 2 for i g the ing rules for
consolidation when we are the primary beneficiary of these trusis,

Irespective of whether a securitization receives sale or on-balance sheal treatmenl, our continuing involvement with
our securitization trusts is generally limited to:

*  Owning equity certificates ol olﬂst certificates of certain trusts Bﬂd in certain cases, securities retained for the
purpose of with ri under laws,

*  Lending to certain trusis, under a revolving credit, amounts necessary to cover temporary cash flow needs of the
trust. These amounts are repaid to us on subordinated basis with interest at a markel rate.

»  The servicing of the education loan assets within the securitization trusts, on both a pre- and post-default basis.

»  Our acting as i for the i transactions we which includes remarketing certain
bonds at future dates.

*  Our responsibilities relative lo rep and

¢ Temporarily ad\ranmng to the trust certain borrower benefits arrmw the borrowers of education loans that have
been q are d 1o us in the next quarter.

+  Certain back-to-back derivatives entered into by us P usly with the ion of derivatives by

certain Private Education Loan securitization trusts,
*  The option held by us to buy certain definquent loans from certain Private Education Loan securitization trusts.

* The option to exercise the clean-up call and purchase the education loans from the trust when the asset balance
is 10% or less of the original loan balance.

*  The option, on some trusts, to purchase education loans aggregating up to 10% of the trust's initial pool balance.
»  The option (in certain trusts) to call rate resel notes in instances where the remarketing process has failed.
The investors of the securitization trusts have no recourse to our other assels should there be a failure of the trusts to

pay when due. Gemrany the only arrangements under which we have to provide financial support to the rusts are
q the buyback of loans.

Under the terms of the transaction documants of certain trusts, we have, from time to time, exercised our options o

purchase delinguent loans from Private Education Loan trusts, lo purchase the remaining loans from trusts once the

Ioan balance falls below 10% of the original amount, to purchase education leans up to 10% of the trust’s initial

h@lunc.o. ar to call rate resel notes. Oermn trusis maintain financial arrangemants with third parties also typical of
such as deri (swaps).

We do not record servicing assets or i ities when our itization trusts are consolidated. As of
December 31, 2023, we had $11 nﬂhondumungammwrbdmshaetmdedmmmmnmm
sales where we retained the servicing.
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NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Education Loan interest Income

For loans classified as held-for-inv we g ducatien loan interest -ﬂcome as eamed adjusmd for the
amnmxauon of pl‘amluma {m»ch includes L from loan pi and ¢ direct orig cosls),

and R Benefits. These adjusiments msml in income being recognized based upon the
e&pacleﬁymlﬁoflheluanmrﬂ.slhahmglwngeﬂeclm P s {i.e.. the effective interest rate
method). We amortize p and d on education loans u:lnga Constant Prepayment Rate (CPR) which
measures the rate at which loans in the portfolio pay down principal compared 1o their stated terms. In determining
the CPR, we only consider payments made in excess of contractually required payments. This would include loan
refinancing and consolidations and other early payoff activity. For Repayment Borrower Benefits, the estimates of
their effect on education loan yield are based on analyses of historical payment behavior of customers who are
ellglblu for the incentives and its effect on the ultimate qualification rate for these incentives. We regularly evaluate

ptions used to esti the t speeds and mequeﬂnnaum mlasusenfocnepamm 1t Borrower
Beneﬂls. In instances where there are changes to the pti is adjusted on a basls to
reflect the change since the acquisition of the loan. We do not amortize any premiums, discounts or other
adjustments to the basis of education loans when they are classified as held-for-sale.

Interast Expense
Interest Is based upon sal interest rates adjusted for the amortization of debt issuance costs,

iums and di Our interest is also adj for net ipts related to interest rate and
foreign currency swap agreemants that quality and are designated as hedges, as well as the mark- Io-mafkel impact
of derivatives and debt in fair value hedge . Interest exp also includes the of deferred
wm and losses on closed hedge transactions that quehﬁed as hedges Amortization of debt issuance costs,

di s and i hedge-basis adj ized using the effective interest rate

method.
Servicing Revenue

We perform loan servicing functions for third parties in return for a servicing fee. Our compensation is typically bmd
on a per-unit fee arrangement or a percentage of the loans outstanding. We i servicing

with these activities based upon the contractual arrangements as the services are rendered. We reoognlze late fees
on third-party serviced loans as well as on loans in our portfolio ding to the of the
promissory notes, as well as our expectation of collectability.

Asset R ry and Pre ing

‘We account for certain asset recovery and business processing contract revenue (herein referred to as revenue from
in with ASC 606, "R from C with Ci '(AI"' i

Processing segment and the majority of the Federal fion Loan seg

assel and
processing revenue is accounted for under ASC 606.) Revenue eamed by our Federal Education Loans segment is
darived from assat recovery activities related to the collection of delinquent education loans on behalf of third parties,
Revenue eamned by our Business Processing segment Ls dndvad from g ices, which includ,
receivables management services and account p ] and services, which includes
revenue cycle managemenl services.,
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NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Mast of our revenue from contracts with customers is derived from long-term contracts, the duration of which is
expecled lo span mere than one yesr These coniracts are billable monthly. as services are rendered, based on a

percentage of the balance coll d or the a flat fee per transaction orastnled rale per the
service performed, In accordance with ASC 606, meunntvlamunl'sa a
promise to provide a distinct good or service 1o a The price is all d to each distinct
performance obligation when or as the good or service is d to the and the obly Is satisfied

Distinct performance obligations are identified based on the services specified in the contract that are capable of
being distinct such that the customer can benedit from the service on its own or together with other resources that are
avallable from the companyor athird party, and are also distingt in the context of the contract such that the fransfer

of the ices is sep from other services promised in the contract. Most of our contracts include
sewioe il l.hat include obligations that are not identifiable and distinct in the context of
our ¢ have a single performance obligation. A limited number of full-

service offerings include mulﬂple performance obligations.

Substantially all our revenue is variable revenue which is recognized over time as our customers receive and
consume the benefit of our i in an amount with monthly billings, Accordingly, we do not disclose
variable consideration associated with the remaining performance obligaticn as we have recognized revenue in the
amount we have the right to invoice for services performed. Our Tees mspond o Iho value the cuslomer has
realized from our performance of each increment of the service (for le, an P d or
collection of a past due balance).

of F I Assets and of Liabilities
Our securitizations and other secumd ings are generally d for as on-balance sheet secured
. See S ing” of this Note 2 for further discussion on the criteria assessed to determine

whether a transfer of financial assets is a sale or a secured borrowing. If a transfer of loans qualifies as a sale, we
derecognize the loan and recognize a gain or loss as the difference between the carrying basis of the loan seld and
liabilities retained and the compensation received.

We perodically repurchase our outstanding debt in the open market or through public tender offers. We record a gain
or loss on the early extinguishment of debt based upon the difference between the carrying cost of the debt and the
amount paid to the third party and net of hedging gains and losses when the debl is in a qualifying hedge relationship.

We recognize the results of a transfer of loans and the extinguishment of debt based upen the settlement date of the
transaction.

Derivative Accounting

Derivative instruments that are used as part of our interest rate and foreign currency risk management strategy
include interest rate swaps, cross-currency interest rate swaps, and interest rate floor cormm The accounting hr
derivative instruments requires that every derivative instrument, including certain deri i in
other contracts, be recorded on the balance sheet as eﬁmr an asset or liability mnaaumd at its fair value, As mare
fully described below, i certain criteria are met, deri are classifi r\d d for by us as
either fair value or cash flow hedges. If these criteria are not met, the deri are d
for as trading, Derivati il are ded as nel positions by based on masler nelling
arrangements exclusive of accrued interest and cash collateral held or pledged. Many of our derivatives, mainly fixed
o vanable or varable to fixed interest rate swaps and mammimmﬂ rate swaps, qualify as eMective hodges.
For these derivati at the i ion of the hedge ing is documented: the relationship
between the hedging instrument and the hedged items (mdudns] the hedged risk, the methed for assessing
effectiveness, and the results of the upfront eﬁeclmnesa testing), and the risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking the hedge Each v is i to either a specific (or pool of) asset{s) or
liability(ies) on the balance sheet or expected future cash flows and designated as either a “fair value® or a “cash flow”
hedge. The assessment of the hedge's effectiveness is performed at inception and on an ongoing basis, wﬂmlly
using regression testing. For hedges of a pool of assets or liabilities, tests are [ to the ty
of individual instruments of the pool. When it is determined thal a derivative is not currently an effective hedge,
Ineflectiveness is recognized for the full change in value of the derivative with no offsetting mark-to-market of the
hedged item for the current period. If it is also determined the hedge will not be effective in the fulure, we discontinue
the hedge accounting prospectively, cease recording changes in the fair value of the hedged item, and begin
amortization of any basis adjustments that exist related to the hedged item.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair Value Hedges

Fair value hedges are generally used by us to hedge the exposure lo changes in the fair value of a recognized fixed
rate assel or liability. We enler into interest rale swaps lo economically conver fixed rale assets into variable rate
assels and fixed rate debt into vartable rate debt. We also enter info cross-curmency interest rale swaps to
economically convert foreign cumrency danomalod fixed and floating debt to U.S. dollar denominated variable debt.
For fair value hedges. we g y all of the derivative's gain and/or loss when assessing
hedge eff and g hedge ges in ) fair values due to interest rates or interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates, . For fair value hedges, both the derivative and the hedged item (for the risk being hedged)
are marked-to-market through net interest income with any difference reflocting ineffectiveness.

Cash Flow Hedges

We use cash flow hedges to hedge the exposure to varability in cash flows for a forecasied debt issuance and for
exposure to variability in cash flows of floating rale debt or assels. This stralegy is used primarily to minimize the
exposure to volatility from future changes in interest rales. For cash flow hedges, the change in the fair value of the
derivative is recorded in other comprehensive income, net of tax, and recognized in eamings in the same period as
the eamings effects of the hedged Hem. In the case of a forecasted debt issuance, gains and losses are reclassified

o earnings over the period which the stated hedged ion affects ! Ilwe‘ ine it is not

that the anuupabecl transaction will occur, gains and losses are rec d i to i in

hedge effe L] all of each derivative’s gains or losses are included in the assessment.
Weg Iy hedge lo changes in cash flows due 1o changes in interest rates or total changes in cash flow.
Trading Activities

When derivative instruments do nnlquallhr as mm they are amoumed for as trading hslmmon:s where all
changes in fair value are ded through gs with na for the D g change in fair value

of the economically hedged item. Some of cur derivatives, primarily Floor Income Contracts, basis swaps and cerlain
other intarest rate swaps do not qualify Iur hedge accounting treatment, Regardiess of the accounting freatment, we

ider these d to be ic hedges for risk management purposes. We use this strategy to minimize
‘our expesure 1o changes in interest rales.

The “gains (losses) on derivative and hedging activities, net” line item in the consolidated statements of income
includes the mark-lo-market gains and losses of our derivatives thal do not qualify for hedge accounting, as well as
the realized changes in fair value related to derivative net satlemants and dispositions that do not qualify for hedge
accounting.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

We gnize stock-based ion cost in our stalements of income using the fair value-based method. Under
this method we determine the fau' value of the stock-based compensation al the ime of the gran and recognize the
resulting compensation expense over the grant’s vesting period. We record stock-based compensation expense net
of estimated forfeitures and as such, only those stock-based awards that we expect to vest are recorded. We
estimate the forfelture rate based on historical forfeitures of equity awslds and adjust the rate to reflect changes in
facts and circur ifany. L y. the total gl over the vesting period will equal the fair
wvalue of awards that actually vest.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

g and Other g P
From time to time we plansla our In conyj with these plans,
inveluniary benefit arrangements, disposal costs (including contract i .muand other exit :osls} ss well as
cerlanolherwa.slhalnrmwememlandmmd asa d|reclres|.lldour g plans, are classified as
] in the li of income,

The Company administers the Navient Corporation Empl Plan and the Navient Corperation Executive
Severance Plan for Senior Officers (collectively, the Severance Plan). The Severance Plan provides severance
benefits in the event of of the Company's full-time yees and part-time employees who work at least
24 hours per week. The Plan i fied benefits based on base salary, job level immediately
preceding termination and years of service upon il y lermination of I Tho benefits payable under
the Swerance Plau relate lo past service, and they and vest. A i

to the Plan when p ‘olwd!bunuﬁlslspmbebhmdcmba
nuasnnably esﬂmahed Such benefits include ce pay based on the Plan, medical and
dental benefits, and services exp *
Contract termination costs are expensed at the earfier of (1) the contract termination date or (2) the cease use date
under the contract. Other exit costs are expensed as incurred and ified as if {1) the cost
is incremental to and incurred as a direct result o(planm restructuring activities and (2) me cost is nol associated
with or incurred to g revenues sub ion of the relaled restructuring activities.

Other reorganization expenses include certain intemal costs and third-party costs incurred in connection with our cost
reduction initiatives.

During 2023 and 2022, the Company incurred $25 million and $36 millicn, respactively, of foth
anization expenses. In 2023, these relate pri to costs incurred in connection with the
GEO transition as well as a facility Iaasa hlrnlnmun and !mpnlrmant of a facility held for sale in conjunction with the
Mation of cenain effic . E in 2022 primarily relates to costs for severance and facility

in with the Ci /s decision to exit the FFELP assel recovery business and
comﬁdale certain business lines.
Income Taxes
We account for income laxes under the assel and liability approach which requires the recognition of deferred tax
liabilities and assets for the exp future tax of temporary differences between the carrying

amounts and tax basis of our assets and liabilities. To the extent tax laws change, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are adjusted in the period that the tax change is enacted.

“Income tax t)” includes (i) tax senefit), which the net change in the
deferred tax asset or liability balanca during the year plus any change in a valuation allowance and (i) current tax
expense/{benefit), which represents the amount of tax currently payabile to or receivable from a tax authority plus
amounts accrued for unrecognized tax benefils. Income tax expense/{benelil) excludes the tax effects related to
adjustments recorded in equity.
If we have an uncertain tax position, then that tax posmon is recognized only if it is more likely than not to be

d upon ion based on the technical merits of the position. The amount of tax benefit recognized in
the financial stalements is the largest amount of benefit that is more than 50% likely of being sustained upon ulimate
settlement of the uncertain tax position. We recognize interes! relaled to unrecognized tax benefits in income lax

Jand p ies, if any, in
Eamnings (Loss) per Common Share
‘We compute eamings (loss) per common nhare :EPS} by driding net income to shar
the weighted average mnrnon shares o Diluted per share is puted by dividing
income holders by the welghted average common shulos omrvdm plus amounts
representing the diuiwe effect of stock options. tandi stock, d stock units, and the

outstanding commitment to issue shares under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. See “Note 10 — Eamings (Loss)
per Common Share” for further discussion.
Reclassifications

Cenrtain reclassifications have been made to the balances as of and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021, to be consistent with classifications adopled for 2023, which had no effect on net income, total assets or total
liabilities.

F-20




NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

R Iy Issued A ing P
Effective in 2023 and Forward
Rate Reform

In March 2020 {and as amended in December 2022}, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASU
No. 2020-04, “Reference Rate Reform: Faciltation of the Effects of Reference Rale Reform on Financial Reporting.”
which provides optional temporary relief for companies who were preparing for the discontinuation of interest rates
indexed to the London Interbank Offered Rate {LIBOR} The ASU provides oompanlas with guidance in the form of
expedients and exceptions related to contract modifis and hedge g to ease the burden of and simplify
the accounting associated with transitioning away from I..IBOR Modifications of IIUBW"D contracts are accounted for
as the continuation of an existing contract rather than as a new contract. Modifications of qualifying hedging
relationships will not require discontinuation of the exisling hedge accounting relationships. One-month and three-
month LIBOR were discontinued as of June 30, 2023. Our hedging instruments that were indexed to one-month and
three-month LIBOR are now indexed to SOFR. There was $12 billion of debt as of June 30, 2023, that was in either a
fair value or cash flow hedge relationship using LIBOR swaps. We used the hedge accounting expedients in this ASU
when those swaps transilioned 1o SOFR on July 1, 2023. As a resull, the indexing to SOFR did not result in the
discontinuation of the exisling hedge accounting relationships,

Troubled Debl Restruclurings

In Mareh 2022, the FASB issued ASU No. 2022-02, “Financial Instruments — Cradil Losses: Troubled Debt
Restructurings and Vintage Disclosures,” which efiminates the troubled debt ings (TDRs) gnition and
measurement guidance and instead requires an entity to evaluate whether the mndrﬁcahan represents a new loan or
a continuation of an existing loan. The ASU also enh the disch for cerain modifications of

bles made to b ing fi ial difficulty. This gmdamwasalhmon)anuarﬂ
2023. Prior lo adopting H-us new guidance on January 1, 2023 as it relates to interest rale concessions granted as
part of our Private 1 Loan cash flow model was used to calculate the
amount of interest forgiven for loans that were in the program and the present value of that interest rate concession
was included as a part of the allowance for loan loss. This new guidance no longer allows the measurement and
recognition of this element of our allowance for loan loss for modifications that occur subsequent to January 1, 2023,
As of December 31, 2022, the allowance for loan loss included $77 million related to this inlerest rale concession
component of the allowance for loan loss. We elected to adopt this amendment using a prospective transition method
which has resulted and will continue to result in the $77 million releasing between 2023 and 2024 as the borrowers.
«exit their current modification programs. $67 million of the $77 million was released in 2023, and we expect that the
remaining $10 millien will release in 2024,

Segment Reporting

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-07, g Reporting — s to g

D-sclosm which requires expanded disch gardi g for each reportabl
nclude that are rh ided to the chief ing d

maker (CODM) and included in each rep d of segment profit or loss. The ASU also requires disclosure of

the CODM's tithe and position and permits ipanies to disclose multiple seg Dloﬂ of loss ifthe

CODM uses these measures to allocate resources arld assess seg ies must il

each measure of profit or loss to the income This guid: became effe

beginning afler January 1, 2024, for fiscal years, and beginning afler Jaﬂuar\r T 2025 for interim periods. The

Company continues to assess the impact of the reporiable seg o

3. Education Loans

Education loans consist of FFELP and Private Education Loans.

There are two principal categories of FFELP Loans: Stafferd and Consolidation Loans. Generally, Stafford loans
have repayment periods of between 5 and 10 years. Consolidation Loans have repayment periods of 12 to 30 years.
FFELP Loans do not require rep 1, or have i ¥ plans, while the customer is in-school and
during the grace period immediately upon leaving school, ‘me customer may also be granted a deferment or
forbearance for a period of time based on need, during which time the is not l to be in

Interest continues o accrue on loans in the | hool, defs and forb period. FFELP Loans obligate the
customer to pay interest at a stated fixed rate or a variable rale reset annually (subject to a cap) on July 1 of each
year depending on when the loan was originated and the loan type, FFELP Loans disbursed before April 1, 2006
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3. Education Loans (Continued)

earn interest at the greater of the borrower's rate or a floating rate based on the Special Allowance Payment (SAP)
formula, with the interest eamed on the floating rate thal exceeds the interest earned from the customer being paid
directly by ED. For loans disbursed after April 1, 2008, FFELP Loans effectively only eam al the SAP rate, as the
excess interest eamed when the borrower rate exceeds the SAP rate (Floor Income) is required to be rebated to ED.

FFELP Loans are insured as to Iheqr principal and accrued interest in the wmlﬂf default subject to a Risk Sharing
level based on the date of loan di nent. These i d by contractual rights
against the United States. For loans disbursed after October 1, 19@3 and before .ILiy 1, 2008, we receive 98%
re:mmmmwl on all qualifying default claims, For loans disbursed on or after July 1, 2006, we receive 97%
reimbursement.

“In-school® Private Education Loans are loans originally made o borrowers while they arn attending school whereas
“Refinance™ Private Education Loans are loans where a has their tion loans. Private
Education Loans bear the full credit risk of the customer. Private Education Refinance Loans and in-school loans
originated after 2020 generally have a fixed interast rate, whereas in-school loans originated prior to 2020 are mostly
variable rate. The ma,onry of in-school loans in our portfelio are cosigned. Similar to FFELP Loans, Private Education

Loans are g in Most loans have repayment terms of 10 to 15 years or more,
and for loans made prior lo m payments ara typically deferred until after graduation. However, since 2009 we
began to inl 1-only or fixed oplions while the customer is enrolled in schoal.

As of December 31, 2023, the balance of in-school loans thal had been originated since 2020 was $641 million.
These in-school Private Educ.abun Loans are generally fixed rate. In early 2020, Navient entered into a loan purchase
agreemant with a third party whereby Navient provid ices 1o the third party for the purpose of
eriginating in-school loans, and once dlsbursed in-full those loans are purchased by Navient. The difference between
the markeling fee paid to Navient by the third party and the premium paid to the third party by Navient for the loans, is
deferred and amortized through loan income over the life al the loans. In Oclober 2022, the agreement was amended

toa P y Navient pi ion interest in each loan immediately after
dl:bursurlmL thereby clrrwng the Ioms on-l bdance shnol bofare holding legal title to the loan. Once the loan is fully
Navient p ining interest in the loan from the third party and full legal title to the loan is

transferred to Navient.
The estimated weighted average life of education loans in our portfolio was approximately 5 years and 6 years at

December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The following table reflects the distribution of our education loan portfolio
by program.

‘Year Ended

Decomber 31, 2023 Decomber 31, 2023
Effective
Ending % of Average Interest
(Dollars in milliens) Balance Balance __Balance Rate
FFELP Stafford Loans, net 5 13564 25% § 14949 TA4%
FFELP Consolidation Loans, net 24,361 44 26,242 680
Private Education Loans, net 16,902 3 18,483 742
Total education loans, net § 54,827 100% § 509654 7.15%
Year Ended
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2022
Average
Effective
Ending % of Average Interest
{Dollars in millons) Balance Balance Balance Rate
FFELP Stafford Loans, net 5 15691 25% § 17475 3.93%
FFELP Consolidation Loans, net 27834 45 31,708 4.04
Private E Loans, net 18,725 30 20.524 5.82
Total education koans, net §__62.250 100% §__ 60.707 4.53%

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, 85% and 84%, respectively, of our education loan portfolio was in repayment.
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4. Allowance for Loan Losses

Allowance for Loan Losses Roliforward

Year Ended December 31, 2023

Private
FFELP Education
Leans Loans Total
Beginning balance 5 222 3 800 3 1022
Todal provision 56 B7 123
Charge-offs:
Gross charge-offs 163) (320} {383)
future recoveries on cumrent penod gross charge-offs - AT 47
Totai"! 63) 1273) (336)
Adjustment resulting from the change in charge-off rate™ - _(25) _{25)
Net charge-offs 163) 1298) 1361}
Decraase in axpacted fulure recoveries on previously fully
chargoed-off loans'™ - 48
Allowance al end of period - 215 3 B17 5 832
Mm“lmdwmmm
g tha change in
wwo(maﬁ 19% 1.54%
et adjustment resulting mmwnmmnm asa
wwugeol average kans n =% 4%
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment
9% 1.68%
Ending total loans 5 38,140 § 17,519
Avetage loans in repayment $ aoa7 $ 17,743
Ending loans in repayment 1 30.436 5 16,796
" Change-ofts are reported n«uomm For Private Education Loans, uu‘wonmru stmated loss of & defaulied [oan batance
ane refamed o 85

]

Mnmmmmma\wm For FFELP Loans, mmmmﬂhmdmd

An Increase in the net charge-off rate on defaufted Private Education Loans in 2023 resulted in a 326 millon reducton in the balance of
sxpacted future rcovenss on previously fully charged-off loans.
. for

Atthe end of Loans that are 212 days past e, we charge oft ‘

by charging off the entire loan balance and estimating recoveries on 8 podl basi. Th refermed to as m-ﬂm
rocoveries on previously fully charged-of ans.” If actusal penodic recovenes are less P

roduction 1o axpacted

reflecied as
Ruture recovenss on PMM changed-of loans I mmmm wruvww mnlh-
roflectod 84 a recovery theough the aicwance for Private
Bmount originally

the
apactind 10 b recowered. mmmmwmmmowu Mw-mmowmw
charged-off loans:

Yeoar Ended

December 31,
(Dollars in millions) 023
Beginning of period expected future recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans $ 274
Expocted future recovernies of current paviod defaults. 47
Recoveries (cash collected) (46)
Charge-olls (a5 a resull of lower recovery expectations (49}
wawwmmmmwwam $ 228

Change in balance during pariod 3 (48}
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4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Yoar Ended Decembaer 31, 2022
Private
FFELP Education

(Daltars in milions) Loans. Loans Total
Beginning balance 3 ®  §F 1,008 12
Tolal provision - 0 k]
Charge-offs:

Gross charge-offs (40) (370) (410)

Expacied future recoveries on current paded gross charge-offs - 57 57

Total" {40) (313} (353)

Adjusimant resulting from the change in charge-off rate™ — (3a) (30}
Net charge-offs 140) {343} (383)
Dy in expacted futy fas on p by fuily

charged-off loans™ = 55 55
Allowance at end of period 5 222 - 800 3 1,022

Met charge-offs & a percentage of average loans in
excluding the nel adjustment resulting from the change in
charge-off rale

(annualized 0% 1.59%

Net adjustment resulting from the change in charge-off rate a5

percentage of average kans n rep: =% 5%
mnumumh-uhw

{annualized) 0% 1.74%

Ending tatal loans. § 4374y $ 19,525

Average loans in repayment $ 403: % 19,79

Ending loans in repaymant 5 M.372 5 18,770

" MmMMdemmwhaMMmmdhmwﬂ.mmm

[

' pravicusly fully charged-oft * For FFELP Loans, mmumnmmdmmu

o An incroase in the net charge-off rate on defeulted Private £ cans in ina hon reductan i the balance of expocted
fulure recoveries on pravicusly fully charged-off loans.

o Nﬂnc-fu‘ . .'L Edk L Mm:lzmmumwwh

ool bass MWMINWUI‘ GWHM

focovaries on mmmmw; ummmnm rafecied a3

reduction o expected hture recoveries an preously fully charged-offluans. Immmmmgunmw mnbe

reflected s n rocovery thecugh the sicwance for Private
originaty

Amouni sxpacied 10 be recovensd. NMMWWMMWuMMMNWWlMWW
charged-all loars.
Year Ended
Decamber 31,
2022
of pariod expocted future recoveris on praviously fully charged-off loans $ 329
Ewwmmdcmﬂmﬂwh 57
cash collected) (56}
Clwa—olln {ls a result of lower recovery expectations) (56}
End of period exp ® fully charged-off loans. H 274
Change in balance during period H (55)
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4, Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Yoar Ended Decembar 31, 2021
Private

FFELP Education
(Daltars in milions) Loans. Loans Total
Allowance: at beginning of period 3 | § 1.089 1377
Provision.
Raversal of allowance related to loan sales'™ = (107} 107}
Remaining - 46 45
Total provision - (G 61}
Gross charge-offs {26) [175] {201}
Expecied future recovenes on current penod gross charge-offs - 2
Tolal! i26) nﬁ) 79)
Adjstment resulting from the changa in charge-off rate™ - {16} {16)
Net charge-offs 126) (169) 1195)
Decrease in sxpected fulure recoveries on previously fully

loans™®! = 150 150
Allowance al end of period 5 262 5 1,009 5 1,271
Nel charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in
excluding the net adjustment resulting from the changs in

rate'™ JDE% J6%
Nel adjustment resulting from the change in charge-off rate as a

of average loans in —% 08%
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans in repayment D&% B4%
Ending total loans 5 52,903 $ 21,180
Average loans in repayment ] 45,761 3 20,150
Ending loans In repayment § 44300 $ 20,284
" with tha sale of $1.6 balion of Privata Education Loans in 2021,
' Charge-offs are reported net of expecied recowesies. Faor Private Education Loans we charge of the estimated luss of &

e rufermed to as

mmw«m previousty fully dlﬂwdd'm For FFELP Loans. the recovery is received al the tma of charge-off
W An Increase in e net charge-olf rate on defbulted Private Education Loana in 2021 resulted in 8 $16 millon reducton in the tatarce of sxpectsd
chargoc-off ioans.

future recoveries on previously hully
" ummdan‘m hhmhﬁmtmmm 12 day

e, we

ge

ean balarce
mmonmlym harged-off loans.” If actual penadic recovenes are less

Thess

o defaulled
mrmwn oml\.mn

faduction 10 expacted Rture recoraries on praviously fully charged o Jages, I actuol pariodc mmmwmnmmm ey wl be

reflected s a reomrraumh Mumm
mmount originaly expected 1o

'

Year Ended

Decamber 31,
(Dollars in milliens) P - - -
Beginning of period expected future recoveries on previously fully charged-off loans 3 479
Expecied future recoveries of current period defaults 22
Recoveries (cash collected) (87)
Charge-olfs (as a resull of lower recovery expectations) (35}
Reduction in recoveries related to reguiatory
End of period expected fulure recoveries on previously fully charged-olf leans. z 329
Change in balance during period 5 (150}

™ Ralated io the resclution of previously

F-25

fully




NAVIENT CORPORATION
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4, Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Key Credit Quality Indicators

We assess and determine the coll bility of our lean ios by luating certain risk ch. g
we refer o as key credil quality indicalors. Key credil quality & are i into the alk for loan
losses calculation.

FFELP Loans

FFELP Loans are substantially insured and guaranteed as to their principal and accrued interest in the event of
default. The key credit quality indicators are loan status and lean type.

FFELP Loan
Decembar 31, 2023 Decamber 31, 2032
Loa mwtwl ‘defarment!! $ = 1,557 = H 1.772
ns aca il K K
LLoans in forbearance™ 6,147 7.600
Loans in repayment and peccenage of sach status:
Loans current 26204 86.1% 29,004 BhA%
Loans delnquent 31-60 days™ 1,193 30 1.247 36
Loans delinquent 61-90 days™ 48 25 833 24
oans greater than 90 days'™ 2293 75 3,288 96
Tetal FFELP Loans in repayment 30,436 100% 34,372 100
Total FFELP Loans 38,140 43,747
FFELP Loan allowance fof losses (215) (222)
FFELP Loans, net 37,925 3 43.525
F of FFELPL e T9.8% THE%
Delnquencies as a percentage of FFELP Loars in
138t —t%
FFELP Loans in forbearance as a percentage of
loans in repayment and forbearance 16.8% 18.1%
" Lmhmwmﬂnmwmu gaging in other activibes and are not ired to make
payments on their loans, e.g., residency perots 9 d for bar a8 well 45 loans for
mmmmwmwhm reents such as miltary. nuoemm.m.-dllm
@ tmwmmmmmmﬂmmumwmmwrm hit neod addionsl time 1o
wha y coasod making hull paymants due ip of other Eaclons such & disastor rebol, -ﬁmcwn 19
relie! phograns, consilent with mwpolm
. Tha period of delinquency ks based on the mumber of days s e past duo
Loan type:
December 31, December 31,
{Dollars in millians) 2022 Change
Stafford Loans $ 12171 § 14,019 % (1,848)
Consolidation Loans 222712 25522 (3,250)
Rehab Loans 3,687 4,206 (508)
Total loans, gross $ 38140 § 43747 § (5,807}
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4. Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)
Private Education Loans
The lney cudn qualmf indicators are :redit scores (FICO scores), loan status, loan seasoning, certain loan
the of igner and school typeTheFlCOsoo-elsu:ehWonhebomworw—

borrower score and is updated at least every six months while school type is assessed at onigination. The other
Privale Education Loan key quality indicators are updated quarterly.

Private Loan Cradit Guality Indicators by Yoar
December 31, 2023
[Doliars in millens} 2023 il 2020 201 Prior Total % of Total
Credit Quality
FICO Scores:
640 and abave § B15 § 1575 § 3898 § 1240 § 162 § 732
1 67 122 I 1413
Total e e T e T E e
Lean Status:
In-schooligrace/
s LI ™% 87 5 2 8 7§ 458
Cuarent/o0 days o
less delnquent Ti4 1,554 3017 1,244 1.177 7,750
Graater than %0 days
1 9 16 4 343
Total § § 1642 § 4020 § 1260 5 1201 5 B8s1
& B At I
1-12 payments $ 781§ 130§ 28§ 7% 4 5 54
13-24 payments. - 1453 812 12 13 62
25-36 payments — = 3 142 % 13
3748 payments - - - 1,087 388 1m
More than 48
= — - - 750 7,963
Loans in-school
25 53 1 2 1
Total £ B2 1642 § _ap § 12 1211 8,551
Cetain Loan
Modified 5 - § 41 5 130 § 46 $ 82 5 5775 § 60M 35%
Non-Moddied 1,601 3,880 1,223 1129 11,445 65
Total H B2 518z § 4020 § 1280 1,211 8551 3 1710 100%
With casignor™ § 202 $ 79 % [0 ] 3 3 2 3 6208 & E712 3%
Without 624 1463 1246 1202 11,807
Tatal H [F] 1,642 4000 § 1269 § 1711 3 BSS) 3 17518 100%
School Type:
Not-for-peofit m s 1555 § 3 5 1213 § 1126 § 7225 § 158582 0%
For-profit 49 a7 234 56 85 1,32 1837 10
Total 2 BI6 = !& i 4,020 z 1260 i 1221 § B.551 i 17.519 100%
Allowance for loan
Iosses. i
Total logns, net § 18802
Charge-Offs ] 2 m_s {10)_§ 51_% 7_3 (269)_§  (204) 100%
m wunumnm for which payment ol
o the histirical defintion of & troubled dely g (TOR) pe of ASU Mo. 2022-02 on
J-u-;tm&hqhmu-nmwmmu.rmmmmwnmdwm&uﬂmmmm
dﬂw-ﬂm; This includes loans given than 3 months in the prior 24-month
period. This In any wary to 1 irod under ASL No. 2022:02,

™ Excuding Private Education Refinance Loans, which dio nol have  cosigner, the cosignar rate wis 85% for tolsd Ioans st December 31, 2023
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4, Allowance for Loan Losses |Continued)

o

Private Loan Qual by Year
December 31, 2022
02z 7021 070 2019 018 Prior Total % of Total
Credit Quality e i—— = —
Irvdicators.
FICO Scores:
640 and above § 172§ 4520 § 1515 § 14% § 520 § BAO7 § 17827 9%
Bulow 640 35 23 41 RE] 1,485
Tota T s §deu §iew §_mw T §oew Fiess __ioow
Loan Stafus:
§ 56 % I - 3§ 13§ 53 § 755 A%
Cutrant/90 days of
less 1,667 4,514 1.506 1428 533 B.681 18,358 o4
Greater than 50 days
9 ] 411 2
Total E lé §_isu i5s §_vaEr % é H u% F LY 100%
T
1-12 payments § 174§ BE0 § 10 $ 9 3 1 8 81 § 2877 4%
13-24 payments = 1699 147 a1 & tll 3978 20
25-36 payments - - 1,365 452 15 161 1,883 10
3748 paymaents = — = 95T 132 260 1349 T
More than 48
- - - - 388 8,790 9,178 a7
Loans in-schood
42 55 16 18 & 217 354 2
Total § 1756 5 4614 § 158 3 waer 3 548 3__B60¢ 3 19528 100%
Cartain Loan
Modifiod $ 18 AR ] M § 68 % 37 § 6447 § 6EEH N
1,7 4, 1,504 1,390 i} 31 12,857 66
Total 1 4614 T_isw T 1der 548 ﬁﬁ io0%
Wiith cosigner™ 5 122 8 106 $ 27 % 10 — 8 5184 $ 6449 3%
Without cosigner 1634 4,508 1,511 1,457 548 3418 13,076
Tatal 5 1756 § 4614 & 1538 5 1467 548 § 9602 S 19.525 100%
School Type:
Notfor-peafit § 1656 § 4347 § 1470 § 1366 § 503 § B0 § 17367 aat
101 267 101 45 1.576 158 1
Total § 176 §__aeu 5 ism §_Tas7 § 5648 5 __oooi 3 dass 100%
Alcwance for loan
Iossen (E0D)
Total loans, nel 3 18725
T Wumber of months in actve for which d payment ived
B Loan Modfcations represents. the histoncal definition of a TDR prior to the implementasion of ASU No. 2022-02 on January 1, 2023. Ay loan
that mesets the histoncal definition of a TOR retaing that fo the ke of the o that 2023).
This inchades Saans givan rato 1oem o greater than 3 months in e prior 24-month parod. This
classificaton is not mtended 1o reconcile in any wiry 10 the new disclosures required under ASU No. 202202

Excluging Privats Educaton ReSnanco Loans, which do nol have o cosignar, th cosignes rate was 65% for Lolsd loans at December 31, 2022
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4, Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

December 31, December 31,
S, . - U - . - S
(Dollars in millions) Balance ) Balance 3
Loans in-schoctigrace/deferment' H 360 H 354
LLoans in forbearance™ 383 401
Loans in repayment and percenlage of sach slatus:
Loans current 15,935 54.5% 17.838 95.0%
Loans delinquent 31.60 days™ 308 1.8 335 18
Leans delinquent 61-00 days™ 173 1.0 186 1.0
Loans delinquant greater than 50 days"! 380 23 a11 2.2
Tatal loans in repayment 16.796 100% 6170 100%
—_— —
Total loans. 17.519 18,525
Alowance for losses 610 _(800)
Loans, net $ 16902 $ 18735
Percentage of loans in repayment 95.9% 96.1%
Daumm a5 @ percenlage of loans in
5.1% 5.0%
——
Loans in sndnuamo asa mma
koans in repayment and forbearance 2.1% 21%

" an-fuuMn-mm-Mg-dm«nnmmmd sducational activitios and ace nok yet requind ko maks payments on their
Ioans, 8.9, intarnship pericds, as well a3 loans: for customers who have requesied and qualify for other permitied program defermants such as

vislous melilacy eligible defermants.
L mrummmwmdmwmmw y ition of who by
making fll paymaonts dus to hardship o other as dastes o] 15 refiel programs, mmmhmﬂm

T Tha pariod of delinguancy is based on the number of days scheduled poyments oo contractually past dise.
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4, Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

Loan Modifications to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty

‘We adjust the terms of Private Education Loans for certain borrowers when we believe such changes will help our
customers better manage their student loan obligations, achieve betler and | the coll bility of the
loans. These changes generally take the form of a lemporary interest rate reduction, a temps 01'
payments, a lemporary interest only payment, and a temporary interest rate ion with a
the loan term. The effect of modifications of loans made to b who are fi
already included in the allowance for credit losses b of the hvod
allowance. The model design predicts borrowers that will have financial difficulty in the future and require loan
madification and increased Iffe of loan default risk.

Under our current fort i temporary ip i of cannot exceed 12
months aver the life of the loan. However, exceplions can bs made in cases where borrowers have shown the ability
to make a substantial number of monthly principal and interest payments and in those cases borrowers can be
granted up to 24 months of hardship forbearance over the life of the loan, We offer other administrative forbearances
(e.g.. death and disability, bankruptcy, military service, and disaster forbearance) that are either required by law (such
as the Servicemembers Civil Ralief Act) or are considered separate from our active loss mitigation programs and
therefore are not considered o be loan modifications requiring disclosure under ASU No. 2022-02.

FFELP Loans are at least 97 percent guaranteed as to their principal and accrued interest by the federal government
in the event of default and, therefore, we do not deem FFELP Loans as nonperforming from a credit risk perspective
at any point in their life cycle prior to claim payment and continue to accrue interest on those loans throwgh the date
of claim. Further, FFELP loan modification events are aither legal entitiements subject to regulatory-driven eligibility
criteria or addressed in the promissory nole terms, so we do nol consider these events as a component of our loan
madification programs,

The following table shows the amortized cost basis as of December 31, 2023 of the loans 1o borrowers experiencing
financial difficulty that were modified in 2023,

Loan Modifications Made to Borrowers Experlencing Financial Difficulty
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Mare Than an Insignificant Combination Rate Reduction

(Dollars in milligns) Interest Rate Reductions™ Payment Delay and Term Extension
Amortized % of Loan Amortized % of Loan Amortized % of Loan
loanType ___ __ Cost _ __ Type  __ Cost  _ Type  __ Cost  __ Typs
Private Education
Loans 5 1,668 9.5% § 823 53% $ 138 B%

m As of Decomnber 31, 2023, there wies §1.2 bilion of loans in the inlefes! s neduchon progrem.
- Mere Than an Insignifican! Paymend Delay includes lnons granled mare fan 3 moniis of shedt-torm inlorest only payments of hardship
forbearancn

For those loans modified in 2023, the following table shows the impact of such modification,

Year Ended December 31, 2023

More Than an Rate d

Loan Type Interest Rate Reductions Payment Delay and Term Extension
Added an average 8 years to
the remaining life of the loans|

Reduced the weighted | Added an average 7 months| and reduced the weighted
| rate from| to the life of the | rate from|
Private Education Loans " 13.2% 10 5.3% loans 12.7% 10 5.2%.
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4, Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The following table provides the amount of loan ifications for which a defaull in the year ended
December 31, 2023 and receiving a loan modification since January 1, 2023, the effective date of adoption for ASU
No. 2022-02. We define payment default as 60 days or more past due for purposes of this disclosure. We closely
monitor performance of the loans to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty that are modified to understand the
effectiveness of the modification afforts.

[Dollars in millions)

Year Ended Decomber 31, 2023

Loan Type {Ameortized Cost) Payment Default (Par]
Privale ion Loans™ § mn 278

w Fnt.nwnr-adodl)-nnm:!t 2023, the modified loans. include $175 milkon of Intarest Rate Reduction, $14 milion of Combrnation Rate
Reducton snd Term Ext and $83 of Mare Than Insign

The g table the and related loan status as of December 31, 2023 of lpans thal were
maodified in 2023,
(Dollars in millions)
Loan Type:
Payment status
Private Education Loans Status (Amortized Cost)
Loans in SchoolDeferment $ 2
Loans in Forbearance 93
Loans current 2,199
Loans delinguent 31 - 60 days 160
Loans delinquent 61 - 90 days 96
Loans delinquent greater than 90 days 158
Total Modified Loans 3 2720

" Fof the year snded December 31, 2023, $15 milion of lans modified during the perod wate charged off.

Prior o our adoption of ASU No. 2022-02 on January 1, 2023, we awnumnd for a mdlﬁr.aum to the contractual
terms of a loan thal resulled in granting a loab ifficulties as a TOR
Certain Private Education Loans for which we have granted either a Wbaaranca of greater than three months, an
interest rate reduction or an extended repayment plan were classified as TDRs.

The following table provides the amount of loans modified in the period presented that resulled in a TDR. Additionally,
the table summarizes charge-offs occurring in the TOR portfolio, as well as TDRs for which a payment default
eccurred in the current period within 12 months of the loan first being designated as a TOR. We define payment
default as 60 days past due for this disclosure.

Years Ei Dece M

%I I milllons) 2022 2021
loans 5 5 149

Charge-olts 5 124
Payment default 5

s88
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5. Business Combinations, Goodwill and Acquired Intangible

Goodwill
The following table summarizes our goodwill for our ing units and rep g
As of Decornber 31,
{Doligrs in milions) 2023 0
Fderal Ex s0n Loans gmant
FFELP Loans L] 227 8 227
Federal Education Loan Servicing 5 5
Total 232 232
c Lending
Private Education Legacy In-School Loans 106 106
Private Educabion Refinance Loans ” T
Private Education Recent In-School Loans 13 13
Total 1% 196
Business Processing reportable segment:
Govemment Services 136 136
Hualthcare Servicos 106 106
Total 242 242
Tedal goodwill 5 670 § E70

Armnual Goodwill impairment Testing = Oclober 1, 2023

We perform our goodwill impairment testing annually in the fourth quarter as of Oclober 1. As part of the 2023 annual
impairment testing for each of our reporting units with goodwill, we relevant itative factors to
whether it is “more-likety-than-not” that the fair value of an individual reporting unit is bess than it's camrying value. We
considered the amount of excess fair value for our FFELP Loans, Federal Education Loan Servicing, Private
Education Legacy In-School Loans, Private Education Recent In-School Loans, and Private Education Refinance
Loans reporting unils over their cawms values as of October 1, 2022 when we last performed a quanlitative goodwill
i test by to esti the fair values of these reporting units since the
fair values of these rep 9 unlu were ially in excess of their carrying amounts, The curment outlook and
cash flows for the FFELP Loans, Federal Education Loan Servicing and Private Eds ion Legacy In-Scheol Loans
raportlnq units have not d!aﬂqed snwlﬁc-anﬂy since our 2022 aswssrrw The cash flows for these reporting units
! o decline as the tize. The
mamomnorvﬂc conditions, prlmarlly Lha high interest rate mh’wml In 2023, have not significantly impacted these
estimates. For the Private E Loans rep g unit, we d the e of the current
rifolio, which i o maintain high credit quality, lutu'eorlgnabon volume, umrch is expected o increase in
2024 given the expectation of a declining interest rate environment, and Navient's strong liquidity position with its
ability to issue Private Education Loan ABS comprised entirely of the reporiing unit's refinance loans. For the Privale
Education Recent In-School Loans reporting unit, we considerad the increase in brand awareness in 2023 of Eamest,
a whally owned subsidiary of Navient, through development and roliout of new programs and product offerings and
Navient's cunlnuad success utilizing its Going Merry platform to enable students to match to and apply for
lips, | ald and g grants. Strong h ination growth is exp in 2024 with
sustained growth expecied in the I'murs, No goodwill was deemed impaired for these reporting units as of October 1,
2023 after assessing these relevant qualitative factors. For the FFELP Loans reporting unit, due 1o the runoff nature
of the portfolic and the passage of time, our current projections of future cash flows would result in goodwill being
partially impaired in 2025. This is based on estimated cash flows and, as a result, this future impairment date may
change.

F-32




NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Business Combinations, Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets

As part of our annual i i testing ! with our Gi it ices and Hi reporting
units, we also considered the amount of excess fair value over the calrying values of Ihm raporting units as of
October 1, 2022 when we lasi p a goodwill impai test by engaging an independent

appraiser 1o estimate the fair values of these reporting units since the fair values of these reporting units were
substantially in excess of their carrying values. The outlook and long-term cash ﬂcm pmqamns for these reporting
units remain favorable and have not changed significantly since our 2022 q '

despite the expected wind down of significant contracts acquired in 20208n62021 to implement and administer
programs under the CARES act and perform contact tracing and vaccine administration services during the COVID-
19 pandemic. In 2023 there was a $9 million aggregate decrease in revenue from 2022, as expected and forecasted
for the Business Processing reporting units. Tlds aecuna was lm result of an $83 million aggregate reduction in
revenue from the wind-down of the p this reduction was largely offset by a $74
rnilIlOn aggregate Inuwse in revenue from services for our traditional clients. The cash flows from traditional service
to and in some instances exceeding pre-pandemic levels despite
Irmaﬁnnary prossum in cartain sectors. These reporting units also new in 2023, which are
expected lo yield significant benefit in future periods. No goodwill was deemed impaired for these reporting units after
assessing these relevant qualitative factors.

For each of our reporting units, we also i d the current regul and legislati i , the current
our 2023 gs, 2024 d market ions regarding our siock price,
and our market capitalization in relation to book eqully and concluded that no uood\\nll associated with our reporting
units was impai gh our market ion was less than our book equity at October 1 and December 31,
2023, we have conclisded that our markel capitalization in relation to our book equity does nol indicate impairment of
our reporting units’ respective goodwill at October 1 and December 31, 2023. Our market capitalization is not
indicative of the value of our reporting units with goedwill on a standalone basis. Additienally, the implied control
premium at October 1 and Dy 31,2023isa control ium above the then current stock price.

I the regul h such that it negatively impacts our reporting units or future economic

conditions are slylmm'ywse than what was assumed as a part of our annual impairment testing for each of cur
reporting units, goodwll to our g units could be impaired in future periods.

Acquired Intangible Assets
Acquired intangible assets include the following:

As of Decomber 31, 2023

Accumulated Accumulated
Cost Impairment and Cost Impairment and

{Dollars in milligns) Basis Amaortization™™ Net Basis™ _ Amortization™™ Net
Cuslomer, services and lending

relationships! " $ 218 § (212) $ 6§ 218§ (207) 8 M
Software and technology 119 (110) 9 119 (108) 1"
Trade names and 40 30] 10 40 27) 13
Total acquired i ible assels  § 377 § (352) 3 25 § 377 § (342) 535
M in 2022 wo impaired & customer relationship asset in the Business g gmant for $6 millon as & result of axing a line of

business.

- and units only i the #5541 has besn

mpained mnanmdmnﬂhmﬁummmmmw«mmmmmwnymm
amorzation related 1o the asset is witten off
o, mmmm«ofm.-wmw-mndmm-msumwmmnma.mzwaw respactivoly, Wae will
confinue 1o amonize our intangile ass Ives cwer We estimate
Wm«mmmwmuwusnm Smll-m. 55 milkon, §3 mdlion and §1 mdlion in 2004, 2025, 2006, 2087
and afer 2027, respectively.
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6. Borrowings

Borrowings consist of secured borrowings issued through our sect prog; b ings through secured
facilities, unsecured notes issued by us, and other interest-bearing liabilities related primarily to obligati to return
cash collateral heid.

The following table summarizes our borrowings.

Docember 31, 2023 Decomber 31, 3022
Weighied Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aversge Average
Short Interest Long Interest Short Inlerest Long Interest

[Dollary inmilions) __ _Term _Rate™  _ Tem  _Rate®™ ~ Tobsl = TYerm _ Rate™ _Tewn  _FRate™ _Tousl
Unsecurd bomowings:

Serior unsocred

dut”! § 506 588% § 5351 BE1% § 5857 5130 590% § 8711 SE2% § 701
Total unsecured

506 588 5381 B8 SEST 1M 530 &711 LT B 11
snu-elr_w
50 LLh 35626 Boe 35885 % 801 42875 4me  azTst

Private Education

Loan

Securitizations™ 435 au 11,754 s 1218 -] rar 12,744 an 13469
FFELP Loan ABCP:

[ 1854 560 s &2 s e 53 386 831 130
Provate EQa00n

Loan ABCE

) 1286 s62 #21 B84 2W7  2TM 555 - —
e — e N A 18 31 46t = =
borrwings 178 676 48379 647 52088 45T 574 _ 55806 454 @038
Tokal betorn hadge

adgniments”! A 7915 570 B1516 486 67390
Hedge accounting 3
- :_&‘ﬁ ﬁﬁ'ﬁ v o o e o -
" Inchudes principal amount of $506 milkon and 51.3 billion of shod-benm debt 31, 2023 and 2032, Includes principal
.m.-nnus4mmwrmawmdm-umai.nnmm.m

o

-

559 million and $76 milion of short: term debl and $122 and $0 milion of long-term debl FFELP Loan ABS

mrwmnmmwurmmumwu 2023 and 2022,
Inchides $1 8 bilon and $1,8 billon of non-Ul 5. doliae-denominaied debt a5 of Decarmber 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, which has been
thedged with swaps conerting to U.S. dollars,
Mﬁmrrﬂvwwummﬂumpﬂwmdsumuﬂmn 2023 an & rosu of rot

their rspective Halbices were debvased ko the nsice, rating agencies and bondholders terting them i
heas maturity dite defaults. Al ths time, it is exp the bonds vl be p 2031 and 2037. Thers is o impact 1o the principsl
amount cwed or the coupon st which the bonds accrue, L date.
mnsummsmmumwmuhﬁmmmmrmhﬂuimm

2022, respectively

e 31, 2023 ana
Mmmmmnmmmnm refated o dervative exposure.
Includes 538 7 bilion and $44.5 bilion of lang-term foating rate dabt as of Decomber 31, 2023 and 2022, respactvely, and §15.5 bilion and
§16.5 bilion of long-torm fied rale debt as of Docembor 31, 2023 and 2022, respactoely.
Weighted average intorest ratn is as of and of period.
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6. Borrowings (Continued)

As of D ber 31, 2023, the exp d ies of our long-term borrowings are shown in the following table.
E. Maturity
scﬂior
nsecured Secured
(Dollars in millions) Dobl Borrowings' Total™
Year of Maturity
2024 5 — 5 4,528 § 4,528
2025 552 5,368 5,920
2026 523 4,115 4,638
2027 684 3974 4,668
2028 513 3,867 4,380
2029-2048 3,069 26,477 29,548
Total before hedge accounting adjustments 5,351 48,328
Hedge accounting adjustments (157) {121) {2?&}
Total $__ 5194 5 48208 § 402

Ve view our secusitization trast debt as long-term basad oe the contraciual matury dates. Homever, we have projeciad the
axpected pincpal paydowns bated on ouf current estimates spoeds for
meummnmm“mmmnummmm The projected prncipal paydoars in year 2024
include $4.5 bilion related fo the securitization st debt

- The aggregate prncipal amourt of debt hat matiees in ench period is $4.5 billon in 2024, $6.0 billon in 2025, $4.7 bllion in

2026. 54.7 billion in 2027, 54.4 billion in 2028 and $29.8 billom in 2020 to 2048

Variable Interest Entities
We the follawing fi ing VIEs as of D 31, 2023 and 2022, as we are the primary beneficiary.
Az a resull, these VIEs are d for as secured b ings.
December 31, 2023
Carrying Amount of Assats Securing
Debt Outstanding Debt
Short Long Other

{Dollars in millions) Torm Torm Total Loans Cash _ Assets, Net _ Total
Secured — VIEs:
FFELP Loan securitizations $ 59 5 35626 5 35685 § 35935 § 1441 5 1673 5 39,040
Privale Education Loan

securitizations. 435 1,754 12,188 13,396 350 112 13,865
FFELP Loan ABCP faciliies 1,854 89 1,843 1,897 7 az 2,066

Educaton Loan ABCP

facilities 1.286 821 2,107 2,363 ] 50 2482
Total before hedge accounting

adjustments. 3634 48,280 518924 5350 1,937 1934 57462
Hedge a (121) [E7) — (190} (190)
Total $ 3634 5 48,169 5 51803 § 53591 53591 $ 1937 § 1744 § 57272

Cmyhg Aluumal Assots Securing
Debt W*ﬂ
Shert Long

[Dollars in millions) Term Term Total Loans Cash Alu_u‘ Mt Total

FFELP Loan securitizalions ’ $ 76 5 42875 § 42751 S 42148 $ 2705 § 1544 § 46397

Private Education Loan

securitizations 725 12,744 13469 14,168 367 105 14.640
FFELP Loan ABCP faciliies 923 386 1.309 1,317 39 A4 1.400
Private Education Loan ABCP

facilities 2,734 — 2,734 3,038 122 (81) 3,080
Total before hedge accounting

adjustments 4,458 55,805 60,263 60,672 3233 1612 65,517
Hedge accounting adjustments o (207) (207) — — (256) (256)
Total $ 4458 $ 55598 § 60056 $ 60672 $ 3233 $ 1356 $ 65261

- = =
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6. Borrowings (Continued)

e d Facilities and U d Debt
FFELP Loan ABCP Facilities

We have various ABCP borrowing facilities that we use lo finance our FFELP Loans. Liquidity is ava.lal:le under
these secured credit facilities to the extent we have eligible coll and capacdv The 1+
capacity under these faciliies will vary and is subject to each agr I's These include but

are nat limited to the facility's size, current usage and the availability and fair value of qualifying unencumbered
FFELP Loan coliateral. Our borrowings under these facilities are non-recourse. The malturity dates on these facilties
range from November 2024 to April 2025. The interest rate on certain facilities can increase under certain
circumstances. The facilities are subject to termination under certain circumstances. As of December 31, 2023, there
was approvi ly $1.9 billion ing under these facilities, with approximately $2.1 billion of assals securing
these facilities. As of December 31, 2023, the maximum unused capacily under these facilities was $408 million and
we had $92 million of unencumbered FFELP Loans.

FFELP Loan Repurchase Facllities

We have FFELP Loan Repurchase Facilities that 1) provide liquidity for the isition of certain Navient
auction rate securities, where borrowings under the facility are secured by the auction rate securites; and 2) are
collateralized by the nel assels in previously issued FFELP Loan ABS trusts. The lenders also have unsecured

to Navienl Corp ion as. for any shorrfall in arnounts payable. Because these facilities are
secured by Navienl-sponsored i s issued in we show the debl as part of FFELP
Loan securitizations in the various borrowing tables above. As of December 31, 2023, there was approximately $181
million outstanding under these facilities.

Private Education Loan ABCF Facilities

‘We have various ABCP borrowing facilities thal we use lo finance our Privale Education Loans. Liquidity is available
under these secured credit facilities lo the extent we have eligible collateral and available capacity. The maximum
capacity under these facilities will vary and is subject to each agreement’s borrowing conditions. These
include but are not limited to the facility's size, current usage and the availability and fair value of qualifying
Private Loan coliateral. Qur borrowings under these facilities are non-recourse. The
maturity dates on these facilities range from June 2024 to June 2025. The interest rate on certain facilities can
increase under cerain circumstances. The faciliies are subject to termination under certain circumstances, As of

December 31, 2023, there was i y $2.1 bilion o ding under these facilithes, with approximataly $2.5
billion of assets securing these facilities. As of December 31, 2023, the maximum unused capacily under these
facilities was $1.7 billion and we had $1.1 billion of bered Private Education Loans,

Private Education Loan Repurchase Facilities

These h facilities are coll lized by the nel assels in previously issued Privale Education Loan ABS
trusts. Tha lenders also have unsecured recourse to Navient Corpotamn as Guaramof for any shortfall in amounts
payable. Because these fal:i‘lmes are secmed by the Residual Ints in p ions. we show the debt
as part of Private Es Loan in the various ing tables above. As of December 31, 2023,
there was imately 50.4 billion ding under these facilities.

Senior Unsecured Debt

We issued $1.0 billion, 50 and $1.3 billion of unsecured debt in 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Debt Repurchases

The following table summarizes activity related to our senior unsecured debt repurchases.

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Debt principal repurchased § 850 § —§ zs7
Losses on debt repurchases $ 8) % - 3 73
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7. Derivative Fil I

Risk Management Strategy

We maintain an overall interes! rate risk management siralegy that incorporates the use of derivative instruments lo
minimize |he economic effect ol interest rale changes. Our goal is 1o manage interest rate sensitivity by modifying the
q y and i index of cortain balance sheot assets and labiliies so the net
mbemt margin is nol. on a material basis, y affected by in interest rates. We do not use
derivative instruments to hedge credit risk. As a result of interest rate fluctuations, hedged assets and liabilities. will
appreciate or depreciate In market value. Income or loss on Ine azrhrallm |nmmarm that are linked 1o the hedged

assels and Habilites will generally offset the effect of this o dep ion for the period the
item is being hedged. We view this strategy as a prudent 9¢ of interest rate it In addition, we
utilize derivative contracts to minimize the iic impact of changes in foreign exchange rates on certain
debt cbligations that are in foreign ies. As foreign h rates fi these
liabilities will iate and depreciate in value, These fluctuations, mlheex!nnllha hedge relationship is effactive,
are offset by cnangcs in the valus of the cross-currency interest rale swaps executed to hedge these instruments.
cartain di iy ions entered into as hodges pnrnurlry Floor Income leraas. basis
Ewapn and, at times, certain other interest rate swaps, are . those 'do not

qualify for hedge accounting under GAAP and thus may adversely impact aaminga

Although we use derivatives to minimize the risk of inleres! rate and foreign currency changes, the use of derivatives
does expose us 1o both market and credit risk. Market risk is the chance of financial loss resulting from changes in
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and market liquidity. Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not perform its
cbligations under a contract and it is limited to the loss of the fair value gain in a derivative that the counterparty owes
us. When the fair value of a derivative oonuacl is negative, we owe the counterparty and, therefore, have no credit

risk exposure to the counterparty; ty has lous. ‘We minimize the credit risk in
derivative instruments by entering into nansacﬂnns with highty rated that a i by our
Credit Dep ‘We also a policy of g that all derivative contracts be govomod by an International
Swaps and Derivative A iation Master A 1. De ing on the nature of the derivative transaction, bilateral
collateral amangements related to Navient Comorallon wnlracls wneraﬂy are required as well. When we have more
than one with the y. and there exists legally enforceable netting
provisions with the counterparty (Le. a legal right to offset ivab and payable the “net” mark
to market exp less the party has posted to us, rep p with the ty.
‘When there is a net negati we ider our to the fto be zero, At December 31,

2023 and 2022, we have a neimhveemme{demah;gwnposmmswuslmmmmmbwn
posied by counlerparties to us) relaled to Navient Corporation derivatives of $8 million and $11 million, respectively,

Our on-balance sheet securitization trusts have $1.6 billion of Euro d bonds ing as of D b
31, 2023. To convert these non-US dollar denominated bonds into US dollar liabilities, the trusts have entered into
foreign-currency swaps with highly-rated counterparties. In addition, the trusts have entered into $298 million
notional of interest rate swaps which are primarily used to convert Prime received on securitized education loans to
SOFR paid on the bonds. Cur securitization trusts with swaps have ISDA documenlation with protections against

risk. The iin the ISDA ion of our securitization trusts
require coflateral based on the fair value cnhe derivative which may be adjusted for additional collateral based on
rating agency criteria i d within the The trusts are not required to post

collateral to the counterparties. At December 31, 2023 and 2022, me net go!iwe EXpOsuUre on Swaps in
securilization inusts was $0 and $0 million, re: .
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F (Continued)

y of F Impact

net income and other com)

The following tables summarize the fair values and notional amounts of all derivative instruments and their impact on
prehensive income.

Impact of Darivatives on Balance Sheat

Cash Flow Fair Value'™ Trading Totad
Dec.

- 1, Ll 31 3. EX) 3 Y 3
{Daltars in milkons) Exposurs 023 2022 2023 2023 022 2023 2022
Fair Values'

Derivitive Assots.
Intarest rite swaps Irterest rabe 5 $§ — & 55 % B § — % 18 585 % &8
Cross-currency interest rate Foreign cutrency and
rate - - - - - = - -

Total derivatve assots™ - - 56 - i 58 56
Interest rate swaps. Interest rate — - - i2) in £} in i)
Floor Incoma Contracts. Interest rate - — — — - —_ - —
Cross-currency Interest rate  Forelgn curmency and

wabras rate e i L el e e e e P
Tatal dervatve liabilites = — — 185) 55) 1) 3 190) )]
irrirbeishe = = i $ee S S0 e fbw
m Fair values e, 2 wwmmmmmmmmmwm

‘considoration of master naing agroomonts. by counterparty under mastor
neting agreements and classified mnu‘um«mmmm on whather in @ nel postive of negative positon.
The following tabla reconciles (ross positions without e impact of master neting agreements 1o the balance sheet classificabon:

Other Assets Other Liabilities
n, n, un, n
{Dollar in mitliony) ;_m?_ i ;_m_ﬁ P I
Gross position 55 § 56 (1900 § {258)
Impact of master netting agresments -_ —_ P g
Derpvative vakses wilh impact of master neting
agresmants (a5 carmied on balance sheet) 55 56 (190} (258)
Cash coliatoral (hedd) pledged (50 189} 46 £2
Met position 5 {5) § 241 § {144) § 1136}
The toliowing table shows the camying value of kablities in far value hedges and the related fas value hedging sdjustments to these kabilties:
As of Decomber 31, 2023 uamn am
Carrying  Hedge Basis
iRollac in milliens) Value ustments F__
Short-lerm botrowings 5 430 @) 3 11!0 (m}
Long-term bomowings: $ 5341 § (281) § 6,188 §
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7. Fi Tal (Continued)

Thaabwa fair values include when for cot credit risk for bom“henwsmsxposed
net of i and when th to us, net of

The net ad]ustmoms decreased the asset Poamon at Deoember n, 2023 and December 31, 2022 by $5 million and

$6 million, respectively. In addition, the above fair values reflect adjustmenits for lliquid derivalives as indicated by a

wide bid/ask spread in the interest rate indices to which the de d;ustmms decreased

1 rivatives are indexed. Thess
the overail net asset position at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022b3r$1mullmmd$
res|

Cash Flow Fair Valus Trading Total
Dec.31, Dec.31, Dec.31, Dec.3), Dec.31, Dec.31, Dec.31, Dec. 31
[Dollars in billions) 2023 2022 2023 22 2023 2022
Notional Values:
Interest rate swaps $§ 22 %8 83 § 46 § 62 § 19 § 174 § &7 5 M
Floor Income: — — - — — _ .
Cross-curnency interes! rale swaps — — 1.6 1.8 — — K] 1.8
Tetal dervalives i 2.2 z 8.3 i 6.2 i 8.0 i 18 i 234 10.3 ! 38.7
Mark-to-Marke! Impact of Derivatives on Statements of Income
Total Gains (Losses)
Yoars Ended Decomber 31
{Dollars in milllons) 2023 2022 2021
Fair Value Hedges:
Interest Rate Swaps
Gains (losses) in net s 104§ 610) § (310)
Gains (losses) recognized in net income on hedged
items {128) 660 348
Net fair value hedge ineffectiveness gains (losses) (24) 50 ]
Cross currency imerest rate swaps
Gains (losses) in net in 84 (83) 104
Gains (losses) recognized in nel income on hedged
fems (s6) % (55)
Net fair value hedge ineffectiveness gains (losses) (22) 33 48
Total fair value hedges' " (46} 8 BR
Cash Flow Hedges:
Total cash flow hedges™ -_— -_ -
Trading:
Intmrest rate swaps 11 130 30
Floor income contracts - Eal 34
Total trading derivatives™ " m 2]
Mask-to-market gains (losses) recognized 5 35) § 254 5 152
n mwunmuwwmnmcwmmorm
w income vahss hedges and cash flow hedges s recarded in inerest axpense and s exchudad fom this
tabie,

Riscorded in “gains flcsses) an derivative and hedging activities, net’ in the consciidated statements of incoma,
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7. Ei 1ot (Continued)
Impact of Dy fves on Other Comprehensive Income (Equily)
Years Ended December 31,
(Doblars in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Total gains (losses) on cash flow hedges s 16 5 104§ 55
i i ] for " tq&'nanosm
included in net income (interest expense )™ {84) 26 -1}
Met changes in cash flow hedges, net of tax 3 (68) 220 § 141
™~ Inciudies nat setSamant incoma’axpense
Collateral
The following table details collateral held and pledged related to derp us and our

counterparties,

Doliars In millions)

Collateral held:

Cash (cbligation to retumn cash collateral is recorded in short-lermn borrowings)

S al fair valy {not recorded in financial
stalements)”!

Securilies al falr value — on-balance sheet securilization derivatives (nal
recorded in financial statements)™

Tedal collateral held

Desivative asset at fair value including accrued interest

Collateral pledged to others:

Cash (right to receive retum of cash collateral is recorded In investments)

Total collateral pledged

Derivative liability at fair value inchuding accrued interest and premium
recaivable

n The Gompany has the abdity to sel of re-pledge securiies i holds as coliateral

m The trusts da not have the abiity to sei of re-pledge securities they hold as collateral
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8. Other Assets

The following table provides the detail of our other assets.

{Dollars in millions) 202

Accruad inlerast recelvable 5 2,081 § 2,031
Benefit and insurance-related investments 460 452
Income tax asset, net 122 132
Derivatives at fair value 55 56
Accounts receivable 101 83
Fixed assets 62 74
Other 33 38
Total ] 2,914 § 2,866

9. Stockholders' Equity

Common Stock

Our sh iders have authorized the | of 1,125 billion shares of common stock. The par value of Navient
common stock is $0.01 per share. At December 31, 2023, 114 million shares were issued and outstanding and 16
million shares were unnssued but encumbered for outstanding stock opHr,ms IEalnc!Ed slock unils, perfolmame slock
units and dividend equivalent units for and slock-based

compensation plans,

Dividend and Share Repurchase Program

The following table izes our share repurchases, issuances and dividends paid.
Years Ended December 31

{Doilars and shares in J'nlllmll except per share amounts) 2022
Common stock repurchased'’” 18.0 248 344
Common stock repurchased (in dollars)" 5 310 § 400 § 00
Average purchase price per share!! 5 1721 § 1613 § 17.46
R ining stock authority ™" 5 200 § 600 § 1,000
Shares repurchased related o employee stock-

jon plans! 13 12 30
Average purchase price per share'™! s 16844 § 1784 § 13.65
Common shares issusd™ 26 25 49
Dividends paid 5 78 & 91 5§ 107
Dividends per share $ B4 5 B4 5 B4
M Common shares putchased under our share repurchase program. Cur Boand of Directors suthorized @ $1 bilkon mulli-year share

fepuichase pogram i December 2021
a Wmlﬂasmmmwumnmmﬂmnﬂm ' ax g il nd
shares tendered by employess 10 Salisfy opion exercee Costs.

P Comimon shar our P and baneft phans.

The closing price of our common stock on December 29, 2023 was $18.62,
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10. Eamnings (Loss) per Common Share

Basic eamings (loss) per common share (EPS) are calwlalad usmg the weighted awarage number of shares of
common stock outstanding during each period. A of the basic and
diluted EPS calculations on a GAAP basis follows.

Years Ended Decamber 31,
{In millions, except per share data) 2023 2022 2021
Numerator:
Net income 5 228 § 645 § 717
Denominator:
Weighted average shares used to compute basic EPS 122 142 170
Effect of dilutive securilies:
Dilutive eflect of slock options, restricted stock,
restricted stock units, parformance stock units,
and Employes Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP)" 1 2 2
Dilutive potential common shares 1 2 2
Weighted average shares used lo compute
diluted EPS lE 144 1"}3
Basle earnings per common share 3 187 § 454 S 423
Diluted earnings per common share $ 185 § 448 § 4.18
mumwmmww:wwumam g of options, restrictod stock,
stack urits and the o issum shares nder applicabis ESPPs. dotamined by the

mmmm
w FFor the years endod Docember 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, there were 0 milion shares outstanding but not inchuded in the competation of diuled
‘armings per share because they wene ard-diutive,
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11. Fair Value Measurements

‘We use estimales of fair value in apply!ng \ramua i tandards in our [ ial

our fair value est based on a h r iated with three levels of price lranspumnr.y ulilized
in measuring financial instruments at fair value. The fair value of the items di below are

in this foctnote.

During 2023, there were no i of financial i by levels, or ges in our

methodolegy used lo value our financial instruments,

Education Loans

Our FFELF Loans and Private Education Loans are accounted for at cost or at the lower of cost or market if the loan
is held-for-sale. Fair values are determined by modeling loan cash fiows using stated terms of the assets using
mastly i y P that are validated against marke! transactions when available.

FFELP Loans

The significant assumptions used to determine falr value of our FFELP Loans are prepayment speeds, default rates,
cost of funds, discount rate, capital levels and expected Repayment Borrower Benefits to be eamed. In addition, the
Floor Income component of our FFELP Loan portfolio is valued with oplion models using both observable market
inputs and internally daveloped inputs. A number of significant inputs into the models are intarnally denved and not
observable in aclive markels. While the resulting fair value can be validated against market transactions where we
are a participant, these markets are not considered active. As such, these are level 3 valuations.

Private Education Loans

The e used to d ine fair value of our Private E: ion Loans are p spoeds,
default rates, recovery rates, cost of funds, discount rate and capital levels. A number o{ﬁwﬁunl inputs into the
models are internally derived and not observable in active markets. While the resulting fair value can be validated

against markel transactions where we are a participant, these markels are not considered active. As such, these are
lavel 3 valuations,

Cash and (Including d Cash")

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. Carrying value approximates fair value. The fair value of investments
in commarcial paper, ABCP, or damand deposits that have a remaining term of less than 90 days when purchased
are eslimated lo equal their cos! and, when needed, adjusiments for liquidily and credit spreads are made depending
Oﬂ market conditions and counlafpafty credit nsks. No additional adjustments were deemed necessary, These

are level 2 val

Borrowings

s ane accounted for at cost in the financial statements except when denominated in a foreign currency or
when designated as the hedged item in a fair value hedge relationship. When the hedged risk is the benchmark
interest rate (which for us is SOFR) and not full fair ualue. the cost basis is adjusled for changes in value due to
benchmark interest rates only. Foreign currency ings are re- at current spot rates in
the financial statements. Fair value was determined through standard bond pricing models and option models (when
applicable) using the stated terms of the borrowings, observable yield curves, foreign currency exchange rates,
volatilities from active markets or from quotes from broker-dealers. Fair value adjustments for unsecured corporate
debt are made based on indicative quoles from observable Irades and spreads on credit default swaps spedific o the
Company. Fair value adj for secured borfowings are based on Indicative quotes from broker-dealers. These
adjustmants for both secured and unsecured bomowings are material to the overall valuation of these ilems and,
currently, are based on inputs from inactive markets. As such, these are level 3 valuations,
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11. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Al deﬂvauues are accounted for at fair value in the ﬁnanual stalements. The fair value of a majority of derivative
pricing and option models using the stated terms of the
contracts and observable market inputs and are therefore classified as level 2 fair values. In some cases, we uliized
internally developed inputs that are not observable in the market, and as such, classified these instruments as level 3
fair values. Complex structured derivatives or derivatives that trade in less liquid markets require significant estimates
and judgrent in determining fair value that cannot be corroborated with market transactions.

‘When determining the fair value of derivatives, we take Imo account rty credit risk for positions where there
is exposure fo the counterparty on a net basis by net of IleldSoe'Noh?—Demaﬁva
Financial Instruments™ fcrﬁrﬂm discussion on mlhoddow The net credit risk adjustment (adjustments for our

o cou net of ady for the ies’ exposure to us) decreased the valuations. at
December 31, 2023 by §5 mlﬂlon

Inputs specific 1o each class of derivatives disclosed in the table below are as follows:

s Interest rate swaps — Fair value is ined using ivative cash flow models. Derivalives that
swap fixed interest payments and SOFR interest payments are valued using the SOFR swap yield curve
which is an observable Inpul from an active markel. These derivatives are level 2 fair value estimates in the

i Ofther deri g SOFR interest payments for another variable interest payment
(primarily Prime) are valued usinu the SOFR swap yield curve and observable market spreads for the
spacified index. The markets for these swaps are genarally iliquid as indicated by a wide bid/ask spread.
The adjustment made for liquidity decreased the valuations by $1 million at December 31, 2023, These
derivatives are level 3 fair value estimates.

* Cross-currency interest mla swaps — Fair value is determined using standard derivative cash flow models.
Derivatives hedging foreigr bonds are valued using the SOFR swap yield curve (for both USD
and the foreig ¥ ency basis spreads and forward foreign currency
exchange rates. These inputs are obaelvable inputs from active markets. In addition, these amortizing
notional derivatives (derivatives whose notional ameounts change based on changes in the balance of, or
pool of, assets or debt) hedging trust debt use ntemnally derived assumptions for the trust assets’
pmpmnt speeds and default rates to model the notional amortization. Management makes assumptions

lon featlures of derivatives hedging ral 1 notes denominated in a foreign
currency. These inputs are not market observable; therefore, these derivatives are level 3 fair value
estimates.

Floor Income Contracts — Derivatives are valued using an option pricing model. Inputs to the model include
the SOFR swap yield curve and SOFR interest rate volatiliies. The inputs are observable inputs in active
markets and these derivatives are level 2 fair value estimates.

The carrying value of borrowings designated as the hedged mam in a fair value hedge qs ad.usl.ed flor changes in fair

value due to benchmark interes! rales and foreig rates. These are daetermined
through standard bond pricing models and option models (vnlan appllcabls} using the stated terms of the borrowings,
and cbservable yield curves, foreign y ge rates and
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The followi i duation of cur fi ial instruments that are marked-to-market on a recurring
basis. During 2023 and 2022, Ihefe were no significant ransfers of financial instruments between levels.

Fair Value Measurements on a Basis
31, 2023 Decomber 31, 2022

{Dollars in millions) Lovol1 Lovel2 Loveld Total Levol1 Loweiz Loveld Total
Assols
Durivative instruments:"!
Interest rale swaps - 55 —_ 55 - 55 1 56
Cross-currency interest rate swaps e e —aa——— e e S
Total derivafive assets™ Tt e e B e L e B M v e
Jeil I S S S T S— -
Liabilities™
Desivative instruments'"
Interes! rale swaps $§ =5 =35 MS$ M3 =5 @3 N5 6
Floor Income Contracts - —_ -_ -_— —_— -_ -_— —

inorest rate swaps - - (189) 188] - ___— __(253) _ (253)
Tatal derivative Babiliies™ - - (180} (180} — ] (256) {258)
Total I S 1T/ 1 S N 0 O W )

Fair value of dorivative instrumants nxchudes. accrued interest and the value of collataral
el ‘Sae “Note T — Desivatse Financasl " for of gross iy empaact of master

o tha
balance sheet classfcaton
o which are the hedg In & fair value hedge and which are sdjusted for changes in valus due 1o berchmark interest

rates only ane not carmied at full fair vakue and not reflectod in this table.
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The following tables summarize the change in balance sheet carrying value associaled with level 3 financial

instruments carried at fair value on a recurring basis.
Year Ended December 31, 2023

Derivative Instruments.

Cross
Currency Total
Interest Interest Derivative
{Botlars In mililons) gﬁ Swaps F’M Ofther Pm
Balance, beginning of period 12} 253 § = (255)
Totnl gaina/{losses
Inchuded in eamings!"! 1 " - 18
Inchuded in other comprehensive incoma — — — —
Setsements ar A7
Transfars in andior out of loved 3 == = =
Balance, end of period H 1§ (189) § =% {1%a)
Chango o mak-lo-market gainsi{losses) relating Lo instrumants:
still held a1 the reporting date™ 5 18 64 5 — 65
Cr— — —
Year Ended December 31, 2022
Deprivative Instruments.
Cross
Currency Total
Intevest nterest Derbeative

{Dollars in millions) Bate Swaps —Other  Instryments.
Balance, beainning of period 5 s (19a) - § == (194)
Total gains/lossos |
Inchuded in samings™ {105} (104}

1 -
Inclusded in olher comprohenaive income - _— -
1 -_—
Transters in andior out of level 3 =

Balance, end of period F— s — —

Ch h ricat relating to

instruments still held at the repoting date™™ $ 15 (63) § = 3

Year Ended December 31, 2021
Degrivative Instruments
Cross

Currency Total
Intarost Interest

Derivative
:Mu-h\nmg Rate Swaps Rate Swaps __ Other Instruments
beginning of period 8} o) ¥ ] 302)

Totad gainsi{losses)
Inchuded in eamings!™ 3 8 - a4
Incheded in olher comprohensive income = = = =
Selemants 1 Fal - 4
Transfers in andior out of lovel 3 T o (P T
Balance. end of pericd 5 M) 8 (190} § e (194}
08 fk-to-market g I I
nstruments st held at the reporting date™ 5 3 5 (157) 5 - 5 L154)
T included in samings” is comprised of the following [ cified line e in the
Incomea:
‘wars Ende. 1)
[Dolfars in mifllons) Fird 2021
Gains (losses) on derivative and hedging activies. net 3 1% 1§ 3
Interest exponse 17 (105} 81
Total 3 18 3 {104} 3 5

Lol Recorded in "gains (losses) on derivative and hedging activiies, net” in the cortolidated statements of income.
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11. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The fi table the fis inputs that are unobservable or from inactive markets used in the
recurring valuations of the level 3 financial instruments detailed above.

Fair Value at Range and
December 31, Valuation Welghted
{Dellars in milliens) 2023 Technique Input Average
Derivatives
Prime basis swaps Discounted cash Constant Prepayment
H (1 fiow Rata 10%
Bid/ask adjustment to
discount rate 0.08%
Cross-currency interest rate Discounted cash Constant Prepayment
swaps {189) flow Rate 5%
Other -
Total s (190)

The significant inputs that are unobservable or from inactive markets related to our level 3 derivatives detailed in the
table above would be expected 1o have the following impacts to the valuations:

» Prime basis swaps — These swaps do not actively trade in the markels as indicated by a wide bid/ask
spread. A wider bid/ask spread will resull in a decrease in the overall valuation. In addition, the
unobservable inputs include Constant Prepayment Rates of the underlying securitization trust the swap
references. A decrease in this input will result in a longer weighted average life of the swap which will
lincrease the value for swaps in a gain position and decrease the value for swaps in a loss position,
everything else equal. The opposite is true for an increase in the input.

»  Cross-currency interest rale swaps — The unobservable inputs used in these valuations are Constant
Prepayment Rates of the underlying securitization trust the swap references. A decrease in this input will
result in a longer weighted average life of the swap. All efse equal in a typical currency markel, this will result
iin a decrease to the valuation due to the delay in the cash flows of the currency exchanges as well as
diminished liquidity in the forward exchange markets as you increase the term, The opposite is true for an
lIncrease in the input.

The following table summarizes the fair values of our fi ial assets and liabilities, including dervative financial
instruments.
31, 2023 M
Carrying Carrying

[Dollars in millions) Fair Value Value _Difference _Fair Value
Earning assets
FFELP Loans $§ 36590 § 37925 § (1.335) § 414258 § 43525 § {2.099)
Private Education Loans. 16.287 16,902 (615} 17.880 18,725 (B45)
Cash and invesimants 2,939 2,939 - 48974 4.974 =
Total eaming assels 55.816 57,766 {1.850) 64,280 67.224 (2.844)
Interest-bearing labilities
Shart-tarm bomowings 4,237 4,226 (1) 5879 870

51,566 53,402 1.836 57,652 61,006 3,374
Tolal intorest-beanng habddios 55803 57,628 1,825 63,531 56,896 3,365
Durivative financial instruments
Floor Income: — — — — —_ —
Interest rite Swaps 54 54 —_— 51
Cross-currency interest rale swaps {18%) (188) - (253)
Otthar — — = o
Excess of net asset fair value over

v I
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12 Contingencies and

Legal Proceedings

We and our subsidiaries and affiliates are subject lo various claims, lawsuits and olher actions thal arise in the
normal course of business. We believe that these claims, lawsuits and other aclions will nol. individually or in the
aggregate, have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or resulis of operations, except as
otherwise dudosud Meost of lhuse matters are claims including individual and class action lawsuits against our
servicing or alleging the viclation of state or federal laws in connection with
servicing er collection aw\nﬁes on education loans and other debls.

In the ordinary com'u otour huslnm the Company and cur subsidiaries and affiliates receive information and

q and g from various entities including State Attomneys General, U.5.

gislaty i indivi bers of Congress and administrative agencies. These requests may
be inf i or enfc in nature and may relate lo our business praclices, the induslries in which
we operate, or companies with whom we conduct business. Generally, our practice has been and continues to be to
cooperate with thase bodies and to be responsive to any such reqt
The number of these inquiries and the voluna of related information demands have normalized at elevated levels and
fora the Ci must 1o expend time and resources to limely respond to these requests which may,

ding on their resull in pay of lon, fines and

Contingencies

In the ordinary course of business, we and our subsidiaries are defendants in of parties lo pending and threatenad
legal actions and proceedings including actions brought on behalf of various classes of claimants. These actions and
proceedings may be based on alleged violati of ion, securities, employ and other laws. In
certain of these actions and proceedings, claims for substantial monetary damage are asserted against us and our
subsidiaries. We and our subsidiaries are also subject to polential unasserted claims by third parties.

In Illa mihary course ol 1 we and our idiari - are subject to reg y examinations, information

and i In with formal and nrm'nal inquiries in these cases, we
and our subsidi ib and orders for ds and information in connection
with various aspects of ourrogulaled activities.
In view of the inherent difficulty of p of litig: and regulatory matiers, we may not be able to

predict whal the eventual outcome of the penung matters will be, what the timing or the ultimalte resolution of these
matters will ba, or what the eventual loss, fines or panalties, if any, related to each pending matier may be.

The Company accrues a liability for litigation, regulatory matters, and unasserted confract claims when those matters
present loss ies thal are both and reasonably estimable. When lass contingencies are not both
probable and reasmably estimable, we do not accrue a liability. Based on current knowledge, management does not
befieve thal loss conlingencies, if any, arising from pending i igati litigation or reg matters will have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, liquidity, results of operations or cash flows, except as
otherwise disclosed.

The Ce i ing legal and regulatory matters each rep g penod, and makes adjustments
Iu the accrued Nabilities RJ( such rnuuers upwa!d or downward, as appropriale, based on the relevant facts and
The C: timated range of possible losses pertaining 1o certain

matters can involve tlgnullcant]uﬂgmenl given thors such as: the varying slages of the proceedings: the existence
of numenous yet to be fosoNed issues; tha breadth of the claims (often spanning multiple years and wide ranges of
P . civil money penalties or fines and/or the novelly olme !ogal issues

and the L nl’l.he vanous. i ! of such p i g where the
Company has made assumptions wncervﬂm: future rulings by the court or other . or about the or
incentives of adverse parties or regulatory authorities. Various aspects of the legal proceedings underlying these
estimates will change from time to time. Actual losses therefore may vary significantly from any estimates.

Due to developments in the second half of 2023 in connection with the Company's CFPB matter, the Company

aloss was and i le and accrued a $73 million mnlmgancy loss. The litigation
process is not predictable and can lead to P d resulls. Therefore, it is y possible that the
Company's exposure to loss may exceed any amounts accrued.
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The Company believes the range of ly possible losses (meaning the Ikelihood of
logses is m than remolebmlessmm Im}lnmnmvnﬁ lhnsmnnr is from S0 to $250 million. This
range of y ible losses was based on currently available information for this matter, This
does not the Cs s maximum potential loss and further could result
in the matter being resolved for more or less than the amount currently accrued. It is possible that an adverse
outcome may have a material impact on the Company.

Set forth below are descriptions of the Company’s material legal proceedings.

Certaln Cases

In January 2017, the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau (the CFPB) and Attomeys General for the State of
lilinois and the State of Washington initiated civil actions naming Navient Corporation and several of its subsidiaries
as defendanis alleging violations of certain Federal and State ion statutes, including the CFPA,
FCRA, FDCPA and various state consumer prolection laws. The Am:meys General for the States of Pennsylvania,
California, Mississippi, and New Jersey also initiated actions against the Company and certain subsidiaries alleging
wviolations of various state and federal consumer protection laws based upon similar alleged acts or failures to act. In
addition to these matters, a numbaer of lawsuits have been filed by nongovemmental parties or, in the future, may be
filed by it gov I or ental parties seeking damages or other remedies related to similar
issues raised by the CFPB and the St\ete Allomeys General. In January 2022, we entered into a series of Consenl
Judgment and Orders (the "Agreements”) with 40 State Attomeys General to resolve all matters in :ispule ralamed to
the Stale Attorneys General cases as well as the related | igati civil i and
inquiries from various other state regulators. These Agreements do not resolve the litigation mvol\flng the Company
and the CFPB. The Company has cancelled the loan balance of approximately 66,000 borrowers with qualifying
Private Education Loans that were originated | larue-ly between 2002 and 2010 and later defaulted and charged off
The loans led have of ap i $1.7 billion. The expense to the
Company to cancel these loans was appmnmahly $50 millien mm represents the amount of expected fulure
recoveries of these charged-off loans on the balance sheet, In addition, the Company agreed to make a one-time
payment of approximately §145 million to the states. In the fourth quarter of 2021 when such loss became probable,

the Company ized total latory expenses of i ly $205 million related to this matter,
As the Company has previously stated, wnbeﬂmlhenlbgtiUonsmmeCFPBsutare false and that they improperly
seek lo impose penallies on Navient based on new, p applied

amla-e L

retroactively against anly one servicer. We therefore have denied these
against the allegations in that case.

On April 12, 2023, the Company reached an inciple ") with certain plaintiffs for a
nationwide settlernent of claims raised in the ioﬂrawmg bankruw;\r adversary actions: Coyle v. Navient Solutions, LLC,
No. 22-80018 (Bankr. W.D. Mich.): Homaidan v. SLM Corp., No. 1:17-ap-01085 (Bankr. E.D.N.Y.); Mazloom v.

Navient Selutiens, LLC, No. 20-80033-6 (Bankr, N.D.N.Y.}: and Woodard v. Navient Solutions, LLC, No. 08-81 442
(Bankr, D. Neb.) collectively referred to as the y Cases.” The has ived final court ap

Under the Settiement, Navient will forego the collection of defined balances for borrowers or co-borrowers of certain
private loans — all of which were originated prior to our company separation — who have received a discharge in
bankruptcy during the perods covered by the agreements. As a result, we recorded a $23 million additional private
lean provision for loan losses in the first quarter of 2023 related to the estimated future charge offs that are expected
to occur. The Company has also agreed lo fund settiement funds. We anticipate that any cash contribution we will be
required to make 1o these funds will not exceed $44 million in the aggregate and will be fully covered by insurance.
The net impact Ia operating eu\pensa ht this element of the settlement for the first quarter of 2023 was 50 due to the
accrual of the
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Regulatory Matters

The Company has been named as defendant in a number of pulative class awon and other cases alleging violations
of vanious slale and federal consumer laws i the Te Act (TCPA), the

Consumer Financial Prolection Act of 2010 (CFPA), the Fair Credit Reporting Ad (FCRA), Ihe Fair Debt Collection
Practices Act (FDCPA), in adversarial proceedings under the U.S. Bankruplcy Code. and various state consumer
protection laws. At this point in time, the Company is unable to anticipate the timing of a resolution or the impact that
these legal proceedings may have on the Company's consolidated financial position, bquidity, results of operation or
cash flows. As a result, it is not possible at this time to est arange of if any, for that
may be payable in connection with these matters and loss contingency accruals have not been established. It is
possible that an adverse ruling or rulings may have a material adverse impact on the Company.

In a:ldihm lem{ and its idiaries are subject to ion or regulation by various federal regulatory, s

or of e as part of its ordinary course of business including the SEC, CFPB, FFIEC and
ED. Mmsormmlsslrrﬂartoordlﬂamlfmm mdasmbcd above may arise during the course of those

Ws a!su ftinely receive inguiri from various regulatory entities or bodies or government

i or our assels. Gen-elaly the Company endeavors to cooperate with each such
mqulry or request. 1‘he C y has CIDs or subps from multiple State Attormeys General
that are simiar to the ClDs or subpoenas that preceded the lawsuils referenced above. Those CIDs and subpoenas
have been resolved as part of the Company's settlement with the State Attomeys General. Nevertheless, we have
received and, in the future may receive, additional ClDs or subpoenas and other inquiries from these or other
Attorneys General with respect 1o similar or different matters,

Under the terms of the ion and Distribution A the Company and SLM BankCo, Navient
agreed to indemnify SLM BankCo for claims, actions, damages, losses or expenses that may arise from the conduct
of activities of pre-Spin-Off SLM BankCo occurring prior to the Spin-Off other than those specifically excluded in that
agreement. Also, as part of the Separation and Distribution Agreement, SLM BankCo agreed to indemnify Navient for
certain claims, actions, damages, losses or expenses subject to the terms, conditions and limitations set forth in that
agreement. As a result, subject to the terms, condilions and limitations set forth in that agreement, Navient agreed to
indemnify and hold harmless Sallie Mae and its subsidiaries, including Sallie Mae Bank from liabilities arising out of
the reguiatory matiers and CFPB and State Aftorneys General lawsuits mentioned above. In addition, we asserted
various claims for indemnification against Sallie Mae and Salie Mae Bank for such specifically excluded items arising
out of the CFPB and the State Attomeys General lawsuits if and to the extent any indemnified liabilities exist now or

in the future. Navient has no accrued liabilities related to i ification matters with SLM BankCo as of December
31, 2023.

OIG Audit

The Office of the Inspecior General (the OIG) of ED d an audit

ing Special
(SAP) on September 10, 2007. In September 2013, we received the final audit determination of Fadaral Student Aid
{the Final Audit Determinalion) on the final audit report issued by the OIG in August 2009 related to this audil. The
Final Audit Determination concurmed with the final audit report issued by the OIG and instructed us lo make
adjustment to our government billing to reflect the policy determination, In August 2016, we filed our notice of appeal
to the Administrative Actions and Appeals Service Group of ED, and a hearing was held in April 2017, In March 2019,
the adminisirative law judge hearing the appeal affimed maludrls ﬁndmps hulding me bhen-emhnp Dear Colleague
letter relied upon by the Company and other industry
creating the SAP rules applicable to loans funded by certain tym clwm obllgwone at bewe We appealed the

ative law judge’s decision to the Secretary of Education given Navient's adh to ED-issued
and the tial impact on particip in any ED prog) student loan servicers if such guidance is deemed
unrefiable and may not be relied upon. In January 2021, ﬂ!aAcﬂﬂg ,ol' ion upheld the decision of the
administrative law judge. In March 2021, we filed a dgment in federal court seeking to set
aside the Acting Ses y's decision. On D 'iﬁmzmeoouﬂﬂewmnedtmEDfalledmnﬂaqualely
assess our reliance uponlho, ly issued Dear Coll letter, granted our Motion for Summary Judgment

and ordered that the Acting Secretary’s decision dated January 15, 2021 be vacated and remanded to ED for further
Drwaedlngs We wnhnue to believe Ulat our SAP billing practices were proper, considering then-existing ED

and lack of The Company first established a reserve for this matter in 2014 and
increased the reserve in 2020 in response to the decision by the Acting Secrelary. We do not believe, at this time,
that an adverse ruling upon remand will have a material effect on the Company as a whole.
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Reconciliations of the statulory U.S. federal income lax rates lo our effective tax rate for conlinuing operations follow:

Years Ended December 31
2023 2022 2021
Statulory rate 21.0% 21.0% 21.0%
Non-deductible regulatory-related expenses ' — - 14
Unrecognized tax benefits, sate, net of federal benefit B (1.3) 2
i on di interest

carryovers, state, nel of federal benefit 66 10 o7
State tax, net of federal benefit (1.9) 12 e
Other, nel [ S R )
Effective tax rate 27.1% 22.0% 23.4%

" Regulatory expenses for 2021 include $205 milion related o the resolution of State ARomeys General Migaion and investgations, of
which 50.7 il deductibla for purposes. See "Note 12 — Commitmants, Cantingencies and

Guarantaes” bor furthor discussion

Income tax expense consists of:
December 31
{Deodlars in millions) 2023 2022 2021
Current provision/(benefit):
Federal s 83 § 2 8 147
State 24 (25) 19
Foreign — 1 —
Total current i B7 (26) 166
Deferred provision/{benefit):
Federal — 173 56
State (2) 35 (3)
Foreign = = =
Tolal deferred provisian/(benefit) 2 208 53
Provision for income tax expense/(benefit) $ 85 § 182 § 219
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The lax effect of temporary differences that give rise to deferred lax assets and habilities include the following:

December 31,
2022

(Dollars in millions) 2023

Deferred tax assets:

Loan reserves H 237 § 297
Accrued not tly deductib 39 33
Education loan premiums and discounts, net 32 41
Operating loss and credil # 12
Stock-based compensalion plans 5 5
Other 18 18
Total deferred tax assels 342 407

Deferred tax labilities:
Market value adjustments on education

loans, investments and derivatives 114 201
Acquired intangible assets 23 22
Original issue discount on borrowings 13 13
Other Té 11
Total deferred tax Habilities 157 247
Net deferred tax assets $ 185 § 160

Included in operating loss and credit carryovers is a valuation allowance of $88 million and $79 million as of
Dmmber 31, 2023 and 2022 rcspedhrely against a portion of the Company’s federal and state deferred tax assets.
The valy I lo deferred tax assets for federal and state net operating loss
carryovers and state IRC § 163() dlsallmd interest expense carryovers that management believes it is more likely
than not will expire prior to bemg realized. The ultimate realk of the tax assets is upon the
generalion of l‘uturs tlaxable income 01' the appropriate charad.er {i.e. capital or ordinary) during the period in which
the temporary become di ible. Factors g y conside red by management include (bul are not
limited to). any changes in eowomccondmorrs Illemduted Is of deferred tax liabiliies, and the history of
positive taxable income in e the of the tax assets.

The operating loss and credit camyovers consist of:

December 31, 2023

Operating
Comresponding Loss
Tax- Valuation and Credit
{Dollars in millions) Gross Effected Expiration Allowance!! Carryovers
Federal operating loss camyovers $ 345 7 Begins in 2032 § 1% [}
State operating boss carmyovers 550 37 Beganin 2023 32 5
State IRC § 163()) disallowed
interest expense camyovers 4173 65 65

$ 109 5 68 § ;

L The valuation allowance atiributabie 10 deferred tax assets for federal and state net operating loss camyovers, and state IRC § 163()
disallowed irdernsl axpense caryovers, are amcunts hal maragement belieres moen likely than nol wil axpira: price 1o being reakzed,
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13. Income Taxes (Continued)

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

5 table i ges in gnized tax benefits:
December 31,

{Dellars in millisns) 2023 2022 2021
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year 5 50.7 § 588 § 57.9
Incraases resulting from tax positions taken during a prior period 38 108 64
Decreases resulting from tax positions taken during a prior pariod 14.5) (18.6) 42)
hmms resulting from tax positions taken during the current period T4 6.7 6.4

with taxing 38) (1.0) (3}
I related to s with taxing authoditi - sy -
Reductions related to the lapse of statute of limitations. {5.1) (8.0) {7.4)
Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year (1 5 485 § 507 § 58.8

" Included in the 545.5 milion of gross unmcognized tax benofits at Decomber 31, 2023 are $38.3 millon of unmecognized tax benefts that, if
recogaized, woulkd firomably impact the effectve lax e,

The Ci or one of its subsidi files income tax retumns al the U.S. federal level, in most U.S. states, and
Varous fomgn jurisdictions. All periods prior to 2020 are closed for federal examinations purposes. Various
combinations of subsidiaries, tax years, and jurisdictions remain open for review, subject to slatute of limitations
periods (typically 3 to 4 prior years). We do not expect the resolution of open audits to have a material impact on our
unrecognized tax benefits

14, from Contracts with C A for in A di with ASC 606

The following tables illustrate the disaggregation of revenue from contracts accounted for under ASC 606 with
customers according to service type and client type by reportable operating segment.

Revenue by Service Type

Ywars Ended Decesnber 31,
F7T) FI7E FH]
Faderal Fedaral Faderal
Butiness Totsl Education Business Teast Edwucation Buziness Teasl
in Loams  Processing _Revense Leans _  Process Reverws  _ Lowns Processing
ederal
assef recovery services §  — § e S 25 — 25 WS =% 18
Government ] - 200 200 - 187 187 - 258
Healthcars = 121 e
Tatal =i 321 321 3 2 5 3% s 33 5 18 5 488 § 507
Revenue by Client Type
“Years Ended Decamber 31,
2673 0T 2071
Fadernl ederal Tederal
Education  Business Tatal Bducation  Business Totsl  Education  Businoess Total
B e S i g fo—
Guarsnior agancies — — — 2 — 18 — 18
State and local - - - - - - - - B
it - (1] [ - 116 116 - 183 183
Talling authorities - 70 70 - 63 &3 - 55 55
Hospilals and other
providers  __ — 1A M — 143 w3 — 230 230
Tobat — —t — —) m—tl — — w—

As of December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021 there was $95 million, $67 million, and $82 million, respectively, of net
accounts receivable related to these contracts. Navient had no material contract assets or contract liabilities.
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15. Segment Reporting

‘We monitor and assess our ongoing operations and results based on the foliowing four reporiakbl
Federal Ed Loans, C Lending, B g and Other.
meel the itati for rep: perating A i Ihe-esullsnf

ions of these i are p nted The und q o g segments are
mdbymef‘ pany's chief operating decisi rnakerhnmlnapume" i rwiew perating p and
allocate resources, andqualwwbeammd as part of the primary reportabl As di d
further below, wemeasure prrcrlablltyo!woperaﬂw segmenls based on CmeEanﬂrins net income.

our P a9 net income is provi on a Core

basis,
Federal Educaltion Loans Segment

Navient owns FFELP Loans and performs servicing on this portfolio. We also service FFELP Loans owned by other
institutions. We generate revenue primarily through nel interest inceme on cur FFELP Loans.

The following table includes asset information for our Federal Education Loans segment.

Decomber 31,

(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022

FFELP Loans, net § 37925 § 43525

Cash and investments'* 1,520 2,746

Other 2128 2229

Total assets $§ 41573 § 48500

—_—

m Inchuddes resticied Ghsh and vestments.
Consumer Lending Segment
Navient owns, originates and services rellnarnce and in-school Private Educabun Loans. "Refinance™ Private
Education Loans are loans where a their loans, and "In-school™ Private Education

Loans are loans onginally made to borrowers whulo thay are allmdmg school. We generate revenue primarily through
net interest income en our Private Education Loan portfolio.

The following table includes asset i jon for our G Lending segment
December 31,
(Dellars in millions) 2023 = 2022
Private Education Loans, net § 16902 § 18725
Cash and investrents!"! 497 617
Other 577 453
Total assets § 17876 § 19795

i Inchades restrictod Gash and investments.
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g Reporting (Continued)

15.

Navient ides busi P a9 i such as g contact center services, workflow processing,
and revenue cycle oplimization. Qur clients include:

+« Government: We offer our solutions to federal agencies, state governments, tolling and parking authorities,
‘and other public sector clients.

+  Healthcare: Our clients include hospitals, hospital systems, medical centers, large physician groups, other
healthcare providers and public health depariments.

At December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Business Processing segment had total assets of $380 million and $390 million,
respectively.

Other Segment

This segment consists of our corporate liquidity portfolio, gains and losses incurred on the repurchase of debt,

unallocated expenses of shared services (which includes regulatory expenses) and restructuring/other reerganization
expenses,

Unallocated shared services expenses are comprised of costs primarily related to information technology costs
related to i e and op stock-based P s P ing, finance, legal, compliance
and risk management, regulalory-related expenses, human resources, certain executive management and the Board
of Directors. Regulatory-related expenses include actual settiement amounts as well as third-party professional fees
we incur in connection with such regulatory matters and are presented net of any insurance reimbursements for
covered costs related to such matters.

At Decemnber 31, 2023 and 2022, the Other segment had total assels of $1.4 bilion and $2.1 billion, respectively.
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9 Reporting (Continued)

Measure of Profitability

We prepare financial statements and present financial resulls in accordance with GAAP. However, we also evaluate
our business segments and present financial resulls on a basis thal differs from GAAP, We refer to this different basis
of presentation as Core Earmnings. We provide his Core Eamings basis of presentation on a cor\solldaled basis md
for each business segment because this is what we review internally when making
our performance and how we allocate resources. We also refer to this information in our presentations with uedn
rating ies, lenders and § B our Core Earnings basis of p ds to our seg:
financial plesenl.aums we are roqu-ud by GAAP to provide Core Eamings d-sdosure in the notes o our

for our busi

15.

Core Eamingsam nota mtmimln for raporled resulls under GAAP, We use Core Eamings to manage our business

Core E reflect to GAAP financial results for two items, discussed below, that
«can create significant volatility rmsw due Io timing factors generally beyond the control of management. Accordingly,
we believe that Core Eamnings provide management with a useful basis from which to better evaluate results from

ongeing operations against the business plan or against rssu!ts from prior periods. Consequently, we disclose this
information because we believe it provid with information regarding the operational and
performance indicators that are mom closely d by m g When P to GAAP results, the two

items we remove to result in our Core Eamings presentations are:

1. Mark-lo-market gains/losses resulting from our use of derivative instruments to hedge our economic risks
that do not quallfy for hedge accounting treatment or do qualify for hedge accounting treatment but resull in
ineffectiveness; and

2. The accounting for goodwill and acquired intangible assets.

While GAAP provides a uniform, hensive basis of for the reasons described above, our Core
Earnings basis of presentation does not. Core Eamings are subject to :el!alﬂ general and specific imitations that
stors should ly consider, For there is no guidance for management

reporting. Our Core Eammgs are nm aennac lm within GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled

ported by other dingly, our Cora E gs presentation does not represent a

ive basis of i may not be able to compare our performance with that of
other financial services companies s based upon Core E.amsnus. Care Eamings resulls are only meant lo supplement
GAAP results by p g additional i and that are most

closely used by mar\agemsnL our Board of Dwamcs crndnt raling agencies, lenders and investors lo assess
performance.
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9 Reporting (Continued)
Segment Results and Reconciliations to GAAP

15.
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nterest income (hoss) after provissons for loan iosses 3 [0 ] -
Total other incoma (108s)
Goodwill and acquired intanciblo = 0oy

Lok b

434}

{303}
i

Total Core Eaenings adstments t2 GAAP O T
Income tax sxpense (benefil]
Net income (loss)

L Incoma taxes ate based on 4 percontage of net incomme before tax for the individusl reportable segment
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et ineesl income (1o8s) vzt (w8 ™ § s 3 oen 519

Segment Reporting (Conti

NAVIENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

”
%
e 200
Total athar mecms loss) e [ R R woi
534

23
1

[iL] 18 -

Corw Eamings adjustmants o GAAP:
AT 1,

Net impact of Mot impact of

Dartwative Acquired
Dellwpinoiony) oo _Accopntieg  _lntangble Tl
et interest income (loss) after provisions for loan losses L ] 195} § -3 155)
Total othet incoma (loss) a7 = 71y
Goodwil Inkangbh = 18
Total Core Earnings adustments to GAAP 3 (%66 518 247y
Income tax expense (benafil) — 80
Met ncoma {loss) 187)

Incoma taxes are based on & porcontage of net income bofore L dor the rdividual reportable segment
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15. Seg Reporting (Conti )

Total Total | Federal
Total  Reclassl:  Addsions!  Adjustments Cdscation Consumer  Business
(Dotiars in milkions] aaap a Eamings | Losns  Lemsing Processing _Ottar
irtarast income:
Faucanon loans. $ 2648 1] 1406 § L 0§ -4 -
Cmsh o Irvesiments 3 = = 1
Total mtarast mome 7 EL8 1,405 1183 - 1
Totsl intatast axporsa LI ] = P}
Nat RSS! INCOMS (s8] 1332 § (M6 § ) § (1Ba) 3 1 %8 575 6az — {8
Lean. proviskorm for lome
m\ 1811 — m} - —
Nel inferetl incame (oas)
A provekens for oan
1303 ) 700 - [
Otnes inoma (e
] 02 ) - &
Assel recovery and
55 L1 - AR -
b » —_ — L
G on sales of loans ™ - " - -
Lottt o dstd 2 i
Total ofher ncome (losa) 808 T I‘;’] 31} T Fir ] w a8 1&)
Dimoct apsesting
a8 m 182 00 —
Aty eaperal 457 - - -
. — — — —s s —= _ﬁ
Geocdwil and scapited
largie atac
Frgrant ane
ATomIAton = - ) a3 - - - - -
Hesinahmng ot
Tolsl i = % 1 5 5 3% 288
croeses = e | N fpo— - f— - fp— |
itorme tas nipans.
836 - taody 20%) ™m 880 w28 e (L)
e P \ w )
Halsioms o} =8 e e
" Cone Emmengs adjustments 1o GAAP.
k1
Net impact of Net impact of
Dariwatie. Arqursd
[ ST — Asteyntng _inaegiete  ___Tow
Ned interest income (loss| after provisions for loan losses ] sy § -3 1184}
Total other income (loss) 213 — {51}
Goosdwill and intangible d S | I -
Total Core Earnings adjustments to GAAP i 23) § 30 1205}
oo Wi sxpinse [Borafil] {38}

o Incoma taxes ien based on 8 porcertnge of rel incomse before tax for the wdividual repartabis segment
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15. Seg Reporting (Conti )

S ry of Core Earnii Ay to GAAP
Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in millions) 2023 2022 2021
GAAP net income $ 228 §$ &45 § M7
Core Earnings adjustments lo GAAP:
Net impact of derivative accounting'™ 73 (266)  (235)
Net impact of goodwill and acquired intangible assets® 10 19 30
Net income tax effect™ (8) 60 39
Total Core Eamings adjustments to GAAP 75 {187) _ (168)
Core Earnings net income 5303 § 458 § 551
L Derivative accounting: Core Eamings sxchude perodec gans and lodses That ane caused by e mark-to-marke! valuations on
dervatives that do not quakly for hedga accouning troatment under GAAP as well s the poriodc mark-to-markot gaine and
lossos thal aro a result of ineffeclivnass recognized rmkvind to hodges under GAAP. Under GAAP, lor ur dorvativos

Contracts where the mark-to-market gain wil squal the amount for which we sold the contract. In gor Cons Earmings.
presentation. we recognize the scancenic effect of thess hodges, which generally results in any net settiement cash paid or
recaived being recogrized mtably a8 an intoros! expenss OF Mvenue over e hedged itom's ife.

@ Goodwill and acquired intangible assats: Gur Core Eamings axcheda goodwdl and angible asset imparment and
amorization of acquired inangible assets

L Nt tax effect: Such tax offect is based upon ow Core Eamengs offective tax rate for e yoar.
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APPENDIX A
DESCRIPTION OF FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN PROGRAM

The Federal Family Education Loan Program (FFELP) was authorized under Title IV of the Higher Education Act
{HEA). No new FFELP loans were authorized to be made afler July 1, 2010. The lerms and conditions of existing
FFELP loans continue to be governed by the HEA statute, implementing regulations, and guidance from the
Department of Education (ED).

This dix describes or izes the material provisi dHEAsTmIV the FFELP and related statutes and

in place as of D 31, 2023, 1, is and is in its entirety by reference
to each actual statute and regulation. Both the HEA and the nﬂals-d regulations have been the subject ul'm“rvu
amendments over the years. We cannol predict whether future di Is or might change
any of the programs described in this appendix or the statutes and regulations that implement them.

General

The FFELP provided for loans to students who were enrclied in eligible institutions, or to parents of dependent
students who were enrolled in eligible institutions, o finance their educational costs. As further described below,
payment of principal and interest on the education loans is insured by a state or not-for-profit guaranty agency
against:

default of the borrower;

the death, bankruptcy or permanent, total disability of the borrower;
closing of the borrower's school prior to the end of the academic period;
« false certification of the b 5 eligibility for the loan by the schoel; and
an unpaid school refund,

Claims are paid from federal assets, known as “federal student loan reserve funds,” which are federal assets but are
maintained and administered by stale and not-for-profil guaranty agencies. In addition, the holders of education loans
are entifled to receive inlerest subsidy and special s from ED on eligible education
loans.

Special allowance paymaents raise the yield to education loan lenders when the statutory bommower interest rate is
below an indexed market value,

Four types of education loans were authorized under the HEA:

* Subsidized Stafford Loans to stud whao di d requisite financial need;
* Unsubsidized Stafford Loans to students who either did not der need or required
i loans to their Stafford Loans;
* Federal PLUS Loans lo grad fessional stud (effective July 1, 2006) or parents of dependent
students whose estimated costs olallendmg school exceed other available financial aid; and
. Ci Loans, which i into a single loan a s gati under various ¥
authorized education loan programs.
Before July 1, 1984, the HEA also authorized loans called *Suppl tal Loans to " or “SLS Loans™ o
independent students and, under some i o their

Subsidized Stafford Loans. The Unsubsidized Stafford Loan program replaced the SLS program.

At




Special Allowance Payments

HEA provides fior special P to be made by ED fo holders of education loans to the extent
necessary to ensure that they receive al least specified market interest rates of retum. The rates for special
allowance paymenis depend on statutory formulas that vary according to the type of loan, the date the loan was
made and the type of funds, tax-exempt or taxable, used lo finance the loan. ED makes a special allowance payment
for each quarter, g ly within 45 to 60 days after the receipt of a bill from the lender.

The special allowance payment equals the average unpaid principal balance, including interest which has been
capitalized, of all aligible loans held by a helder during the quarterly period multiplied by the special allowance
percentage.

Foromnauunlnansd»snursadpnorloml 2006 dmespeclaldlowamelmmlsbmmem«wume the

special al is zero. For edi loans disk: d on or after April 1, 2006, lenders are required lo
pay ED any lmerusl pln! by on education loans that ds the special all support levels
applicable to such loans.

Consolidation Loan Fees

Loan Rebate Fee. A loan rebate fee of 1.05% is paid annually on the unpaid principal and interest of each
Consolidation Loan disbursed on or after October 1, 1983,

Stafford Loan Program

For Staflord Loans, the HEA provided for:

federal reimbursement of Stafford Loans made by eligible lenders to qualified students;

federal interest subsidy payments on Subsidized Stafford Loans paid by ED to helders of the loans in lieu of the

borrowers' making interest payments during in-school, grace and deferment periods or, in ceain cases, during
2 in an in plan; and

special all pay ‘P ing an i subsidy paid by ED to the holders of eligible Stafford Loans.

‘We refer to all three types of as “federal *

Interes!. The borrower’s interest rate on a Stafford Loan can be fixed or variable, depending on the academic year in
which the loan was disbursed.
Interest Subsidy Paymenis. ED is responsible for paying interest on Subsidized Stafford Loans:

= while the borrower is a qualified student,

* during the grace period,

* during prescribed deferment periods, and

* in certain cases, during a inan i based plan,

ED makes quarterly interes! subsidy payments to the owner of a Subsidized Stafford Loan in an amount egual lo the
interest that accrues on the unpaid balance of that loan before repayment begins or during any deferment periods.
ED also makes quartery interest subsidy payments to the owner of a Subsidized Stafford Loan in an amount equal to
the unpaid interest payabls enﬂng up to three consecutive calendar years of a period of financial hardship during

in an in pltan. The HEA provides that the owner of an eligible Subsidized Stafford
Loan has a contractual right against the United Stales to receive Imemsl subaidy and special allowame payments,
However, mcmpt of interest subaacly and special d on with the
redq; the HEA, g the followi

« satisfaction of need criteria, and
* continued efigibility of the loan for federal insurance or reinsurance,

If the loan is not held by an eligible lender in i of the HEA and the applicable
guarantee agreement, the loan may lose iis eligibility for lodaral a:sls‘bam

Lenders generally receive interest subsidy payments within 45 days to 60 days after the submission of the applhcable
data for any given calendar quarter to ED. However, there can be no assurance that payments will, in fact, be
received from ED within that period.
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R R of ipal on a Stafford Loan does not begin while the borrower remains a qualified
student, but only afler a 6-month grace period. In gemal each loan must be scheduled for repayment over a period
of not more than 10 years afler repayment begins. New bomowers on or after October 7, 1998 who accumulated
FFELP loans totaling more than $30,000 in pﬂnclpa! and unpaid interest are entitled to extend repayment for up to 25

years, subject to minnmum pay Loan may be led for it up lo
30 years dep on the b r's ‘Outlined in the table below are the maximum repayment periods.
available based on the ing FFELF‘ L
C il ati Loan

Outstanding FFELP Ind dl Period

$7.500-59,999 12 Years

$10.000-519,999 15 Years

$20,000-539,929 20 Years

$40,000-559,999 25 Years

$60.000 or more 30 Years

Note' Maimuen repayment period exchides authcrzed pencods of deferment and forbeatance

In addition to the out: ding FFELP indebted requirements described above, the HEA cuently requires
minimum annual payments of $600, unless the borrower and the lender agree to lower payments, except that
negative amortization is not allowed, except for loans paid under an moums baaed reparmmt Dian The HEA anﬁ
ralalad regc.lanom require Ianciers 1o rmer a choece amang d N

ppl L to all b For b in income-
based repayment, ED repays or caﬂwts any wiﬂmdlng principal and Inlerwt under certain criteria after 25 years of
qualified payments.

Grace Penods, Deferment Periods and Forbearance Periods. After the borrower stops pursuing at least a half-time
course of study, the borrower generally must begin to repay principal of a Stafford Loan following the grace period.
However, no principal repayments need be made, subject to some conditions, during deferment and forbearance
periods.

Fubmmmmseﬁrstlomsaredasb\.nedmoraﬂewuly| 1993 P t of principal may be while
the borrower returns to school at least half-time. it are when the is:
* anrolled in an approved grad fel hip prog or rehabili

* seeking, but unable to find, full-time employment, subject to a maximum deferment of three years; or
* having an economic hardship, as defined in the HEA, subject to a maximum deferment of three years; or

= serving on active duty during a war or other military ion or national or performing
qualifying National Guard duty during a war or other military or national
* receiving cancer trealment (for loans thal enlered on or before September 28, 2018 for periods

of treatment that occur on or after September 28, 2018).

The HEA also permits, and in some cases requires, “forbearance” periods from loan collection in some
cllwnslance! Interest that accrues during a forbearance period is never subsidized. When a borrower ends.

1ce and enters the account is considered current. When a barrower exits grace, deferment or
forbearance, any inlerest that has nol been subsidized is il italized and added to the outstanding principal
amount.

PLUS and SLS Loan Programs

The HEA authorized PLUS Loans to be made to parents of eligible d d ok and
professional students and originally authorized 5LS Loans to be made 1o the categories of students later served by
the U idized Stafford Loan program. who had no adverse credil history or who were able to secure an
endorser without an adverse credit history were eligible for PLUS Loans, as well as some borrowers with extenuating
circumstances. The basic provisions applicable to PLUS and SLS Loans are similar to those of Stafford Loans for
federal insurance and reinsurance. However, interest subsidy payments are not available under the PLUS and SLS
programs and, in some special are more restricted.
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Interest. The interest rates for PLUS Loans and SLS Loans depend on the year In which the leans were disbursed

D t begin to repay principal on their PLUS and SLS Loans no later than 60 days
after the final dishursemant, unless they use dnhrmnm available for the in-school pariod and the six-manth post
fod. Deds Wt and forb ., maxl loan periods, plans and

minimum payment amounts for PLUS and SLS loans are gmerally the same as those for Stafford Loans, although
income-based repayment is not available for parents borrowing under the PLUS program.

Consolidation Loan Program

Prior to July 1, 2010, HEA authorized a program undar which borrowers could consolidate one or more of thair
education loans into a single Consolidation Loan that is insured and reinsured on a basis similar o Stafford and
PLUS Loans. Consolidation Loans were made in an amount sufficient to pay outstanding principal, unpaid interest,
late charges and collection costs on all federally reinsured educalion loans incurred under the FFELP that the
selects for ion, as well as loans made under various other federal adnmnn loan programs and
loans made by different lenders. In general, a b. 's eligibility to lidate federal ion loans ends upon
receipt of a Consolidation Loan. With the end of new FFELP originations, bormowers with mulliple loans, including
FFELP lpans, may only consolidate their loans under the FOLP.
Cmsol»dahon Loans generarly bear interest al a fixed rate equal 1o the weighled average of the interest rates on the
unpaid p loans rounded up to the nearest 1/8th of a %. subject to interest rate
cnpsdependngmhyevlnwrmhme ion loan was disb d. N ber 13, 1997 and
September 30, 1998 interest rates were variable.

Guaranty Agencies under the FFELP

Under the FFELP, guaranty agencies guarantee loans made by eligible lending institutions, paying claims from
“federal student loan reserve funds.” The rate of reimbursement depends on the type of claim (death, disability, or
deffault) and can range from 97% to 100%.

These loans are gi d as to 100% of principal and accrued interes! against death or discharge.

To be eligible for federal reinsurance, FFELP loans must meet HEA reqy and its y

these regulations require that holders must establish repayment terms with the borrower, properly administer

df its and forb cmd'rlme lor made. and repor the loan's status to credit reporting
ies, If a b in ying a loan, alendarmslpen‘ennwﬂecbonprwodsml!wwry

depending upon the length of time a loan Is i The p consist of telepl calls, demand

letters, skip tracing and i from the agency.

A lender may submit a default claim to the guaranty agency after the related education loan has been delinquent for
at least 270 days. The guaranty agency must review and pay the claim within 90 days after the lender filed it. The
guaranty agency will pay the lender interest accrued on the loan for up to 450 days after delinquency. The guaranty
agency must file a reimbursement claim with ED within 30 days after the guaranty agency paid the lender for the
default claim. Following payment of claims, the guaranly agency endeavors lo collect the loan. Guaranty agencies

also must meet statutery and reg ¥ req for g loans.

Education Loan Discharges

FFELP loans are not g ble in P Under the United States Bankruptcy Code, before an
adummlummyhndmmmnm must that g it would cause the borrawer or his
family undue hardship. When a FFELP files for il of the loan is suspended during the

time of the proceeding. If the borrower files under the “wage ealner p(mslons of the United States Bankruptcy Code
or files a petition for discharge on the grounds of undue hardship, then the lender transfers the loan to the guaranty
agency which guaranteed that loan and that agency then participates in the bankruptcy proceeding. When the
proceeding is complete, unless there was a finding of undue hardship, the loan is transferred back to the lender and
collection resumes.




E lon loans are disch d if the dies or totally and p i d. If a school closes
while a student is enrolled, orwnhm 120 days after the student withdrew, loans made lorlhat enrcliment period are
dizcharged. If a school falsely cerifies that a bormower is eligible for the loan, the loan may be discharged, and if a
school fails to make a refund to which a student is enliled, the lcan Is discharged mlhennanln'rlheummld refund,
Effective July 1, 2006, a loan is also eligible for disch ifitis ined that the b s eligibility for the loan
was falsaly certified as a result of a crime of identity thefi,

Rehabilitation of Defaulted Loans

ED is auth d to enter into ag with a guaranty agency under which such guaranty agency may sell
defaulted loans. thal are eligible for rehabilitalion to an eligible Iender For a loan to be eligible for rehabilitation the
related guaranty agency must have L and i for 12 months which was

reduced to 9 payments in 10 months effective July 1, 2006, and then mbmwmaquummmeloenbe
rehabilitated. Because monthly payments may be greater after rehabilitation, not all berrowers opt for rehabilitation.
Upen rehabilitation, a borrower is again eligible for all the benefits under the HEA for which the borrower is not
eligible as a tmﬂmnr on a defaulted loan, such as new federal aid, and the negative credit record of default is

No loan may be rehabili more than once.

tof o
If ED determines that a guaranty agency is unable to meet i1s insurance obligations, the holders of loans insured by
that guaranty agency may submit claims directly to ED and ED is required to pay the full reimbursement amounts
due, in accordance with claim processing standards no more stringent than those applied by the affected guaranty
agency. However, ED's obligation to pay guarantee claims directly in this fashion is contingent upon ED determining
a guaranty agency is unable to meet its obligations. While there have been situations where ED has made such
determinations regarding affected guaranty agencies, there can be no assurances as to whether ED must make such
determinations in the future or whether payments of reimbursement amounts would be made in a fimely manner,
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APPENDIX B

FORM 10-K CROSS5-REFERENCE INDEX

Page
Number
Forward-Looking and C 3
i 4
PARTI
em 1. Busi 5-10.49-
51
ltem 1A 52-65
ltem 18, Mot
Applicable
hem1C. € 66-57
ltem 2. i 72
ltern 3. Legal Proceedings 51, F-48-
F-50
Item 4, Mine Safety D Mot
Applicable
PART Il
llem 5. Magval_fw Registrant’s Commaon Equily, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of 7375
quity Securiti
lem 6. Selected Financial Data Reserved
and
Removed
Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Finandal Condilion and Results of Operations 11-28
ltem 7A. Quantitative and O Disclk about Market Risk i 68-72
ltem 8, Financial S and Supp! y Data {a)
lem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure iisi
Applicable
llem 9A. Controls and 76
ltem 9B, Other 75
Itemn 9C. Dk garding Foreign Jurisdictions that Pravent ions...... Not
Appiicable
PART I
Iem 10. Directors, ive Officers and Ce i 7
ltem 11, Exscutive Comp s 7
ltem 12. Security of Certain Beneficial Owners and M. and Related Stockhold
e 13, Certain and Related Trar and Director im
lem 14, Principal Accountant Faes and Services Tt
PART IV
ltem 15, Exhibits and Financial T8-82,
F1-F-60
Item 16. Form 10-K SUMMBIY........ccooesnisnses Not
applicable

{a} Reference iz made to the financial statements listed under the heading “(a) 1. Financial Statements” of ltem
15 hereof, which financial are by ref in resps to this Item 8.




GLOSSARY

Listed below are definitions of key terms that are used See also Ap A, “Description
of Federal Family Education Loan Program,” for a further dlsal.lssmn m‘ the FFELP.

Constant Prepayment Rate (CPR) — A variable in life-of-loan estimates that measures the rate at which loans in
the portfolio prepay before their stated maturity. The CPR is directly comelated to the average life of the portfolio.
CPR equals the percentage of loans that prepay annually as a percentage of the beginning of period balance.

ED — The U.S. Department of Education.

FFELP — The Federal Family Education Loan Program, formerly the Guaranieed Education Loan Program, a
program that was discontinued in 2010,

FFELP Consolidation Loans — Under the FFELP, borrowers with multiple eligible education loans may have
consolidated them into a single education loan with one lender at a fixed rate for the life of the loan. The new loan is

a FFELP Ci idation Loan. The rate on a FFELP Consolidation Loan is generally fixed for the
term of the loan and was set by the weighted average interest rate of the loans being consolidated, rounded up to the
nearest 1/8th of a percent, not to exceed 8.25%. Before October 1, 1998, maximum loan rates could have exceeded
8.25%. B N ber 13, 1997 and September 30, 1998, inlerest rales were variable. Holders of FFELP
Consolidalion Loans are eligible 1o eam interest under the Special Allowance Payment (SAP) formula, In April 2008,
we suspended originating new FFELP Consofidation Loans.

FFELP Loans — ion loans to or parents of stud that are d or rei d under
the FFELP. The loans are primarily Stafford loans but also include PLUS, SLS, Consdbdmn and HEAL leans. The
FFELP was discontinued in 2010.

Fixed Rate Floor Income — Fixed Rate Floor Income is Floor Income with education loans with b
rates that are fixed to term (prmarily FFELP Consolidation Loans),

Floor Income — For loans disbursed before April 1, 2006, FFELP Loans generally eam interest at the higher of
either the borrower rate, which is fixed over a period of time, or a floating rale based on the SAP formula. We
generally finance our education loan portfolio with floating rate debt whose interest is matched closely to the floating
nature of the applicable SAP formuta. If interest rates decline to a level at which the borrower rate exceeds the SAP
formula rate, we continue 1o earn interest on the loan al the fixed borrower rate while the floating rate interest on our
debt continues o decline. In these interest rate environments, we refer to the additional spread it eams between the
fixed borrower rate and the SAP formula rate as Floor Income, Depending on the type of education loan and when it
was originated, the borrower rate is either fixed to term or is reset to a market rate each July 1. As a result, for loans
where the borrower rate is fixed to term, we may eam Floor Income for an extended period of time, and for those
loans where the borrower interest rate is reset annually on July 1, we may eam Floor Income to the next reset date
In accordance with legislation enacted in 2006, lenders are required to rebate Floor Income to ED for all FFELP
Loans disbursed on or after April 1, 2006.

The followi iple shows the hanics of Floor Income for a typical fixed rale FFELP Consolidation Loan (with
a SOFR-based SAP spread of 2.64%):
Fixed Borrower Rate 4.25%
SAP Spread over SOFR (2.64)
Floor Strike Rate!"! 1.61%
™ T rate at which the (SOFR, Treasury bl of commarcial

m]umwﬂ:nmmmuwlm borrower rate. Floor Income iu
eamad amySme ihe interest rate of the underying index deciines below this rate.

Based on this example, if the quarterly average SOFR rate is over 1.61%, the holder of the education loan will eam at
a floating rate based on the SAP formula, which in this example is a fixed spread to SOFR of 2.64%. On the other
hand, if the quartery average SOFR rate is below 1.61%, the SAP formula will produce a rate below the fixed
borrower rale of 4.25% and the loan holder eamns at the borrower rate of 4.25%.
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Graphic Depiction of Floor I
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Floor Income Contracts — We enler into contracts with counterparties under which, in exchange for an upfront

payment r ing the present value of the Floor Income that we expect to eam on a notional amount
of undertying education loans being economically hedged, we will pay the counterparties the Floor Income eamed on
that notional amount over the |ife of the Floor Income Contract. Specifically, we agree to pay the counferparty the
difference, if positive, between the fixed borrower rate less the SAP spread and the average of the applicable interest
rate index on that notional amount, regardiess of the actual balance of underlying education loans, over the life of the
conliract. The contracts generally do not extend over the life of the underlying education loans, This contract
effectively locks in the amount of Floor Income we will eam over the period of the contract, Floor Income Conlracls
are not considered effective hedges under ASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedging,” and each quarter we mus! record the
change in fair value of these contracts through income,

) — State ies or profit ies that gi {or insure) FFELP Loans made by eligible
lenders under The Higher Education Act of 1965 (HEA), as amended.

HCERA — The Health Cara and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010.




Private Ed ion Loans — toans 1o stud or their families that bear the full credit risk of the customer
and any cosigner, Private Education Loans are made primarily to bndge the gap between the cost of higher educawn
rivate

and the amount funded through financial aid, federal loans or " and families’ r
Loans include loans for higher and degrees) and for alternative education, such
as career training, private kind through d schools and tutorial schools. Certain higher

education loans have repayment terms similar to FFELP Lmns whereby repaymenis begin after the borrower leaves
school while others require repayment of interest or a fixed pay amount while the borrower is still in school. Our
higher education Private Education Leans are not dischargeable in bankrupicy, except in certain limited
cireumstances. Navient owns, oﬁginates and services refi and hool Private E Loans.

"R Private E 2 ion loans made to certain customers thal have simplified their
payments by consolidating pmrale andl'or federal education loans into a single Privale Education Loan. These loans
are expected to have low defaull rates as a result of a number of factors including high FICO scores, employment
record and educational history.

*In-school” Private Education Leans are loans originally made o borrowers while they are attending school.

Repayment Borrower Benefits — Financial ir offered to b based on pr
factors, which are generally tied directly to making on-time monthly payments. The rmpacl of Repaymorﬂ Bormower
Benefits is dependent on the estimate of the number of borrowers who will eventually qualify for these benefits and
the amount of the financial benefit offered to the borrawer.

Residual Interest — When we securitize education loans, we retain the right to recelve cash flows from the
education loans sold to trusts that we sponsor in excess of amounts needed to pay derivative costs (if any), other
fees, and the principal and interest on the bonds backed by the education loans,

Risk Sharing — When a FFELP Loan first disbursed on and after July 1, 2006 defaults, the federal government
guarantees 97% of the principal balance plus accrued interest (98% on loans disbursed on and after October 1, 1993
and bafore July 1, 2006) and the holder of the loan is at risk for the remaining amount not guaranteed as a Risk
Sharing loss on the loan. FFELP Loans originated after October 1, 1993 are subject to Risk Sharing on loan default
claim payments unless the default results from the borrower's death, disability, bankrupicy, closed school or false
certification,

Variable Rate Floor Income — Variable Rate Floor Income is Floor Income that is eamed only through the next date
at which the borrower interest rate is reset to a market rate. For FFELP Stafford Loans whose borrower interest rate
resats annually on July 1, we may earmn Floor Income based on a ¢ ion of the diff b the borrower
rate and the then curment interest rate,
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Nominees at the 2024 Annual Meeting

Linda A. Mills
Chair of the Board of Dircctors of
Navient Corporation

Edward Bramson
Vice Chair of the Board of Dircctors
of Navienm Corporation

Frederick Arnold

Former Chief Financial Officer
private equity-owned portfolie
companics

Anna Escobedo Cabral
Former Treasurer of the United
States

Larry Klane
Co-Founding Principal
Pivot Investment Panners

Michael Lawson

Former President and Chicl
Executive Oificer. Los Angeles
Urban League

Jane Thompson
Former President
Financial Services, Walman Stores

David L. Yowan
President and Chief Executive
Oificer. Navient Comporation

LEADERSHIP TEAM
David L. Yowan John Kane Mark Heleen
President and Chief Exccutive Group President. Business Executive Vice President and Chiel’
Officer, Naviem Corporation Processing Solutions Legal Officer and Secretary
Joe Fisher Steve Hauber
Executive Vice President and Chict Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer Risk and Compliance Officer
Independent Registered Public Sharcholder Inquiries Other Information
Accounting Firm Sharcholders of recond should To obtain a free copy of the 2023
KPMG LLP contact Computershare with Annual Report on Form 10K,
B350 Broad Sirect. Suite 900 inquiries aboul their holdings, Corporate Governance Guidelines,

McLean, Virginia 22102

Transfer Agent

Computershare

PO, Box 305000

Louisville, KY 40233

(877) 282-1168

sharchaldgr iicomputershare, com

dividends. transfer of ownership,
address changes or account
consolidations

Stock Trading

Navient Corporation common stock
traddes on Nasidag Global Seleet
Market under the symbol: NAVT

Cuoxde of Business Conduct or
additional information. visit
Mavient.com/investors or wrile to:
Mavient Corporation, Investor
Relations

13865 Sunrise Valley Drive
Hemndon, VA 20171

Annual Meeting

Navient Corporation will hold s
Annual Sharcholders” Meeting
wirtually at £:00 am. {local time) on
Thursday, May 23, 2024,
Sharcholders can attend the meet by
going 1o
winualsharcholdermecting.com.




